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NOTICE CONVENING 40™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 40THAnnual General Meeting of the members of M/s KCL
Limited will be held on Saturday, 30t September 2023 at 11:00 AM (IST) at the Registered Office
of the company Situated at E-292, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi - 110044to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Item 1: To receive, consider and adopt

a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon
and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023together with the Report of the Auditors thereon and in this
regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March 2023together with the Report of the Auditors thereon as
circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

Item 2: To appoint a director in place of Mr. Rajeev Khemka (holding DIN No 00103260), who
retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard to
consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Rajeev Khemka, Whole time Director, who retires by
rotation at this meeting and being eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

Item 3: To appoint a director in place of Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka (holding DIN No 07484360),
who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this
regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka, Whole time Director who retires



by rotation at this meeting and being eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as
a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item 4. Appointment of Statutory Auditor to fill casual vacancy

To appoint statutory auditor of the company and to fix their remuneration and if thought fit, to
pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Subject to the provisions of Section pursuant to section 139, 142 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit & Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force) and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the
Company, M/s Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000129N), be
and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company, to fill the casual vacancy caused
by the resignation of M/s Deepanshu Goel & Associates, Chartered Accountant.

RESOLVED FURTHER THATM/s Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants, be and are
hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the office from July 14t 2023, until
the conclusion of the 40t Annual General Meeting of the company, at such remuneration plus
applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be determined and recommended by the
Audit committee in consultation with the Auditors and duly approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company.”

Item 5. Appointment of Statutory Auditor

To appoint statutory auditor of the company and to fix their remuneration and if thought fit, to
pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Subject to the provisions of Section pursuant to section 139, 142 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable provisions, if any, M/s Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 000129N), be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company, to hold the office
from the conclusion of 40" Annual General Meeting, for a single term of 5 (five) years at such
remuneration plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses, as may be determined and
recommended by the Audit Committee in consultation with the Auditors and duly approved by
the Board of Directors of the company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Rajeev Khemka, Executive Director cum CFO and Mr. Ashish
Khemka, Executive Director be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and
things to give effect to this resolution.”

Item No: 6

To Approve Continuation of directorship of Mrs. Chander Kala Khemka (DIN: 00103355) as a
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director Beyond the Age of 75 Yearsin terms of Regulation
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17(1A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in this regard, pass the following Resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder (including any
amendments thereto or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Applicable Laws”) approval of the members of the company be and is hereby
accorded to the continuation of directorship of Mrs. Chander Kala Khemka (DIN: 00103260) as
Non-executive Non- Independent Director of the Company beyond the age of 75 years.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to do all such acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to
give effect to this resolution."

Item No: 7 To appoint Mr. Amrish Aggarwal (DIN: 07631515) as an Independent Director of the

Company
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution

as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, and other applicable
provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the rules made thereunder read with Schedule IV of the Act
and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended
from time to time, and in accordance with the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Mr. Amrish Aggarwal (DIN: 07631515), who was appointed as an Additional Director
of the Company in the category of Independent Director with effect from 04t September,2023, be
and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years to hold
office from the conclusion of this (40th) Annual General Meeting ("AGM’) till the conclusion of the
forty fifth (45th) AGM, not liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to take such
steps and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, proper and
expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

Item No: 8 Appointment of Mrs. Vandana Khemka, W/o Mr. Rajeev Khemka (DIN 02479295) as
a Woman Director and Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 160 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the



time being in force), Mrs. Vandana Khemka (DIN: 02479295), who was appointed as an Additional
Director (in the category of woman Director and Non-Executive and Non-Independent) w.e.f.
September 04, 2023 and who holds office as such upto the date of this ensuing Annual General
Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member
under Section 160 of the Act proposing her candidature as a Director, be and is hereby appointed
as a Woman Director in the category of (Non-Executive and Non Independent) Director of the
Company to hold office for a period of five consecutive years up to 034 September, 2028, not liable
to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient
to give effect to this Resolution.

Item 9: Increase in the remuneration pavable to Mr. Vardaan Khemka being related party,
holding office or place of Profit in the Company and in this regard to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188(1) (f) and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), consent of the Members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to Mr. Vardaan Khemka, Related party, to hold an office or place of
profit in the Company and increase in his remuneration to the maximum of % 60 Lacs p.a. over and
above last salary drawn in the Company (presently last salary drawn is Rs. 2 lakhs Per Month) for a
period of three year effective from April 01, 2023, to March 31, 2026, plus Other Perquisites
including company’s contribution to provident fund, bonus and leave travel concession in
accordance with the rules of the Company and in accordance with the provisions of the Act as may
be agreed to between the Board of Directors and Mr. Vardaan Khemka.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and / or any Committee thereof be and is
hereby authorised to settle any question, difficulty or doubts that may arise and to do all such acts,
deeds and things as may be necessary, usual, proper or expedient in this regard.”

Item 10: Increase in the remuneration payable to Mr. Sanjeev Khemka being related party,

holding office or place of Profit in the Company and in this regard to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188(1) (f) and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), consent of the Members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to Mr. Sanjeev Khemka, Related party, to hold an office or place of profit
in the Company and increase in his remuneration to the maximum of % 84 Lacs p.a. over and above
last salary drawn in the Company (presently last salary drawn is Rs. 3.25 lakhs Per Month) for a
period of three year effective from October 01, 2023, to September 30, 2026, plus Other Perquisites
including company’s contribution to provident fund, bonus and leave travel concession in



accordance with the rules of the Company and in accordance with the provisions of the Act as may
be agreed to between the Board of Directors and Mr. Sanjeev Khemka.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and / or any Committee thereof be and is
hereby authorised to settle any question, difficulty or doubts that may arise and to do all such acts,
deeds and things as may be necessary, usual, proper or expedient in this regard.”

Item 11: To Approve the revised payment of Remuneration to Mr. Rajeev Khemka, (DIN:
00103260), Executive Director cum CFO of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 read with Schedule V and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), approval of the members be
and is hereby accorded to payment of such revised remuneration to Mr. Rajeev Khemka, (DIN:
00103260), WTD cum CFO, for the period from October 1, 2023 for a period of three years up to 30t
September 2026 as set out in the statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting with the
liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed
to include any Committee of the Board constituted to exercise its powers, including the powers
conferred by this resolution) to alter and vary the said terms and conditions of appointment and /
or remuneration, subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof;

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give
effect to this resolution

Item 12: To Approve the revised payment of Remuneration to Mr. Ashish Khemka, (DIN:
00103321), Executive Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 read with Schedule V and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), approval of the members be
and is hereby accorded to payment of such revised remuneration to Mr. Ashish Khemka, (DIN:
00103321), WTD, for the period from October 1, 2023 for a period of three years upto 30t
September 2026 as set out in the statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting with the
liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed
to include any Committee of the Board constituted to exercise its powers, including the powers
conferred by this resolution) to alter and vary the said terms and conditions of appointment and /



or remuneration, subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof;

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give
effect to this resolution

Item 13: To Approve the revised payment of Remuneration to Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka, (DIN:
07484360), Executive Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 read with Schedule V and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), approval of the members be
and is hereby accorded to payment of such revised remuneration to Mr. Deeptanshu Khembka,
(DIN: 07484360), WTD, for the period from October 1, 2023 for a period of three years upto 30t
September 2026 as set out in the statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting with the
liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed
to include any Committee of the Board constituted to exercise its powers, including the powers
conferred by this resolution) to alter and vary the said terms and conditions of appointment and /
or remuneration, subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof;

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give
effect to this resolution

Registered Office By Order of the Board of Directors
E-292, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi For M/s KCL Limited
110044, India, Ph:011-26955419
CIN:L74899DL1983PLC068008

Email: cs@kcl.co.in Amit Aggarwal

Web: www .kcl.co.in Company Secretary and Compliance officer
Membership No: A28783

Date:

Place:
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Notes:

1. The Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (‘Act) setting out material facts
concerning the business with respect to Item Nos. 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 forms part of this Notice. Additional information,
pursuant to Regulations 36(3) and 36(5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015, (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) and Secretarial Standard- 2 on General
Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Director retiring by rotation seeking
re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting (‘Meeting’ or ‘AGM’) is furnished as an Annexure to the Notice.

2. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has, vide its Circular no.21/2021, dated December 14, 2021 read
together with circular dated January 13, 2021, April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 5, 2020 (collectively referred to
as “MCA Circulars”), permitted convening the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”)
| Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In
accordance with the MCA circulars, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”) and Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”), however the AGM of the Company is being held through physical mode instead of VC/ OAVM. In
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) and MCA Circulars, the 40™ AGM of the Company
is being held through physically mode on Saturday, 30t September 2023, at 11:00 A.M. (IST).

3. The deemed venue for 40t AGM shall be at the Registered Office of the Company at E-292, Sarita Vihar, New
Delhi-110044.

4. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020
and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to
be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency.
The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the
AGM will be provided by NSDL.

5. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at
the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This
will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the
EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

6. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the company.

8. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the

AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.kcl.co.inThe Notice can also be accessed from
the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. MSEI Limited atwww.msei.in. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e.,
www.evotingnsdl.com

In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the
Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

Listing Regulations has mandated that for making dividend payments, companies whose securities are listed on the
stock exchanges shall use electronic clearing services (local, regional or national), direct credit, real time gross
settlement, national electronic funds transfer etc. The companies and the registrar and share transfer agents are
required to seek relevant bank details of shareholders from depositories/ investors for making payment of dividends
in electronic mode. It is also mandatory to print the bank details on the physical instrument if the payment is made
in physical mode. Accordingly, shareholders are requested to provide or update (as the case may be) their bank
details with the respective depository participant for the shares held in dematerialized form and with the registrar
and share transfer agent in respect of shares held in physical form. For further details about registration process,
please contact your depository/ R&TA of the Company.

SEBI has mandated the updation of PAN, contact, Bank account, specimen signature and nomination details,
against folio / demat account. PAN is also required to be updated for participating in the securities market, deletion
of name of deceased holder and transmission / transposition of shares. As per applicable SEBI Circular, PAN
details are to be compulsorily linked to Aadhar details by the date specified by Central Board of Direct Taxes.
Members are requested to submit PAN, or intimate all changes pertaining to their bank details, mandates,
nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, specimen
signature (as applicable) etc., to their Depository Participant ("DP") in case of holding in dematerialized form or to
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents through Form ISR-1, Form ISR-2 and Form ISR-3 (as applicable)
in case of holdings in physical form.

As per the provisions of the Act and applicable SEBI Circular, Members holding shares in physical form may file
nomination in the prescribed Form SH- 13 with Registrar and Share Transfer Agents or make changes to their
nomination details through Form SH-14 and Form ISR-3. In respect of shares held in dematerialized form, the
nomination form may be filed with the respective DP.

Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated
January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while
processing service requests, viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; renewal/ exchange of securities certificate;
endorsement; sub-division/ splitting of securities certificate; consolidation of securities certificates/folios;
transmission and transposition. Further SEBI vide its circularNo. SEBI/ HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/65
dated May 18, 2022 has simplified the procedure and standardized the format of documents for transmission of
securities. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed
Form ISR-4 & ISR-5, as the case may be.

SEBI has mandated that securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form. In view of
the above and to avail various benefits of dematerialization, Members are advised to dematerialize shares held by
them in physical form, for ease in portfolio management.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, Register of Contracts or
Arrangements in which Directors are interested and other documents referred to in the Notice and explanatory
statement, will be available electronically for inspection via a secured platform without any fee by the members
during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection by the
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such
documents can send an email to cs@kcl.co.in.

Members are requested to notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as
possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of
holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified.

Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are requested to send
to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, the details of such folios together with the share
certificates along with the requisite KYC documents for consolidating their holdings in one folio. Requests for
consolidation of share certificates shall be processed in dematerialized form

Non-Resident Indian members are requested to inform RTA / respective DPs, immediately of:

a) Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.

b) Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, account
number and address of the bank with pin code number, if not furnished earlier.

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Vivek Rawal, Partner of M/s Vikas Verma & Associates,
New Delhi as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting during the AGM and remote e-voting process in a fair and
transparent manner.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday 23r
September 2023 to Saturday 30" September 2023 (both day inclusive).

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first download the votes cast at the
AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and shall within 48 hours of conclusion of the
AGM shall submit a consolidated Scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favor of or against, if any, to the
Chairman or any other person authorized by the Chairman, who shall countersign the same and declare the result
of the voting forthwith.

The results along with Scrutinizer's Report, shall be displayed at the Registered Office and Corporate office of the
Company and placed on the Company's website at www.kcl.co.inand the website of NSDL immediately after the
result is declared. The results shall be simultaneously communicated to the Stock Exchange where the securities of
the Company are listed. The resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the date of AGM subject to receipt of the
requisite number of votes in favour of the resolutions.

the Route Map of the AGM is annexed in this Notice.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE
AS UNDER:

The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, 27" September, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and
ends on Friday, 29" September, 2023 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of
Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 23" September 2023, may
cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their
share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 23"
September2023.
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How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are
mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in
order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual ~ Shareholders 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of
holding securities in demat NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a
mode with NSDL. Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services

home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this
will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be
able to see e-Voting services under Value added services.
Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL
and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period
If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.j

Sp
2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser
by typing the following URL:

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User
ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you
can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be
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redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period.
Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code
mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

MN5SDL Mabile .ﬂ;p-p iz avallable an

‘Appﬂmre r Google Play

Individual ~ Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with CDSL

1)

2)

3)

4)

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility,
can login through their existing user id and password.
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page
without any further authentication. The users to login
Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New
System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi
username & password.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able
to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where
the evoting is in progress as per the information provided
by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period. Additionally, there is also links provided to
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so
that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’
website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to
register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com
and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then
click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page
by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from
a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user
will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting
is in progress and also able to directly access the system
of all e-Voting Service Providers.
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Individual Shareholders | You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
(holding  securities  in | account through your Depository Participant registered with
demat mode) login through | NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be
their depository | able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will
participants be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in demat mode with | contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 -
2499 7000

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in demat mode with | contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll free
no. 1800 22 55 33
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B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.

2.

5.

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat | Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical
a) For Members who hold shares in | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
demat account with NSDL. Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300***
and Client ID is 12****** then your user
ID is IN3QQ*** ] 2%*4H4%

b) For Members who hold shares in | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is
[ 2 AFAA A A REXEX then your user ID is
12**************

c¢) For Members holding shares in | EVEN Number followed by Folio

Physical Form. Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001***
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001 ***

Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing
password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to
retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the
system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(1) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the
company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email
ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open
the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for
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6.

7.

8.
9.

shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and
your ‘initial password’.

(i1) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below
in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have

forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode)
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) Ifyou are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting
on the check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which
you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting
period.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
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General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote,
to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to service@vvanda.comwith a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can
also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking
on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their
login.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event,
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to
Snehal Bhame, Assistant Manager at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions
set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of
PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to

cs@kcel.co.in

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID

or 16-digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account
statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@kcl.co.in. If you are an Individual shareholder holding
securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1
(A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode.

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for

procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9. 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013

ITEM NO.4:

The members of the company at its 39" AGM held on dated 30t September 2022 had appointed
M/s Deepanshu A Goel & Associates, Chartered Accountant Firm Registration No. 038933N as
the statutory auditor of the company to hold office from the conclusion of 39t AGM till the
conclusion of 44t AGM of the company.

M/s Deepanshu A Goel & Associates, Chartered Accountant vide their letter dated 12.07.2023
have resigned from the position of Statutory auditor of the company, resulting into casual vacancy
in the office of statutory auditor as envisaged by section 139(8) of the Companies Act 2013.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 15t July 2023, as per the recommendation of the
Audit committee and pursuant to the provisions of the Section 139(8) of the Companies Act 2013
has appointed M/s Jagdish Chand & Co, Chartered Accountant,(firm Registration no 000129N) to
hold office as the statutory auditor of the company till the conclusion of 40th AGM and to fill the
casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s Deepanshu A Goel & Associates subject to the
approval by the members at the 40 Annual General Meeting of the company, at such
remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be determined and
recommended by the audit committee in consultation with Auditors and duly approved by the
Board of Directors of the company.

The company has received consent letter and eligibility certificate from M/s Jagdish Chand & Co.
Chartered Accountant to act as statutory auditor of the company in place of M/s Deepanshu A
Goel & Associates along with a confirmation that, their appointment, if made, would be within
the limits prescribed under the companies act 2013

None of the Directors, KMP and their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the aforesaid Ordinary Resolution.

The Board accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. of the
accompanying notice of the approval of the members

ITEM NO.5:

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 15t July 2023 and as per the recommendation of the
Audit committee and pursuant to the provisions of the Section 139 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the companies act 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules
2014 and other applicable provisions if any, recommended the appointment of M/s Jagdish
Chand & Co. as the statutory auditor of the company to hold office for a period of five years, till
the conclusion of the 45 Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2028 at such
remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be determined and
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recommended by the audit committee in consultation with Auditors and duly approved by the
Board of Directors of the company.

The company has received consent letter and eligibility certificate from M/s Jagdish Chand & Co.
Chartered Accountant, to act as statutory auditor of the company in place of M/s Deepanshu A
Goel & Associates along with a confirmation that, their appointment, if made, would be within
the limits prescribed under the companies act 2013

The Company has further obtained a certificate from the auditors of the Company that they meet
the criteria of independence, eligibility and qualification as prescribed in section 141 of the
Companies Act 2013. As required under the SEBI Listing Regulations, M/s Jagdish Chand & Co.
Chartered Accountant, has confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review
Board of ICAL

None of the Directors, KMP and their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the aforesaid Ordinary Resolution.

The Board accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No.5 of the
accompanying notice of the approval of the members

ITEM NO.6:

In terms of the Regulation 17(1A) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, with effect from 1st April 2019, no listed entity
shall appoint or continue the directorship of any person as a non-executive director, who has
attained the age of 75 years, unless a special resolution is passed to that effect. Smt. Chandra Kala
Khemka (DIN: 00103255), has attained the age of 75 years in March 2022. In terms of provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, Smt. Chandra Kala Khemka is liable to retire by rotation and being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors considered and approved the
continuation of Smt. Chandra Kala Khemka as a Non-executive Director Non-Independent
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

No Director except Smt. Chandra Kala Khemka herself and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives are concerned or interested in the proposed Special Resolution.

ITEM NO.7:

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors of the Company have appointed Mr. Amrish Aggarwal as an Additional Director in the
capacity of Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a period from
September 04th, 2023, to September 034, 2028, not liable to retire by rotation, subject to consent of
the Members of the Company at the ensuing AGM.

As an Additional Director, Amrish Aggarwal holds office till the date of the AGM and is eligible
for being appointed as an Independent Director. The Company has received necessary
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declaration(s) from Amrish Aggarwal confirming that he meets the criteria as prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations).

Mrs. Amrish Aggarwal is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director under provisions of
Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, nor debarred from holding the office of director by virtue

of any SEBI order or any other such authority and has given his consent to act as a Director of the
Company.

Profile:

EDUCATION QUALIFICATION

Masters ~ University of Leicester, U K Full Time (10th April 2007-15th September 2010)
Bachelors University of Delhi, INDIA Full Time (1st July 1994-20th April 1997)
Year 12 DAV Public School, INDIA Full Time (3rd April 1992-25th March 1994)

Year 10  St. Joseph Convent School, INDIA Full Time (1st April 1982-27th March 1992)
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATION
National Institute of Sales & Marketing, INDIA Full Time (7th July 1997- 27th August 1998)

PROJECT UNDERTAKEN (During MBA)
Relationship between buyer-seller in the metal scrap industry. Evaluating the methods and the

implication these relationship in the metal scrap industry.
WORK EXPERIENCE

Name of Company : Unnati International FZC, UAE

Company Profile : Traders, Importers and Exporters Ferrous and Non-ferrous Recyclable
Metal Scrap

Position : General Manager

Duration : 20th August’ 2002 - till date

Working Hours : 40 hrs per week

Job Profile : Implement Strategies for Operations

Business Development

Formulate policies for introducing new products

Creating Brand Awareness

Exploring opportunities in manufacturing related products
Handling entire logistics for the company

Providing after sale service
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Name of Company
Company Profile
Position

Duration

Working Hours

Job Profile

Name of Company
Company Profile

Position
Duration
Working Hours

Job Profile

Name of Company
Company Profile
Position

Duration

Working Hours
Job Profile

Name of Company
Company Profile
Position

Duration

Marketing & Sales

: Shrimat Alloys Pvt Ltd, INDIA

: Manufacturers of Non-ferrous Metal Alloys
: Director

: 15th October” 2016 - till date

: 40 hrs per week

: Overseeing entire manufacturing process

Implement Strategies for Operations

Business Development

Formulate policies for introducing new products
Formulating and implementing polices for increasing sales
Handling of Human Resources

Creating Brand Awareness

Handling entire logistics for the company

Providing after sale service

Managing Finances

: GE Capital, INDIA
: Back-office operators joint venture with State Bank of India

: Associate Underwriter
: 1st October” 2001 - 30th April” 2002
: 40 hrs per week

: Back-office work

Team works in multinational environment
Target based job
Understanding and analysing financial data

: AERENS Group, INDIA
: Development and running of two portals builda2z and ridhisidhi
: Manager

: 5th October” 2000 - 30th September” 2001
: 40 hrs per week

: Back-office work

Team works in multinational environment
Target based job
Understanding and analysing financial data

: ICICI Capital Services, INDIA

: Financial Institution

: Marketing Representative

: 10th November’ 1999 - 20th September” 2000
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Working Hours : 40 hrs per week

Job Profile : Selling of financial products
After Sale Service
Target based job
ITEM NO.8:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required
to appoint Woman Director on the Board of the Company

In compliance with the above provisions, the Board of Directors, upon the recommendation of the
Committee, had appointed Mrs. Vandana Khemka, W/o Mr. Rajeev Khemka (DIN - 02479295) as
an Additional Director, in the category of Woman Director, Non-Executive and Non-Independent
Director, w.e.f. September 04, 2023 pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mrs. Vandana Khemka, W/ o Mr. Rajeev Khemka (DIN - 02479295) will hold office upto the date
of the ensuing AGM.

The Company has received from Mrs. Vandana Khemka (DIN - 02479295) (i) consent in writing to
act as director in Form DIR 2 pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, (ii) intimation in Form DIR 8 in terms of Companies (Appointment &
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that she is not disqualified under sub-section
(2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, and (iii) a declaration to the effect that she meets the
criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The resolution seeks the approval of members for the appointment of Mrs. Vandana Khemka,
W/o Mr. Rajeev Khemka (DIN - 02479295) as a Woman Director cum Non-Executive and Non-
Independent Director of the Company for the period of three years from September 04, 2023 to
September 034, 2026 pursuant to Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. She is not liable to retire by rotation.

No Director, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, except Mrs. Vandana Khemka (DIN -
02479295), to whom the resolution relates, is interested or concerned, financially or otherwise in
the resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 8 of the accompanying Notice for
approval of the members.

ITEM NO.9:

Mr. Vardaan Khemka, aged 25 years, is a Business Development and Senior Manager of the
Company and has been associated with the Company since 2020. Mr. Vardaan Khemka is a
related party within the definition of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”), as he is
relative of Director(s) of the Company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Act, read
with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (as amended),
appointment of any related party to any office or place of profit in the Company, its Subsidiary

24



Company or Associate Company at a monthly remuneration exceeding 250,000/- requires prior
approval by way of ordinary resolution of the Company. In view of the aforementioned
provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder and that monthly remuneration of Mr. Vardaan
Khemka would be in excess of % 2,50,000/- per month, approval of Members is sought for his
appointment in and payment of remuneration to him by the Company as proposed in the
resolution under this item of business.

Pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Audit committee,
provisions of Section 188 (1) (f) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (“Act”)
(including any statutory modification(s) or reenactments thereof for the time being in force) and in
order to adequately compensate the Mr. Vardaan Khemka and taking into account the size and
operations of the business of the Company, the board of directors of the company at its Meeting
held on 04th September 2023, has approved for increase in remuneration payable to Mr. Vardaan
Khemka upto? 60 Lakhs p.a. over and above last salary drawn salary (presently last salary drawn
is X 2,00,000 Per Month), including Perquisites including company’s contribution to provident
fund, bonus, leave travel concession and Commission if any, in accordance with the rules of the
Company. The requisite disclosures required under the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 are as follows:

Name of the Related Party: Mr. Vardaan Khemka

Name of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel who is related: Mr. Rajeev Khemka, Director
Cum CFO and Mr. Ashish Khemka, Director and Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka, Director.

Nature of Relationship: Mr. Vardaan Khemka is son of Mr. Rajeev Khemka, Director Cum CFO
Nephew of Mr. Ashish Khemka, Director and younger brother of Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka,
Director of the Company.

ITEM NO.10:

Mr. Sanjeev Khemka, Ex-Director of the company, aged 55 years, is a Unit Head of KCL Printing
Division and KCL Foods (A unit of KCL Limited) of the Company and has been associated with
the Company since 1991. Mr. Sanjeev Khemka is a related party within the definition of Section
2(76) of the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”), as he is relative of Director(s) of the Company. Pursuant
to the provisions of Section 188 of the Act, read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (as amended), appointment of any related party to any office or place
of profit in the Company, its Subsidiary Company or Associate Company at a monthly
remuneration exceeding 250,000/- requires prior approval by way of ordinary resolution of the
Company. In view of the aforementioned provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder and
that monthly remuneration of Mr. Sanjeev Khemka would be in excess of % 2,50,000/- per month,
approval of Members is sought for his appointment in and payment of remuneration to him by
the Company as proposed in the resolution under this item of business.
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Pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Audit committee,
provisions of Section 188 (1) (f) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (“Act”)
(including any statutory modification(s) or reenactments thereof for the time being in force) and in
order to adequately compensate the Mr. Sanjeev Khemka and taking into account the size and
operations of the business of the Company, the board of directors of the company at its Meeting
held on 04t September 2023, has approved for increase in remuneration payable to Mr. Sanjeev
Khemka upto? 84 Lakhs p.a. over and above last salary drawn salary (presently last salary drawn
is X 3,25,000 Per Month), including Perquisites including company’s contribution to provident
fund, bonus, leave travel concession and Commission if any, in accordance with the rules of the
Company.The requisite disclosures required under the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 are as follows:

Name of the Related Party: Mr. Sanjeev Khemka

Name of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel who is related: Mr. Rajeev Khemka, Director
Cum CFO and Mr. Ashish Khemka, Director and Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka, Director.

Nature of Relationship: Mr. Sanjeev Khemka is a brother of Mr. Rajeev Khemka, Director Cum
CFO and Mr. Ashish Khemka, Director of the Company.

Item No 11:

Mr. Rajeev Khemka, (DIN: 00103260) was appointed as the WID of the Company in the year 1985
and further appointed him as a CFO of the company w.e.f 30th January 2015. The Board at its
meeting held on 01st July 2014 has approved the remuneration structure payable to Mr. Rajeev
Khemka, WTD on the salary, allowance and perquisites. Further the proposed remuneration to be
paid of such appointment, approval of the members is required. The remuneration proposed to be
paid to Mr. Rajeev Khemka, (DIN: 00103260) the WTD Cum CFO of the Company has also been
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The remuneration proposed
will be within the limits permissible under Schedule V to the Act. Keeping in view, the vast
experience of Mr. Rajeev Khemka, the Board of Directors has recommended the payment of
remuneration for the period from October 1, 2023 to 30th September 2026 of such appointment as
set out herein below:

A. Period: For a period of 3 years commencing from 01st October 2023 to 30t September 2026.

B. Salary: The gross Salary will be Rs 700,000/ -per month including the Perquisites & Allowances
C. Perquisites & Allowances: The following Perquisites & Allowances are included in gross salary
i. House Rent Allowance: House Rent Allowance in accordance with the rules of the Company.

ii. Medical Reimbursement: Expenses incurred for the appointee and his familyas per actual.

iii. Leave Travel Concession: As per rules of the Company.

iv. Club Fees: As per rules of the Company.

v. Personal Accident Insurance: Personal Accident Insurance Cover as applicable in line with rules
& policies of the Company.

vi. Contribution to Provident Fund: As per Company rules.
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vii. Gratuity: As per Company rules subject to maximum of half months’ salary for each
completed year of service.
viii. Encashment of leaves- As per rules of the Company at the end of tenure.

D. General Information:

i. Nature of Industry: The Company engaged in the business of Manufacturing of corrugated
Boxes duplex cartons and other allied related activities.

ii. Date of Commencement of Activity: 21st January, 1983.

iii. Financial performance based on given indicators: The Company has grown rapidly in the
recent years. Turnover increase to I 43762.19Lacs as compared to 339762.92Lacs in the previous
year

Mr. Rajeev Khemka and the relatives of Mr. Rajeev Khemka may be deemed to be interested in the
said resolution to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the company. Save and except
the above, none of the other directors except Mr.Ashish Khemka and Deeptanshu Khemka /Key
Managerial personnel of the company/their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution. This statement may also be registered as an appropriate
disclosure under the Listing regulations. The Board recommends the special resolution set out as
Item No.8 of the notice for approval by members.

ITEM NO. 12:

Mr. Ashish Khemka, (DIN: 00103321) was appointed as the WID of the Company in the year
1996. The Board at its meeting held on 01st July 2014 has approved the remuneration structure
payable to Mr. Ashish Khemka, WTD on the salary, allowance and perquisites. Further the
proposed remuneration to be paid of such appointment, approval of the members is required. The
remuneration proposed to be paid to Mr. Ashish Khemka, (DIN: 00103321) the WTD of the
Company has also been recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The
remuneration proposed will be within the limits permissible under Schedule V to the Act.
Keeping in view, the vast experience of Mr. Ashish Khemka, the Board of Directors has
recommended the payment of remuneration for the period from October 1, 2023 to 30t September
2026 of such appointment as set out herein below:

A. Period: For a period of 3 years commencing from 01st October 2023 to 30t September 2026.

B. Salary: The gross Salary will be X 700,000/ -per month including the Perquisites & Allowances
C. Perquisites & Allowances: The following Perquisites & Allowances are included in gross salary
i. House Rent Allowance: House Rent Allowance in accordance with the rules of the Company.

ii. Medical Reimbursement: Expenses incurred for the appointee and his familyas per actual.

iii. Leave Travel Concession: As per rules of the Company.

iv. Club Fees: As per rules of the Company.

v. Personal Accident Insurance: Personal Accident Insurance Cover as applicable in line with rules
& policies of the Company.

vi. Contribution to Provident Fund: As per Company rules.

vii. Gratuity: As per Company rules subject to maximum of half months’ salary for each
completed year of service.
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viii. Encashment of leaves- As per rules of the Company at the end of tenure.

D. General Information:

i. Nature of Industry: The Company engaged in the business of Manufacturing of corrugated
Boxes duplex cartons and other allied related activities.

ii. Date of Commencement of Activity: 21st January, 1983.

iii. Financial performance based on given indicators: The Company has grown rapidly in the
recent years. Turnover increase to 343762.19Lacs as compared to 339762.92Lacs in the previous
year

Mr. Ashish Khemka and the relatives of Mr. Ashish Khemka may be deemed to be interested in
the said resolution to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the company. Save and
except the above, none of the other directors except Mr. Rajeev Khemka and Deeptanshu Khemka
/Key Managerial personnel of the company/their relatives are in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. This statement may also be registered as an
appropriate disclosure under the Listing regulations. The Board recommends the special
resolution set out as Item No.9 of the notice for approval by members

ITEM NO. 13:

Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka, (DIN: 07484360) was appointed as the WTD of the Company in the year
2016. Further the proposed remuneration to be paid of such appointment, approval of the
members is required. The remuneration proposed to be paid to Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka, (DIN:
07484360) the WTD of the Company has also been recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. The remuneration proposed will be within the limits permissible under
Schedule V to the Act. Keeping in view, the experience of Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka, the Board of
Directors has recommended the payment of remuneration for the period from October 1, 2023 to
30th September 2026 of such appointment as set out herein below:

A. Period: For a period of 3 years commencing from 01st October 2023 to 30th September 2026.

B. Salary: The gross Salary will be % 700,000/ -per month including the Perquisites & Allowances
C. Perquisites & Allowances: The following Perquisites & Allowances are included in gross salary
i. House Rent Allowance: House Rent Allowance in accordance with the rules of the Company.

ii. Medical Reimbursement: Expenses incurred for the appointee and his family as per actual.

iii. Leave Travel Concession: As per rules of the Company.

iv. Club Fees: As per rules of the Company.

v. Personal Accident Insurance: Personal Accident Insurance Cover as applicable in line with rules
& policies of the Company.

vi. Contribution to Provident Fund: As per Company rules.

vii. Gratuity: As per Company rules subject to maximum of half months’ salary for each
completed year of service.

viii. Encashment of leaves- As per rules of the Company at the end of tenure.
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D. General Information:

i. Nature of Industry: The Company engaged in the business of Manufacturing of corrugated
Boxes duplex cartons and other allied related activities.

ii. Date of Commencement of Activity: 21st January, 1983.

iii. Financial performance based on given indicators: The Company has grown rapidly in the
recent years. Turnover increase to 343762.19 Lacs as compared to 339762.92Lacs in the previous
year

Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka and the relatives of Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka may be deemed to be
interested in the said resolution to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the company.
Save and except the above, none of the other directors Mr. Ashish Khemka and Rajeev Khemka
Seth /Key Managerial personnel of the company/their relatives are in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. This statement may also be registered as an
appropriate disclosure under the Listing regulations. The Board recommends the special
resolution set out as Item No.10 of the notice for approval by members

Registered Office

E-292, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi
110044, India, Ph:011-
26955419
CIN:L74899D11983PLC068008
Email: cs@kcl.co.in

Web: www.kcl.co.in

Date:
Place:

By Order of the Board of Directors
For M/s KCL Limited

Amit Aggarwal

Company Secretary and Compliance officer
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE

Details of Director seeking appointment/re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, SS-2] as laid down by the institute of Company
Secretaries of India, additional information relating to the particulars of Director who is proposed to be

re-appointed are given below

Agendaitemno2 & 3
Name Mr. Rajeev Khemka Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka
DIN 00103260 07484360
Date of Birth
Date of first 30/09/1985 08/03/2016
Appointment
Qualifications B.com B. tech from UK and MBA from

Mumbai

Expertise in
specific
functional area

More than 38 Years of videexperience in
Financial matters, Income Tax and

More than 06 years of experience in
the Field of Packaging and Dairy

across all Public
Companies *

Productions and Marketing Products
Directorship in Five Companies Nil
other Companies
*
Memberships /
Chairmanship of | Member in One Committee namely CSR
Committees Nil

Relationship
with other
Directors / Key
Managerial
Personnel

Younger Brother of Mr. Ashish Khemka

Elder Son of Mr. Rajeev Khemka

No. of shares
held in the
Company either
by self or on a
beneficial basis
for any other
person

445825

12000

*Excludes Foreign Companies.
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors” hereby present the 40t Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company, together with the Audited

Statements of Accounts and the Auditors” Report for the year ended 31st March, 2023.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

(In Lacs)

Particulars Financial Year | Financial Year

2022-23 2021-22
Revenue from Operations 43724.37 39735.56
Other Income 37.82 27.36
Total Revenue 43762.19 39762.92
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 29511.41 27346.32
Change in Inventories of finished goods, stock-in 104.16 139.61
trade and work in progress
Employee Benefit Expenses 2109.42 2898.45
Finance Cost 386.82 421.09
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 1274.26 1427.12
Other Expenses 8298.43 6083.89
Total Expenses 41684.51 38322.00
Profit/ (loss) before tax 2077.68 1440.92
Tax Expenses 647.03 442.63
Profit for the year 1430.65 998.29
Other Comprehensive Income 6.02 9.16
Total Comprehensive Income 1424.64 1007.46

2. DIVIDEND AND GENERAL RESERVE:

The Board of Directors of the Company have not recommended any dividend on Equity
Shares for the year under review.

3. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND STATEMENT OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

During the year under review, your Company was able to achieve turnover of 343762.19Lacs
as against ¥39762.92Lacs in the previous year, translating to a growth of 10.05 %YOY.

Further your company has earned PAT for FY 2023 at X 1430.65 Lacs compared to ¥998.29 Lacs
in FY 2022, translating to a growth 0f43.31%YOY.

4. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There were no changes in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year.
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5. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Share Capital
As on March 31, 2023, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company was < 5,00,00,000 divided
into 50,000,00 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Paid Up Share Capital
As on March 31, 2023, the Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company was % 3,00,00,85
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each aggregating to  3,00,00,850.

Equity shares lying in the Suspense Account

In compliance with Para F of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, your Company confirms that no shares of the Company are
lying in the Suspense Account.

6. AMOUNT TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES

The Board of Directors of the Company have not transferred any amount to the Reserves for
the year under review.

7. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Rahul Jain DIN: 02422075 has not attended any of the meeting in the complete FY 2021-22.
As per Section 167 of the Companies Act, 2013 if a director absence himself from all the meetings of the
board of directors held during a period of 12 months with or without seeking leave of absence of the
Board, his/her office has been automatically vacated as per the aforementioned provision.
Hence Mr. Rahul Jain shall be vacated with immediate effect from the office of director from
the company.

Mr. Sanjeev Khemka, Ex-Director of the company has not been reappointed by the members
of the company in the Annual General Meeting of the company held on Friday, 30t September
2022 at the Registered office of the company. Members has casted total 1689375 votes against
the resolution item no 3.

During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company is comprised of following directors:

S.NO | Name of the Directors Designation

1 Mr. Rajeev Khemka Executive Director cum CFO

2 Mr. Ashish Khemka Executive Director

3 Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka Executive Director

4 *Mr. Sanjeev Jain Independent Director

6 **Mrs. Chandra Kala Khemka Woman Director Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director

7 Mr. Amarjit Kochhar Independent Director

8 Mr. Salil Narang Independent Director
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*Note: Mr. Sanjeev Jain, ID of the company has not attended any of the Board Meeting held
during the financial year ended 31st March 2023. Therefore, as per the provisions of Section
167(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2013, the office of Mr. Sanjeev Jain has been vacated
automatically.

**Note: Pl noted that as per Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, prior approval of
members by way of Special Resolution required to continue the directorship beyond the age of
75 years. Mrs. Chander Kala Khemka is a Promoter Director and continue as a Non-Executive
cum Non-Independent Director of the company.

8. RESTRUCTURING OF OPERATIONS OF COMPANY FOR BETTER OPERATIONAL
EFFICIENCY, EFFECTIVENESS AND BETTER CUSTOMER SATISFACTION
In pursuit of its strategic growth objectives, KCL is actively engaged in the process of

assessing its current business structure and available land resources. This evaluation is aimed
at ensuring that the company is well-prepared for the future. By scrutinizing its existing
business framework and available land assets, KCL aims to optimize its operations and
position itself for the next phase of growth. This proactive approach reflects the company's
commitment to sustainability and long-term success, aligning its strategies with evolving
market dynamics and opportunities

9. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Company has complied the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards i.e. S5-1 and SS-

2, issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central
Government under Section - 118 (10) of the Act during the year under Report.

10.DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
As required under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm
that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2023, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed and there are no material
departures from the same;

(ii) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023 and of the profit
or loss of the Company for that period;

(iii) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities;

(iv) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.
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(v) the Directors, have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

(vi) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

11.STATUTORY AUDITOR & AUDITORS” REPORT

M/s Deepanshu A Goel & Associates, Chartered Accountant (FRN: 038933N), were appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the company in the Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 30th September, 2022 to hold office from the conclusion of 39thAnnual General
Meeting till the conclusion of 44t AGM of the company. However, M/s Deepanshu A Goel &
Associates, Chartered Accountant vide its letter dated 12th July, 2023 have resigned from the
position of the Statutory Auditors of the Company citing the reasons that suffering from
depression & anxiety and therefore tendering the resignation with immediate effect.

Based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors, at its meeting
held on 15th July, 2023 noted and accepted the resignation of M/s Deepanshu A Goel &
Associates, Chartered Accountant. The Board also placed on record its appreciation to
outgoing Auditors for their contribution to the Company with their audit processes and
standards of auditing.

In this regard, after obtaining their consent and eligibility certificate under Section 139(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on July
15, 2023 appointed M/s Jagdish Chand & Co. Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
Number: 000129N) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company under Section 139(8) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to fill the casual vacancy consequent to the resignation of M/s M/s
Deepanshu A Goel & Associates, Chartered Accountant.

M/s Jagdish Chand & Co. Chartered Accountants is also holding a Peer Review Certificate
No. 012757 dated February 02, 2021 issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India valid till 31.03.2024.

As required by Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment is also to be
ratified and approved at a general meeting of the Company. Accordingly, the Board of
Directors recommends the said appointment for the ratification and approval of shareholders
at the ensuing AGM of the Company.

Further, the Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and subject to the
approval of the shareholders, approved appointment of M/s Jagdish Chand & Co. Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 000129N)as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
for a period of 5 (five) years from the conclusion of the ensuing 40trAGM till the conclusion of
the 45th AGM to be held in the year 2028 at such remuneration plus out of pocket expenses
and applicable taxes, as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the
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Company and the Auditors.

Appropriate resolution seeking Members approval for the appointment of M/s Jagdish Chand
& Co. as the Statutory Auditors of the Company is appearing in the Notice convening the
ensuing AGM of the Company.

The members are requested to note that the statutory Audit for FY 2022-23 was not conducted
by M/s Deepanshu A Goel & Associates, Chartered Accountant and further M/s Jagdish
Chand & Co, Chartered Accountant have conducted the statutory audit for the financial year
2022-23 only on the basis of recommendation of the audit committees and consent of Board of
Directors, in the meeting held on 15t July 2023 subject to the approval of the members in the
general meeting.

The Notes to the financial statements referred in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and
therefore do not call for any comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The

Auditors' Report is enclosed with the financial statements in the Annual Report.

Auditors’ Qualifications and Management’s Reply:

Details of Audit Qualifications:

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and

do not call for any further comments. The Auditors” Report contain some qualification.

S.No Auditors Qualifications Management Reply
1 As stated in note 6.1 in the accompanying statement of | Management fully trying to
standalone financial statements, the Company has | approach the prospective
given loan to a related party company, M/s KCL Milk | buyers, however, due to
Products India Pvt Ltd, amounting to Rs. 966.44 | COVID-19 pandemic and
Lakhs. This related party has negative net worth as per | market recession unable to
last available audited financial statement. As described | search ~ the  prospective
in the note, the management, on the basis of its | buyers and therefore the
internal assessment, has considered this loan as fully | same is not determinable as
recoverable and in the opinion of management, no | also given in Note no.6.1 of
provision for diminution of value is required. In | the standalone financial
absence of sufficient audit evidence to support the | results which is self-
management’s aforesaid assessment, we are unable to | explanatory.
comment upon the recoverability of such loan.
2 No adjustment of Revenue has been considered in some | Self-Explanatory
cases for Variable consideration of freight in terms of
Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contract with
Customers”) where sale price is inclusive of freight
3 Excess Managerial Remuneration of Rs. 3.19 Lakhs | Management replied to our
has been paid without approval of members in the | prestigious shareholders of
General Meeting of the Company the company that the salary
of Board of Directors of the
company has been increased
in the year 2014 and till
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date there is no
enhancement/hike in the
salary of Executive
Directors. Here it is
pertinent to mention that
the directors have received
the salary  from  the
company as per Board
resolution  passed  and
approval of members of the
company. However, due to
inadvertently some medical
expenses and others etc.
have been reimbursed from
the company through which
the same has been crossed
the threshold limit.

The subsidiary company has not complied with the
provisions of section 186 of the companies Act 2013
while extending loan to Holding Company of ¥ 9.50
Lakhs

The management
incorporated a WOS for
doing business and enhance
the value of shareholders.
However, due to some
unavoidable circumstances
the project was stopped and
no business was carried out
by the company from the
last 2 years. Pl noted that
the Board of Directors of
the holding company has
given consent for closure of
the WOS.

Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors
appointed M/s. Vikas Verma & Associates, Company Secretaries, having its registered office
at B-502, Statesman House, 148, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi - 110001 as Secretarial Auditor
for the year 2022-2023. The Report of the Secretarial Audit is annexed herewith as Annexure-1.
The said Secretarial Audit Report contains qualifications and these are mentioned below in

tabular form.

Sr. Compliance Requirement | Deviations Observations/ Management
No (Regulations/ circulars / Remarks of the | Reply in respect
guidelines including Practicing Company | of the various
specific clause) Secretary observations
related to the
SEBI (LODR)
Regulations
2015
1. Regulation 33 of the SEBI | Non-Submission | Company  haven’t | Due to resigning
(Listing Obligations and | of Audited | filed the Audited | of the existing
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Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

Financial Results
as on 31% March,
2023

Financial Results for
the year ended 31st
March, 2023.

Disclosures in pursuant of
Regulation 31(4) of SEBI
(SAST) Regulations, 2011.

Company has not
filed with stock
exchange annual
disclosures with
respect to shares
encumbered by
promoters or by
persons acting in
concert with him

Non-Submission of
Annual Disclosures as
per Regulation 31(4)
of  SEBI  (SAST)
Regulations, 2011.

Statutory
Auditor, delay in
submission  of
audited financial
results for the
year ended 31%
March 2023

We will take
care the
compliances,

so that the

same will not
occur in future.

Regulation 15 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

As on 31%
March, 2022,
company’s paid
up capital is Rs.
300.01 Lacs
and Net worth
is Rs.10730.23

Lacs. As per
Regulation
15(2) the
compliance
with the
corporate
governance
provisions  as
specified in
regulations17,
50[17A,] 18,
19, 20, 21,22,
23, 24,
51[24A,] 25,
26, 27 and

clauses (b) to
(1)52[and (t)] of
sub-regulation

) of
regulation46

and para C , D
and E of
Schedule \Y

shall not apply,
in respect of -
(a) 53[a] listed
entity  having
paid up equity

As per our opinion,

the net worth is
exceeding the
exemption limit,
therefore, As per

Regulation 15(2) the
compliance with the
corporate governance
provisions as specified
in regulations17,
50[17A,] 18, 19, 20,
21,22, 23, 24,
51[24A,] 25, 26, 27
and clauses (b) to

(i)52 [and (t)] of sub-
regulation (2) of
regulation 46 and

para C , D and E of

Schedule V becomes
applicable on the
company.

However, company

secretary has started
compliances from
quarter ended 31%
Marc, 2023 onwards.

The company has
already informed
the MSEI in the

last year April
2022, regarding
the Non

applicability of
the provisions of
Regulations15 of

SEBI (LODR)
Regulations 2015
along with the
enclosures of
necessary
certificate
received from
M/s Pradeep
Debnath & Co
(Practicing
Company
Secretary). Later

on, the company
has complied the
provisions of SEBI
(LODR) as per
request from
MSEL.
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share  capital
not exceeding
rupees ten
crore and net
worth not
exceeding

rupees twenty

five crore , as
on the last day
of the previous

financial year.

As net worth is

exceeding  the

exemption

limit, therefore,

regulation

becomes

applicable  on

the company.
As per Regulation 38 of | As per the | As per Regulation 38 | The company has
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, | shareholding of SEBI (LODR) | replied in detailed
2015 pattern Regulations, 2015 the | about the

submitted by listed entity shall | Regulations 38 of

the company on | comply  with  the | SEBI (LODR)

the stock | minimum public | Regulations 2015

exchange in | shareholding vide letter dated

which it | requirements 03.04.2023

mentioned specified in Rule 19

promoter’s (2) and Rule 19 A of

shareholding as | the Securities

60.40% and Contracts (Regulation)

public Rules, 1957 in the

shareholding is manner as specified

39.60%, by the board from

however. Public time to time. Further,

Shareholziing Rule 19 A of the

includes 4 Securitie.s Contracts

sharcholders (Regulation) Rules,

namely khemka
leasing private
limited holding
16.15%,
Khemka
Packaging
private Limited
as 6.67%,
Khemka
Knitwear
Private Limited
holding 0.32%
and  Ginni

1957 prescribes that a

listed entity must
have at least 25 per
cent of public

shareholding, that is,
anyone other than a

promoter. However,
in KCL Limited
promoter

shareholding exceeds
75% which means the
public shareholding is
less than 25% which is
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Packaging

Private Limited
holding 4.46 %.
During the
audit conducted
by us, we
observed  that
the promoters

of these 4
entities are
same as KCL
Limited
Promoters.
As per the

Regulation 2
(pp) (iv) (A) of
SEBI (ICDR),
Regulations,
2018 in case of
promoter is an
individual:
Anybody
corporate in
which  twenty
per cent or
more of the
equity share
capital is held
by the promoter
or an immediate
relative of the
promoter or a
firm or HUF in
which promoter
or any one or
more of their
relative is a
member,
Hence, these 4
entities shall be
mentioned  in
promoters &
promoters’
group in KCL
Limited also.
Further, after
including these
4 entities in
promoters’
group, the

the contravention of
abovementioned
provisions.
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promoter’s
shareholding
exceeds 75%.

Internal Auditor:

Pursuant to the provision of Section 134 of companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M.L Bhansali & Co. is
being appointed as an Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2022-23.

12. LISTING OF SECURITIES
The Company is listed on the MSEI and is regular in paying the annual listing fee to the stock

exchange.
13.MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND OTHER COMMITTEES:

Meetings of the Board

During the year, the Board of Directors met 9 (Nine) times during the financial year 2022-23
including adjourned meeting, the details of which are given below in the tabular form of this
Annual Report. The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.

The Board held nine meetings during the period ended on 31st March, 2023 i.e., on (i) 08t
April 2022, (ii) 07th May 2022, (iii) 30t"May 2022, (Adjourned 07t June 2022) (iv) 14%June 2022,
(v) 05thAugust, 2022, (vi) 27t August 2022, (vii) 08t September 2022, (viii) 14t November 2022,
(viiii) 14th February 2023

Attendance at the meetings of the Board during the financial year ended 31st March 2023 was

as follows:
No. of No. of
Name of the Director Category meetings meetings
held attended
. Executive Director cum
Mr. Rajeev Khemka CFO 9 9
Mr. Sanjeev Khemka Executive Director 9 7
Mr. Ashish Khemka Executive Director 9 9
Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka | Executive Director 9 9
Woman Director cum 9
Mrs. Chandra Kala Non-executive and 1
Khemka non-independent
Director
Mr. Sanjeev Jain Independent Director 9 0
Mr. Amarjit Kochhar Independent Director 9 5
Mr. Salil Narang Independent Director 9 7
Other Committee
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The following Committees constituted by the Board function according to their respective
roles and defined scope:

¢ Audit Committee

¢ Nomination & Remuneration Committee

e Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

e Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Details of composition, terms of reference and number of meetings held for respective
committees are given in the Report on Corporate Governance. During the year under review,

all recommendations made by the various committees have been accepted by the Board.

14.DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company has received declaration from independent directors of the Company
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed both under the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

15.POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The current policy is to have an appropriate combination of executive and independent
directors to maintain the independence of the Board. As on 31st March 2023, the Board
consisted of 7 members, three of whom was Executive Directors and three were Independent
Directors and one is Woman cum Non-Executive cum Non-Independent Director. The Board
will annually evaluate the need for change in its composition and size. The policy of the
Company on directors' appointment and remuneration, including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided
under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, adopted by the Board. The remuneration
paid to the directors is as per the terms of the companies act 2013 and accordingly as per the
recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration committee of the Company.

16.BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015,
Independent Directors at their meeting held in the financial year 2022-23 and without the
participation of the Non-independent Directors and Management, considered/evaluated the
Boards’ performance, Performance of the appointed Chairman of the meeting and other Non-
independent Directors. SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 mandates that the Board shall monitor
and review the Board evaluation framework. The Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal
annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own performance and that of its
committees and individual directors. The Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 states that
the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the Board of Directors,
excluding the director being evaluated. The evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a
whole was conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted by the Board.
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17.RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board takes responsibility for the overall process of risk management throughout the
organization. Through an Enterprise Risk Management programme, our business units and
corporate functions address risks through an institutionalized approach aligned to our
objectives. This is facilitated by corporate finance. The Business risk is managed through
cross-functional involvement and communication across businesses. The results of the risk
assessment are presented to the senior management.

18.PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the period, and as per the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements,
the company has not received any public deposits.

19.BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (BRR)

Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide circular CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2012 dated August
13, 2012 has mandated the inclusion of BRR as part of the Annual Report for the top 100 listed
entities. In view of the requirements specified, the Company is not mandated for the
providing the BRR and hence do not form part of this Report.

20.MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report as stipulated under Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule-V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is presented in a separate section in this
Annual Report.

21.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and
outgo are as follows:

(A) Conservation of energy: N.A.
(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;
(i) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy;
(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s;

(B) Technology absorption: N.A.

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption;

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or
import substitution;

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year:-
(a) the details of technology imported;
(b) the year of import;
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(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed;
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons
thereof; and

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:
The Company had no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the financial year

22. WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR & CFO AND FINANCE MANAGER CERTIFICATION

As required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Whole Time
Director & CFO and Finance Manager’s Certification is at Annexure-II.

23.MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company between the end of the financial year and date of this report. There has been no
change in the nature of business or any activity of business of the Company

24.SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year under review, a wholly owned subsidiary company was incorporated namely
M/s KCL Paper Mill Private Limited, owned by M/s KCL Limited on dated 21.04.2021.
However, due to unavoidable circumstances, the company has not commenced any business
operations in the subsidiary company for the period ended 31.03.2023.

25.TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no
dividend declared and paid in previous years.

26.STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL
WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

According to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the term “Internal Financial Control
(IFC)” means the policies and procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies,
safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial
information. The Company has adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the
size, scale and complexity of its operations.
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27.PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION
186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The details of Loans and Investments and guarantees covered under the provisions of Section
186 of the Act are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Annual
Report.

28.CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract/ arrangement / transaction
with related parties which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the
Company on materiality of related party transactions or which is required to be reported in
Form No. AOC-2 in terms of Section 134(3)(h) read with Section 188 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the same is attached to this report. (Annexure III).

All the contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial
year with related parties were in its ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis.
Your directors draw attention of the Members to Note 45 (a) & (b) of Notes on Accounts to the
financial statement which sets out related party disclosures.

There were no transactions of material nature with Directors/ Promoters or any related entity,
which will have any potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

29.PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS PER RULE 5(2) OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014:

As regards information under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, we have to state as under: -

(a) That none of the employees, if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of
remuneration for that year, which in the aggregate was not less than INR 1,02,00,000 (one
crore and two lakh rupees);NIL

(b) That none of the employees, if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of
remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate which in the aggregate was not less than INR
8,50,000 per month (eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees per month);NIL

(c) That none of the employees, if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was
in receipt of remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate
which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time
director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children,
not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company.NIL

30.THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
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In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act “The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013” has
been notified on 9th December, 2013. Under the said Act every company is required to set up
an Internal Complaints Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at
work place of any women employee.

31.CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY [CSR]:

In accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder, your Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
of Directors. The role of the Committee is to review CSR activities of the Company
periodically and recommend to the Board amount of expenditure to be spent on CSR
annually.

The detailed report on CSR activities carried out by the Company during FY 2022-23 is
annexed to this report as Annexure IV.

S.No Name of the Committee Member/Director Designation
1 Mr. Rajeev Khemka, Director Chairman
2 Mr. Sanjeev Khemka Member
3 Mr. Salil Narang, Independent Director Independent Director

During the year 2022-23, the Company had identified certain projects/activities on which the
CSR expenditure for the financial year 2022-23 was made. The activities included promoting
health care including preventive health care, facilities for senior citizens and measures for
reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups, animal welfare
etc. Details about the CSR policy and initiatives taken by the Company during the year are
available on your company’s website www.kcl.co.in

32.SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS:

There are no significant and material order passed by the regulators or Courts or Tribunal’s
Impacting the going concern status of our Company and its operation in future.

33.VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its constituents in a fair and transparent
manner by adopting the highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical
behavior. Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 22 of
the Listing Regulations, the company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil
mechanism of directors and employees to report to the management instances of unethical
behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics
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policy. The vigil mechanism provides a mechanism for employees of the Company to
approach the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Company for redressal. No person
has been denied access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The policy of vigil

mechanism is available on the Company’s website athttp://www.kcl.co.in

34.STATEMENT ON OTHER COMPLIANCES

Your director state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items

as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

a. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

b. Issue of equity shares with differential voting rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;

c. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares and employees” stock options schemes) to
employees of the Company.

d. Neither the Managing Director nor any of the Whole-time Directors of the Company
receive any remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiaries;

e. Fraud reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors of the
Company;

f. Scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by employees or by
trustees for the benefit of employees;

g. Payment of remuneration or commission from any of its holding or subsidiary companies
to the Managing Director of the Company;

h. Issue of debentures/bonds/warrants/any other convertible securities.

i. Details of any application filed for Corporate Insolvency under Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

j-  Instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.
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have immense respect for every person who risked their life and safety to fight this pandemic.
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contribution towards the Company’s performance. The Directors would also like to thank the
shareholders, employees, customers, dealers, suppliers, bankers, governments and all other
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management.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

M/s KCL Limited
Mr. Rajeev Khemka Mr. Ashish Khemka
Executive Director Executive Director

Place: Faridabad
Date:
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Board’s Report

Annexure-A

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31/03/2023

To,

The Members,

KCL LIMITED,

E-292, SARITA VIHAR,
NEW DELHI-110044

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by KCL Limited (hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the KCL Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby
report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on 31% March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by KCL Limited for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2023, according to the
provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

c¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; (No transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period)
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d)

e)

f)

g)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (No transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (No
transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (No
transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period)

As informed to us the following other laws specifically applicable to the Company as under and as
confirmed & declared by the management, the Company has duly complied the same: -

1.

ok wn

The Employees Provident fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 along with labor laws.
Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

Payment Gratuity Act, 1972

Factories Act, 1949

Environmental Act, and its allied applicable laws

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii. The Listing Agreements/ Regulations including the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above save and except the following: -.

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/
guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below: -

Sr. No | Compliance Requirement | Deviations Observations/
(Regulations/ circulars / guidelines Remarks of the
including specific clause) Practicing Company

Secretary

1. Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing | Non-Submission of Audited | Company haven’t
Obligations and Disclosure | Financial Results as on 31% | filed the Audited
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 March, 2023 Financial Results

for the year ended
31st March, 2023.
2. Disclosures in pursuant  of | Company has not filed with | Non-Submission  of

Regulation 31(4) of SEBI (SAST) | stock exchange annual | Annual Disclosures as
Regulations, 2011. disclosures with respect to | per Regulation 31(4)
shares encumbered by | of SEBI (SAST)
promoters or by persons | Regulations, 2011.

acting in concert with him
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Regulation 15 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

As on 31% March, 2022,
company’s paid up capital
is Rs. 300.01 Lacs and Net
worth is Rs.10730.23 Lacs.
As per Regulation 15(2)
the compliance with the
corporate governance
provisions as specified in
regulations17, S0[17A,] 18,
19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24,
51[24A,] 25, 26, 27 and
clauses (b) to (1)52[and (t)]
of sub-regulation (2) of
regulation46 and para C ,
D and E of Schedule V
shall not apply, in respect
of -(a) 53[a] listed entity
having paid up equity share
capital not exceeding
rupees ten crore and net
worth not exceeding rupees
twenty five crore , as on
the last day of the previous
financial year. As net
worth is exceeding the
exemption limit, therefore,
regulation becomes
applicable on the company.

As per our opinion,

the net worth s
exceeding the
exemption limit,

therefore, As per
Regulation 15(2) the
compliance with the

corporate
governance
provisions as
specified in

regulations17,
50[17A,] 18, 19, 20,
21,22, 23, 24,
51[24A,] 25, 26, 27
and clauses (b) to
(i)52 [and (t)] of sub-
regulation (2) of
regulation 46 and
para C, D and E of
Schedule V becomes
applicable on the
company.

However, company
secretary has started
compliances from
quarter ended 31°
Marc, 2023 onwards.

As per Regulation 38 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015

As per the shareholding
pattern submitted by the

company on the stock
exchange in which it
mentioned promoter’s
shareholding as 60.40%

and public shareholding is
39.60%, however, Public

shareholding includes 4
shareholders namely
khemka leasing private

limited holding 16.15%,
Khemka Packaging private
Limited as 6.67%, Khemka
Knitwear Private Limited
holding 0.32% and

Ginni  Packaging
Private Limited holding
4.46 %. During the audit

conducted by us, we
observed that the
promoters of these 4

entities are same as KCL

As per Regulation 38
of  SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015
the listed entity shall
comply with the
minimum public
shareholding
requirements
specified in Rule 19
(2) and Rule 19 A of
the Securities
Contracts
(Regulation)  Rules,
1957 in the manner
as specified by the
board from time to
time. Further, Rule
19 A of the Securities
Contracts
(Regulation)  Rules,
1957 prescribes that
a listed entity must
have at least 25 per
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Limited Promoters. cent of public
shareholding, that is,
As per the Regulation 2 | anyone other than a
(pp) (iv) (A) of SEBI | promoter. However,
(ICDR), Regulations, 2018 | in  KCL  Limited
in case of promoter is an | Promoter

individual: shareholding exceeds
Anybody  corporate in 75% which mear?s
which twenty per cent or | the public

more of the equity share | shareholding is less
capital is held by the |than 25% which is
promoter or an immediate | the contravention of
relative of the promoter or abov.e_mentloned

a firm or HUF in which | ProVisIons:
promoter or any one or
more of their relative is a
member, Hence, these 4
entities shall be mentioned
in promoters & promoters’
group in KCL Limited
also. Further, after
including these 4 entities in
promoters’  group, the
promoter’s  shareholding
exceeds 75%.

(b) Except as mentioned above, the listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the
above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder in so far as it appears from our
examination of those records.

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act,

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned below:

1.

During the period under review, Company has wrongly filed E-form DPT-3 showing no advances from
customers whereas there is an advance from customers in Financial Statements (refer Note No. 27).

During the period under review, we have observed that Mr. Sanjeev Jain is covered under the
definition of relatives as per Section 2 (77) of the Companies Act 2013 read with related rules issued
thereon including any statutory modification, amendment thereof as may issue from time to time,
therefore still are shown as independent directors in the company master data which is
contravention of Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act 2013.

Mr. Sanjeev Jain having DIN: 00011248 was appointed as an Additional Director in the company with
effect from 10" September, 2019, he was reqularized in FY 2020-21 however the E-form DIR-12 is yet
to filed.

Mr. Amarjit Kochhar having DIN: 08645111 was appointed as an Additional Director in the company
with effect from 30 June, 2021, later on the Board has appointed him again as an Additional
Director in the category of Independent Director w.e.f 07.06.2022, and he was also regularized in the
F/Y 2021-22, however the E-form DIR-12 is yet to be filed.
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5. During the period under review, we observed that Ms. Chandra Kala Khemka (DIN: 00103255), has
attained the age of 75 years in March 2022 but company has not passed the Special Resolution as
per Regulation 17(A) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

6. During the period under review Company is not in compliance with Section 197 of Companies Act,
2013 read with applicable rules as Company is paying managerial remuneration beyond the limits
without taking prior approval from shareholders.

7. During the period under review, Company has not filed CSR-2 for the F/Y 2021-22 as per Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013.

We further report that:

In respect to other applicable laws specifically applicable to the Company, we have relied on
information / records / declaration / declaration produced / furnished by the Company during the
course of our audit and the reporting is limited to the extent.

Except as mentioned above, adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions of the Board were unanimous and the same are captured and recorded as part of the
minutes.

We further report that there is scope to improve the systems and processes in the company and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the period there were no specific instances / events pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc., having a major bearing on the Company's
affairs.

For M/s Vikas Verma & Associates
Company Secretaries
(FRN: P2012DE081400)

Vikas Kumar Verma

Date: Managing Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. F9192
UDIN: CP No. 10786
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To,

Annexure-A

The Members,

KCL LIMITED,

E-292, SARITA VIHAR,
NEW DELHI-110044

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that
the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.
Wherever required, we have obtained the management representations about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
The Compliance of provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations &
standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedure on test basis.
The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability nor of the efficacy
of the effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
For M/s Vikas Verma & Associates
Company Secretaries
(FRN: P2012DE081400)
Vikas Kumar Verma
Date: Managing Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. F9192
UDIN: CP No. 10786
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Annexure-II

Certificate from the Whole Time Director & CFO and DGM Finance
[As required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015]

We, Mr. Rajeev Khemka, Whole Time Director & CFO and Mrs. Amrit Bhatnagar, DGM Finance of
M/s KCL Limited, certify that:

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the period and that to
the best of our knowledge and belief:

a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

b. these statements give a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and of the results of
operations and cash flow. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity, in
all material respects, with the existing generally accepted accounting principles including
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions were entered into by the Company
during the year that is fraudulent, illegal or violates the Company’s code of conduct.

3. We accept overall responsibility for the Company’s internal control system for financial
reporting. This is monitored by the internal audit function, which encompasses the examination
and evaluation of its adequacy and effectiveness. Internal audit interacts with all levels of
Management and statutory auditors, and reports significant issues to the Audit Committee of
the Board. The Auditors” and the Audit Committee are apprised of any corrective action taken
with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

4. We have indicated to the Auditors” and Audit Committee, if any:

a. significant changes in internal control and overall financial reporting during the period;

b. significant changes in accounting policies during the period;

c. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware of and which involve
Management or employees, who have significant role in the Company’s internal control
system over financial reporting. However, during the period there were no such changes
or instances.

Date: Rajeev Khemka Amrit Bhatnagar
Place: Whole Time Director & CFO DGM Finance
DIN: 00103260
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FORM NO. AOC-2

Annexure II1

(Pursuant to Clause(h) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

M/s KCL Limited has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its
related parties which is not at arm’s length basis during financial year2022-23.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

M/s KCL Limited has entered into contract or arrangement or transaction with its related
parties which is at arm’s length basis during financial year2022-23 are as follows:

Name of Related Nature of Duration of |Salient terms of Date(s) of Amount
Party and Nature contracts/ contracts/ contracts/ approval by the | paid as
of Relationship arrangement/ |arrangement/ |arrangements/ | Board/Committ | advance,
transactions |transactions |transactions ee, if any if any
including the
value, if any
Mrs. Chander Kala | Rent Paid As per 26,40,000 Nil
Khemka Contract
Mr. Ashish Khemka | Rent Paid As per 1,80,000 Nil
Agreement
Mrs. Vandana Rent Paid As per 1,80,000 Nil
Khemka, W/o Agreement
Rajeev Khemka
Mrs. Vandana Rent Paid As per 1,80,000 Nil
Khemka, W/o Agreement
Sanjeev Khemka
Date: Rajeev Khemka
Place: Executive Director & CFO
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Declaration on Code of Conduct
[As required under Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015]

This is to confirm that the Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board members and
senior management personnel of the Company. It is further confirmed that all directors and senior
management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the
Company for the financial year ended 31stMarch 2023, as envisaged in Regulation 34(3) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Date: Rajeev Khemka
Place: Whole Time Director& CFO
DIN: 00103260
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ANNEXURE-IV

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the company:

We strive to be a socially responsible Company and strongly believe in development which is
beneficial for the society at large. Through the CSR program, the Company sets the goal of reaching
a global balance that integrates human, environmental and community resources. By means of
integrating and embedding CSR into its business operation and participating proactively in CSR
initiatives, the Company intends to contribute continuously to the global sustainable development.
The objective of this Policy is to set guiding principles for carrying out CSR activities by the
Company and also to set up process of execution, implementation and monitoring of the CSR
activities to be undertaken by the Company.

2. Composition of CSR committee as on March 31st 2023:

S.no | Name Position Designation
01 | Mr. Rajeev Chairman Promoter/Executive Director
Khemka
02 | Mr. Sanjeev Member Member
Khemka
03 | Mr. Salil Narang Member Independent/Non-Executive Director

2. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years for the purpose of computation of
CSR - Rs 8.53 Cr.

3. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs.17.07 Lacs
4. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year as per Section 135 of the Companies act 2013:
Rs.23.35 Lacs
(b) Amount unspent: Nil
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year: Attached
5. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the

amount in its Board report. Not Applicable as the Company spent more than the desired amount.

6. A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR
Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in compliance with
CSR objectives and policy of the Company.
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Point 5(c): Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

S. CSR Sector in Projects or Amount | Amount Cumulative | Amount
No Project or | which the Programme | outlay Spent on expenditure | Spent:
Activity Project is s (Local area | (Budget) | the upto the Direct or
Identified | covered or other) project projects or | reporting through
or program period (Rs) | impleme
program | mes Sub nting
s wise Heads agency
(Rs)
1 Khemka | Charitable | Faridabad 23.35 Direct 23.35 lacs Direct
Charitabl | Activities lacs Expenditu
e Trust (Promoting re
education,
health care
and
environme
ntal
sustainaibil
ity
(Rajeev Khemka)

Chairman CSR Committee
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

a) Industry Structure and Development:

Packaging is an ever-growing industrial sector in our country. On account of development in
infrastructure, manufacturing, agriculture, service sector and change in life style of the people, the
growth in packaging industry has also shown a fast growth. Nowadays the modem retailing
channels such as supermarkets and hypermarkets is the main driver towards shifting to packaged
goods. As these modem retail outlets are better equipped to showcase packaged products
compared to India's traditional retail outlets, the role of packaging in influencing purchasing
decisions in-store is greatly increasing and this has made packaging an even more important
marketing tool than ever before. Demand for packaging of different types continued to rise in India,
out of which Paper-based packaging materials are behind some of the most groundbreaking
developments in the industry today. Paper and paper-based packaging is the largest sector in the
worldwide market for packaging the products like Electrical & Electronic appliances, medicines,
cosmetics, automotives, FMCG etc. Similarly, food products more particularly healthy food &
Breakfast cereals have shown a very significant growth through the retail market channels as such
food products also having good market potentiality.

b) Opportunities and threats:

KCL Limited is one of the leading and largest companies in Paper Packaging and Printing Industry
in the Northern India. It has provided remarkable packaging solutions to a wide range of industry
like: consumer durables, white goods, FMC, apparel and footwear, fresh produce, engineering and
auto components, etc.

We believe that the following aspects of our business will help us to sustain our growth and grow
even faster in the times to come,

e Packaging solution to the larger clients.
® Modern and latest packaging & food processing machineries.
® A range of healthy food products under the brand name "MURGINNS”,

Even with the consistent growth of packaging, printing & food industry, there are still some
difficulties faced by this industry;

Rise in Input costs

Lack of proper distribution channel

More marketing moving online

Competition with substitute forms of packaging international quality
Rapidly changing technology in printing & packaging industry

Very difficult to change taste of food products used by the customers

¢) Segment wise Performance:
Company operations are focused in two primary Business Segments;

1. Packaging Products: Engaged in manufacturing of Corrugated boxes, Duplex boards & Printed

Cartons situated at different locations.
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2. Food Products: Engaged in manufacturing of Food products (Wafer sticks & Extruded cereals
products & ready to use bakery products).

The Packaging products have major contribution towards total Revenue. However, the food
products are also picking up in the market.

d) Risk and Concerns:
Huge investment on automatized machinery and R&D setup

Competitive prices
Adoption of latest quality processes and supply chains
Food Products is a new Fine, which need more Publicity and Marketing.

e) Future Outlook:

e The future of the packaging market is certainly looking bright. Packaging is believed to be
the key method of communicating the value-added benefits of a product to the consumers.

e Packaging product has regular demand from our existing clients and new customers have
aim shown their interest in our products on latest Corrugated/Printing Machinery and
locational benefits for supply to southern parts of the country.

e Food products have made tied with big brands like: Heinz, Nestle, Cadbury, Reliance etc, to
manufacture their products in their brand name.

f) Internal control systems and their adequacy:

The audit committee periodically reviews internal control system, which are designated to ensure
that the overhead levels are reduced to the minimum.

The Company’s internal financial control systems are commensurate with its size and the nature of
its operations. These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to recording
and providing reliable financial and operational information, complying with applicable statutes,
safeguarding assets from unauthorized use, executing transactions with proper authorization and
ensuring compliance of corporate policies.

The audit committee deliberated with the members of the management, considered the systems as
laid down and met the statutory auditors to ascertain, inter alia, their views on the internal financial
control systems. The audit committee satisfied itself of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal financial control system as laid down and kept the board of directors informed.

g) Human resources/ industrial relations and Employee Base:

The company, with total employee strength of 550 approx. as of year-end 2022-23, continues to
accord high priority to human resource development. The human resource (HR) strategy is focused
on creating a performance-driven environment in the Company, where innovation is encouraged,
performance is recognized and employees are motivated to realize their potential.

HR is the core of the Company, influencing change, building culture and capabilities. The HR
processes are continuously evolving and aligning with the changing business requirements. HR is
structured into the specialized business units to enable them respond better to the needs of their

59



customers and get more strategic advantage. The HR organization is equipped with multicultural
leaders capable to handle tremendous volatility in the economic, regulatory and cultural sphere
around the world.

h) Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance:

The Key features of the Company’s Financial performance for the year ended 31st March, 2023
are presented in the financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and accounting principles generally accepted in India,
and in compliance with the accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, to the extent applicable.

i) Cautionary Statements

Statements made in this report forming part of the disclosure related to management, discussion
and analysis describing the company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations maybe
forward-looking statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations.
Actual results could differ material from those expressed or implied. Important factors that
could influence the company’s operations include economic developments within the country,
demand and supply conditions in the industry, input prices, finance costs, changes in
government regulations, tax laws and other factors such as industrial relations.

i) Acknowledgement

The directors of the company wish to express their appreciation for the continued co-operation of
the central and state governments, bankers, financial institutions, customers, dealers and suppliers
and all the valuable assistance received from the shareholders. The directors also wish to thank all
the employees of the company for their contribution, support and continued co-operation
throughout the year.
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JAGDISH CHAND & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOLUNTANTS
H-20, LGF, GREEN FARK (MAIN), NEW DELHI- 110 018, INDIA
FPhones: 26511853, 26533626, 41750467 Fax: 41759487 email: mail@|candco org
INDEFENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

T THE MEMEERS OF KCL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statementa

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying stendalone financial statements of KCL LIMITEDR
[the Tompary), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Staternent
of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash
Fiowsa and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear then ended and notes to the
standalone nancial statements, including a summary of the asignificant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the standalone
Onareial statements],

In our opinion and to the best of aur information and according to the explanatione
given Lo us, except for the possible effocts of the matters described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion® section of our report, the albresaid standalone finencial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view n conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act repd with the Companies [Indian
Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended, [“Ind AS%) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Compeany as at 31
March, 20023, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows ared changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) As mtated in note 6.1 in the paccompanying statement of standalenes Anancial
statements, the Company has given loan to 8 related party company, M /s KCOL Milk
Products India Pt Ltd, amounting to Rs. 966.44 Lakhs, This related party has
negative net worth as per last avallable audited nancial statements. As described
in the note; the management, on the basis of its nternal assessment, has considered
this loan as fully recoverable and in the opinion of management, ne provision for
diminution of value ls required. In absence of sufficient audit evidence to support
the management's aloresaid nssessment, we are unable to comment upan the
recoverability of such loan,

b Mo asdipstment of Revenues has becn considered in some cases for Varlable
consideration of freight in terms of Ind AS 115 *"Revenus from Contract with
Customers”) where sale price s inclusive of freight. (Refer Note 40.5)

€] Excess Mansgerial Remuneration of Rs, 3.19 Lakhs has been paid without approval
of members in the General Meeting of the Caompany, |Refer Mote No. 33 & 45)

BRAMCHES AT NUJ-EML, BHIWADI (RAJASTHAN), GURUGRAM (HARYANA)
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We conducted our audit of the standalone finaneial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing  (S3As) specified under section 143(10% of the Act. Our
responsibilities under  those SwEndards are further deseribed in the Auditors
Responaibility for the fAudit of the Standeione Financial Statements section of owr
report. We are independent of the Company in sccordance with the Code of Ethics
msted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants af India (1CA]] together with the ethical
reguirernents that are relevant to owr audit of the standalone Anancial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical respenaibilities in aecordance with these requirements and the 1CAl's Code of
Ethics

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate lo provide
a basis for our gualificgd andit opinicon on the standalone financial statements,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matiers that, in our professicnal judgment, were of most
aignificance in cur audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period.
Thess matters were addressed in the context of our Audit of the stendalone financial
statements as o whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to
be Key Audit matters to be communicated in our repart.

'8, | Key Audit Matter
Mo
| L. Impairment of Trade Receivables
Imipairment losses represent
management's best estimate of
expected credit [osses  on
receivables al the reporting dats, ¥
We have feensed on this area
becavse the messurement of
impairment loaseca requlres
man#Agement to make 8 series of lnancial reporting standards.
judgements and dedsions. The * Understanding and assesaing
Company sasesaes impairment of the key internal control
trade receivables both individually ayatema in place in relation to
and collectively at each reporting trade receivables recoveriss
date. In estirnmating the amount of and impairment testing,
mpairment loases, which la equal » Testing the sccuracy and

Auditors Response

Among othera, we have carmed out
the following procedures b this
ACEs;

Asseseing the appropriateness
of the Company's impairment
methodoelogy: against ihe
TEquUirements of relevant

date of the report. Thus, the kev

to the Expected Credit Losses completeness of the Company's
(ECL), management takes into ECL calculation as at 31 March
account, among other things, the 2023,

payment history of the recefvables s Procediares related 1o
mcd the historice]l experience of callectively valeed trade
credit losses, and an ascessment receivables (based on  the
of both the current and expected expected  credit  loss  [ECL)
gencral coonomic conditions at the maodel)
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L

areas of measurement unoertainty
and judgementis relsted to o the
recopnitice: of dnpaitment of trads
riceivabales aee e followa:

= the assumptions used o
eatimate the credit visk aof the
relates] exposure  and the
clisnt's  expected future cash
flows;

= jdentification of exposuies with
aipnificant credit risk or eredil
impairmment (defal)

=  Wo teeted key parameters of
tlue colledizive impairment
model, such as histarical
information on default rates
and their impact on the model,

taking into  accouant  the
Company's cwn  historical
credit Iogs experienoe.

= Procedures related 1o the
totality of i pralTIRENT
PEOVIS TS

= Assessing whether the financial
statements’ disclosures abaut
exprected credit losses related to
trade recelvables are presented
it accordance with the
requirsments of relevant

| Bevenue Recognition

For the year ended 531 March 2023
the Company has recopnized
revenue [forn operations of Ra.
43,714.21 Lakhas:

Revenue is a key performance
indicator ‘and therefore in internal
and extermal atokeholders® foows.
Revenue recopgnition has  been
recopmized as a loey audit matter
due to diverse and ocomplex
FOAETIRLE atieartis ASEOES thae

Compaey

We have ddentified following ey
arcas for consideration:

Im line with Ind Az [15, the
Company recognizes revenus
whern a péerformance obligation is
aatisfizd by transferring control
over & promised good or oservige,
Due to the Company’s business
model, overilme revenues are
currently not material,

Revenue from the =sale of goods is
recoprised iry the incoarme
atarciment  when  the aig;ﬂlimnr.
risks and rewards of ovwmership

have been transferred 1o the buyer,

Our audit procedures inchaded the
festloowrirage:

= Ewvaluation ol internal control
activities ower TEVEmas
recagnition and testing of koy
conbrals.

o Analveis of significant sales
contracts o verify correct Ind
AS accounting treatment.

= Testing thnslness of revenue
recognitian by comparing
individual aales ramsactions to
delivery documents asd by
checking - ‘significant credit
notes issued after yvear-end.

= Analvels afl rEvEnLue
transactions using audit and
data analveis technigues.

= Testing of accounts rececivables
by requesting confirmations
from the company's customers
and by reconciling -cash
payments receivad after the
year end against the accounts
receivable balances at the year

ard.
# Asmsessed fhe  management
Judgement and supporting

dacuments around timing of
recovery of such costs.
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This normally means when & = Selected a sample of sales in

product has been delivered to the | corrugated box  and  food

customer  in accordance with | segments, made pre and post

agreed delivery termsa. vizar end, agresing the date of
revenue recognition to third
party  support, such @ as
receipts, to confirm sales are
recoEnd sed according i
coentract conditions,

s Examinecd bovoice samples with
various shipping terms to test
whether revenue has  been
recognized correctly.

e Asgessed the disclosures macde
by the Company
[Also refer para (b} of par baais

Tar gualified opition & mote
40.5) |

Emphasis of Matter

a

by

We drow atftention 1o Mote No. 41.3 in the accompanying statement of standalone
financial statements, wherein it has been stated that the company had received
certain concerns raised by one of Ex-director of the company with respect o matters
of cotporate governance and some other aspecta of aceounts of the company. As per
the information and explanationa given to us, the management has refuted these
allegations and the matter is pending before Hon. Natlonal Company Law Tribunal
and management believes that this would have no impact on standalone financial
stalements.

Dur conclusion iz not medified in respect of this matter,

The company has Inventories of s, 3,019.17 Lakhs as on 31 March 2023 [Refer
MNote Mo Bl. We have not chserved physical inventories of Raw materials, Work-in-
progress, Funshed Goods, Scrap & Stoves and spares as an 31 March 2023 as we
were appointzd a8 [ndependent Auditor of the Company on 15 July 2023,

Crar conclusion is not modified in reapoct of this matter.

Information other than the finaneial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available ta us after the date of this auditor’s repori.

Char oplnion on the standalone [inancial statements does 0ot cover the other information
and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone fnancial staternents, our reaponsibility
is to read the other Information, when it becomes available, and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the qudit or otherwise appeara bo be materially misstated.
When we read the other information, if we conclude, that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governence as regudred under SA 720 The Auditor's responsibilitics Relating to Other
Information”,

Eesponzibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134|5]
of the Act with respect to the prepasation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company i accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, s cluding the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, This responsibility alse inchudes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventung and detecting frauds ancl
other lrregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
mdgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial cantrals, that were cperating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone fnancial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstetement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the standalone financial statements, manggement is responsible for
aeeessing the Company’s ability to continue as a Bomng concorn, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the geing concern basis of
accauntmg unless management either intends to Houidate the Company or to cease
cperations, or has no vealistic alternative but to do =0,

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for oversecing the Company's financial
reparting process,

Auditors’ Responsibility for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objeclives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone
financial statements as @ whole are [Fee from material misstaterment, whether due fo
fraud or error, and o issue an anditoc's report that includes our opition. Reasooable
aseUrance 15 A high level of assurance, bt is not & guarantes that an sydit conducied
in agcordence with SAs will always detect 8 matedsl misstatement when I exists.
Misstatements can arise fram fraud or error and are considered matesal if, imdivid ually
or in the aggregate, they could rcasonably be cxpected to influence the seonomie
decisione of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial statements,
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
malntain profeasienal skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

[denufy and assess the risles of material misstatement of the standalone financial
atatements, whether due to raud or error, design and perform sudit procedures
responsive o those risks, and obitapin audit evidence thet is suificient and
Apprapriate to provide a basis for cur opinion, The risk of not detecting a material
minstatement resulting from fraud is higher then for coe resulting from error, as
fraud may invelve callusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal contral.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that arc-appropriate in the circumatances, Under section L33(3)(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls syatem in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the apprapriateness of aceounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting eatimates and related disclasures made by management.,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going eoncern basis of
accounting amnd, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materiat
uncertainty existe related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a8 material
uncertainty exist=, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such discloaures are insdequate,
to modify oor opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidenos abtained up
to the date of our anditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue S3 a going corcers.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content af the standalone financlal
statements, mcluding the disclosures, and whether the standalens financial
statoments represent the underlying transactions and events in & manner that
achigves fair presentation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing af the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in inlernal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with f statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and whers applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters comrpunicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of mast significance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and sre thersfore the key audit matters. We
describe thess matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation prechides
public disciosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumastances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expectéed to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

66



Other Matters

k)

The standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 Mareh,
2022 were audited by another auditor who expressed an Qualified Opinien on those
statements vide Independent Auditor's Report dated 5 August, 2022

Cur apinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Same disclosures as regquired under Ind AS and schedule [T Ddvision I of the
Companies Act, 2013 af the comparny for the year ended 31 March, 2022, which were
not ncorporated in audited sccounts for the vear ended 31 March, 2022 which now
have been incorporated by the meanagzment and have not been audited by us [Refer
Mo, 59.4|.

Our opdinion is not modified in respect of this maltter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Regquirements

1S

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (*the Order) issued by
the Central Government in terms of sub-section (1 1) of Section 143 of the Arct, we
give in Annexure A, & staftermnent on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Chrder, to the extent apglicable,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

&) We have sought and except for the matters described in the Basias for Oualified
Crpinion paragraph, obilained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b) Except lor the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in
our opinion proper books of acesunt as required by law have been kept by the
Company o [ar as it appears from our examination of those books,

¢} The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
fincluding Other Comprehensive Income) the Standalone Statement of Cash
Flows and the Btandalone Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Eeport are in agreement with the relevant boaks of account.

d] Except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone finanecial statements comply
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Ast, read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013, as amended,

€} The matters described under the Basis of Qualified Opinion section abave, may,
i3 pur ppinion have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

| On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disgualified ns on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(3) of the Act except in case of Mr. Sanjeev Jain (DIN 0001 1248} we
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b

ore Lnatde 1o corniment on whether Mr, Sanjeev Jain (DIN 0001 1248) Director of
the campany is discualified from being appointed az director in termes af sechion
164 (2] of the Act gincs we have not received written representation forr Me.
Sanjeey Jain

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Finaneial Controls with reference to
fnancial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
conirels, refer to our separale report in Annexure B, Our report exprésses a
Chualified Opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’a
laternal Finencial Controls with reference to standalons financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Avditar's Repart in
accordance with RBuale 11 aof the Compeanies [(Audit and sauditors| Bules 2014, as
amended, o our opinicn and to the best of our informeation and according to the
explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending ltigatons as at 31
March, 2023 on ita fnancial positdon i dts  standalons fndanecial
atatermnents [Refer Note No. 29)

. The Company did not have sny long-term contracts inchading dervative
contracts for which thers were any material forssesable [osses during the
vear caded 31 March 2033

iii.  There were mo amounts which were required to be transferred, to the
Investor Eduecation and Protection FPund by the Company during the year
ended 31 March, 2023,

iv. la] The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material efther individually ar in the aggregate]
have been advanced or loaned or invested {either irom borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources o Kind of funds) by the Compeny to
or in &ny other persom or entity, including foregm entity (" Intermedianies”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
[atermediary shall, whether, directly or indivectly lend or invest in other
pereana or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or o behalf of
the Company ["Uliimate Beneficiarieg”) or provide any guarantee, security
ar the like on behalf of the Ulttmate Beneficiaries;

(b} The Management has represented, that, to the beat of its knewledge
and belief, 1o funds (which are material either individually or in the
sgpregave} have been received by the Company from any person or entity,
innchading  foreign entity (*Funding Partiog”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwlse, that the Company shall,
whether, divectly or fndirectly, lend or invest in ether persons of entbities
identified in any manner whetsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
FUltimate Bensficiaries”] or provide any guarantes, sccurity or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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() Based on the audit procechuares that bave been considered reascnable
and appropriate in the cireumstances, nothing has come ta our notice that
hfs caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clavse {1} and
fi':bl of Rule 11z}, as provided under (a) and (b} above, contain any matecial
misstabament,

v. The Company has ool paid or declared dividend during the vear and until
the date of this report.

3. In aur onpinion and as per information and explanations given to us, the managerial
remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2022 has been paid | provided by the
Company 1o lis directors during the year is not in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act. (Refer para ¢ of the matter described in basia for qualified
opinion paragraph above along with Maote Mo, 34 8 45).

For JAGDISH CHAND & CO.
Firm Registration Nomber: OO0 20N
Chartered Accountantsa

{Fawan Kumar)]

Partner

Mﬁmb&'rﬂl'l.ip Mumbers: S1L1057
DI

Flace:
[Drate:
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ANNEXURE ‘A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ° port on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ sectlon of our report to the Members of KCL Limited of even date|

To the best of our information and according 1o the explanations provided o ws by 1)
Company and the books of account dnd records exarmned by us-m the normal course
al audit, we alate thart:

i & | (&) The Company has mamtained proper records showing full particulars,
| including quantitative detatls and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment
| and relevant details of right-of-use asscts.

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing Mall particulars of |

intangible assets famagin 2t o = B E S .
B | The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and
| Equipment 8o to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our
opinion, i& reasonable having regard to the size of the Compary and the
nature of its assets. Pureuant to the program, certain Fraperty, Plant o
| Equipment were due for verification during the year and wers physicall,
verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and

explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. —— R s e & . e -

c | The Title Deeds of unmovable properties [other than propeériies where: the
company is the leasee and the leasge sgreements are duly execuled in favour

of the lessec), as disclosed in the financial statements imclucked el
Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Coimpiany o a6t
the balance shest dats except as below:

| 7 [ ® | |
% L 2
: 1 NERE
£ % s 'ﬁs'ﬁ_ H ‘;u:
E s |3 |Fedalg |3
£ S
£ 1D (i |5
E wad
1 R |
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Property 15.84

Plant and
Equipment
at Plat MNo.
259 B 2585 |
Y
RBOZKAMED,
FARIDABAD,
| HARYANA

LEEfEt‘ Note No 58 of standalone fin H.r'H.:Eﬂ E:I.E[r_-'mm' 1)
d | The Campany has not revalued any of its Prnpl:ru Flant ane: Edquipment aind
| intangible aasets during the yoar.

2015

[ Title Deed

(=L el aa W A
pending in
favor of
COMMERIn Y

e | No procesdings have been initlated du. #ing the year or are pending against Lie
Company as at 319 March 2023 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016| and rules
made therenader.

a | The physical werification of inveatory has been conducted 4 reasonoble
intervals by the Management during the year. Mo discrepancies of 10% or
more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such physical
verification.

b | During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
exceas of Ra.5 crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of sccurity of
current assets, The quarterly returns or statements filed by the campainy with
guch banks are not in agreement with the beoks of account of the company

(Refer Mote No. 53)

Ry Ip Lokhe

Quarter ending | As per books As per statement | Difference
|| of accounts submitted by | |

s company to bank

June 2023 2039619 18, 774.05 | 22 14

September 2022 21, 73110 | 20,655, 53 | 105555

_Diecember 2022 18,971.12 17.445 86 1,525.96
! March 2023 15,852 .83 17.520.58 3,389.95
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ii

Based on our audit procedures and according to the [nfotmation emnd
explanations given to us, during the year the company has not maode
investments in, provided any guarantee or security o companies, firms
Lirnited Liabdlity Partnerships or any other pacties, During the veur the
Company has provided loans to campanies, in resgect af which the TR L T

[ iInformation is as below:

Based on cur sudit procedures and according to the nformation and
explanations given to us, the company has provided loans to Companies.

(Al The Company has not made investments, provided guarantee or BECLTILY
during the year to Subsidiaries. The Company doés not have any jounl
vERLLres and associates.

| IB} The aggrepate amount of loans given during the vear, and balance |

outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loan to parties |
other than subsidiaries are given below,

(Fs: [ Lk
| Guarantees | Security | Loans  Advances
in nature of
i - ' | |loans
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the vear
—Subsidiaries NIL NIL | NIL NIL
—Joint Ventures NiL MIL NIL NIL
—-Associates NIL ML 1 ONE T e |
--Oithers MIL MIL [ T MIL |
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
—Subsidiaries = NIL NI | NIL NIL
_—Joint Ventures NIL NIL ML MIL 1|
--Assnciates NIL DL | ML | NIk
--Others MIL MIL. | 1033.18 MIL

| According to the information and explanations given 1o Us and based o0 1k

audit procedures conducted by us, we are of the opirion, That the terms and
conditions of loans given for Rs. 1,033.18 lalkhs [Refer Note Mo & & 22 of the
standalone financial Statements| are pregucheial to e pompan's blares) g
account of the fact that the loan given ta respective parties (s (e (o
which ia significantly lower than the cost of funds to the coompany el also
lower than the prevailing yield of government ascu riby closest ta the tenor al
the lpan. No Loan Agreements have been produced before us for verification.
However, as explained to us by the management of company, thess lsans are
repayeble sn demand. 0000

According to the information and explanations given ta us and based on The
audit procedures conducted by us, in respect of loans (balance outstanding
as on 318 March 2023, Bs, 1,033.18 lakhs [Refer Mote Mo 6 & 32 of the
standalone financial Staternents), no schedule of repayment of principal ard

payment of intérest has been stipulated. Since no scheduls of repaiment of
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| | principal has been stipulated, we are unable to comunent on the regulants of

repayments or receipts. No Losn Agréements have been produced befors us
for verification. However, as explained to us by the management of company,
| these loans are repayable on demand.

d | The agreement for loan were not mede availabls to us for our verification
| According to the information and explanationa given to 18, no schedule of
| repayment of principal has been stipulated In respect of advances in the
| nature of loan. In absence of agreement for loan, we are unable 1o comment
| on the overdue amount for more than ainety days. e ede — _
¢ | In absence of agreement [or loan and advances (balace cutstanding as an
31= March 2023, Rs. 1,033, 18 lakhs [Refer Nole No & & 42 of the standalone
| inancial Staternents), we are unable to cornment whether any loan has Tallen

due during the year which hae beén renewed or extender] or [resh sfvane s
in the nature of loans given to seitle the overdue of cxisting loans giren o
RAIME Darty.

f| The Company has granted loans withoutl specifving any terms or peridl of
| repayment to Related Parties &a defined in clause (76| of section 2 of the
| Companies Act, 2013, (Refer Note No 6 & 42 of the standalone financial
Statements| The agreement for loan and advances were not made available 1o |
us for our verification. According o the information and explanatisns mvrei |
to us, by the management of the company, these loans are repavable on |
dermand snd are interest fres, i
| The Company has not granted loans without specifying any termms or pertod
| of repayment to Promoters.

Details are as under:
- CIRE= In Lakiisg

Particulars ; | All Partles | Promoters  Related Parties
_Aggregate Amount of Loans/ Advances in the nature of loans where:
-Loan  is  repavable on nNIL MNIL M 1R
Demand [A) |
- Loan Agresment does not NIL | MIL NIL
gpecify any terms or period
of repavment [B) e e

| Total (A+B) NIL PIL . ML
Percentage of loans/ MIL ML 89,329,
advances in the nature of

| loans to total loans

iv

| On the basgis of inforrmation & explanatons gven by the mansgement Fl

| respect af loans given the provisions of Section 185 of the Campanics Act, |
2013, has not been complied with and so far as the provisions of Sectinn |86
of the Companies Act, 2013, is concerned, it is complicd with excepl non
charging of interest on loans given to related partics.

__IBs. In Lakhs)
[| H8 Non-Compliance of Section 186 o =
|| No. | Particulars Name  of Amount Balance = Remarks,
| Company), Involved asg at | if any

[ | i | Party balamoe
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' sheet
date =
1 Loan pgven at | KCL  Milk | 6.49 LR Mon
rate of inilers=at | Producis Interes
lowrer than | India Pot breairing
prescribed Ltd e
Ehemka 0.4z 1275 | Wiy
Leasing Fwi I1hLesrisi
hd (= | betivan
Khemka 0.12 | 2.60 Nuin
Packaging | | Interesi
Private Ltd - bearing
Giingnid Q.33 T.B5 Non-
Packaging Interest
Pvt, Lid | bearing |
Ehemka | MIL 13,74 Non-
Charitable [nuerest |
Trusi | bearing

According to the information and explanations Elven to us, the Company has

not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits, |
Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company
ig required to maintain cost recards as specified under Section LA&T) ol the
Act in respect of its products, We have broadly revicdwesd] the same, and are of
the opinion that, prima facie, the presceibed acediunts and records Have an
made and maintained, We have not, however, made a deta@iled examin b tian ol
the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete

| According to the information and cxplanations given 1n U and the records ol

the Company examined by us, in our opinion, Undisputed statutory dues
meiuding provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, sales tax;
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tas, goods ancd
service taxes, cess and other matcrial statutory dues, as applicable, have heer |
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities and there are no
undisputed atatutory dues payable for a period of more than six months from
the date thev become pavable as at 31 March 2023,

According to the information and explanations given to us, (here aoe no |
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispiite, with
the appropriate authorities.

wift

There were no tranaactions relating to previously unrecorded (rcome i
have been surrendered or disclosed as fncome during the yvear in the 1ax
DAsessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 196 ]),

The ﬂumpamr has not detaulied in repayment of |{|n:5-5 _m' olher borruwings o
in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

| According to infermation and explanations gven to us and on the basiz af our

audit proceducres, we report that the company has nol been déclarsd wilial
defaulter by any bank or finsncial imstbution or goverTiment oF ol
government authority,

| According to the records of the Company examined by o and the mfarmarion

and explanation given to us during the year no term loan was taken by the

! company during the year. Term Loans taken by the Company in sarlier years

| were spplied for the purpose for which they were obtained. |
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d

On an overall examination of the Onancial statements of the Company, ro
funda were raised an short- term besis during the vear and have, prima foen
not been used for lohg-teem purposes during the year by the Comnpan)

On an overall examination of the financial statemnents of the Campany, the

explanations given to us, the Cormnpany has an internal audit system in place.

and requires further strengtheming by focusing on process based internsl
[ audit.

considered by us except internal audit reports for two units which we have
been informed has not been carvied out for last guarter of the vear since the
records for thess two units were not provided to the internal auditors, (Hefe:
Note --—--— !
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e
Company hag not taken any funds from any entity ar person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiary. The company does not have any
asgociate or Jount venture,

[ | The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiary. The company does not have any associate ar

 Joint venture, S
X | a | The Caompany has not raised maneys by way of initial public offer or further '
public offer ncluding debt instruments) during the year and henee reparting
under clauae 3x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b | During the year, the Company haa not made any preferential allolment or
private placemnent of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
aptionally} and hence reporting under clause 3(xih) of the Order is not

_applicable. s g e
x | & | Mo frand by the Company and to matertal fraud on the Company Fos e
| noticed or reported during the year,

b | No repert under sub-section [12) of section 143 of the Companits Act bus
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Awdit
and Auditers) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and
upte the date of this report. =

¢ | The Company has nat received any whistle-blower complaints during the year |
(and upto the date of this report). However, We draw altention to note 41.3 in
the standalone fnancial statements, wherein & has been stated that the
company had received certain concerns raised by one of Ex-director of 1he
company with respect to maiters of corporate governance and some ather
aspects of aocounts of the company, As per the information and explanations
Even to us, the management has refuted these allegations and the matter is

_pending before Hon., National Company Law Tribunal,

=il 'f'h-E Eﬂmpm‘t}' ig not a Midhi 'I::ﬂm]:lnn:!,' and henes rEparing u nodesr elause 3

| | |xi) af the Order ia not applicable.

mii | According to the information and explanations given 1o s and based o o

| examination of the récord of the company transactons with the relased
partics are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companics Act, 2013
and the details of related party transactions hoave been disclosed in the |
standalone financial stetementz as required by the applicable accounting |
gtandards. - ]

xi¥ | a | To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the informarion and |

However, it is not in commensucate with the size and nature of its business |

The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit hove been |



Ay I eur apinian during the year the Campany has not entered inte any ron-
cash fransactions with te Directors ar persons connected with 1ts directors,
hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not agplicable
1o the Company. e
x¥i | & | In our opinion, the Company is not required 1o be rematered upder section
45-1A of the Reserve Banl: of Inidia Act, 1934, Hence, reporting under clause

bl o oar -np:l.nmn there is no core mvestment r'u;-mpan:.r within the Cirou [ s
| defined in the Core [nvestment Companies [Eeserve Bank) Dirccticns, 20164
| and asccordingly reperting under elavse 3xviiid] of the Order is not applicalble

wvil | The Comparny has not ineuarred chsh lasses -ﬂunnl.e, the Grancial yenr coverel
by our andit and in the immediately preceding financial year

=i There hea been tesignaton of the statutory atditors subsequont to e vou
and no issues, objections or concerna were raised by the oulgaing auditars

xix Omn the basis of the financlal ratios, ageing and expected dates of Tealisation
of financial assets and payment all financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our Enowledge of the Board of
Directors snd Managsment plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come o our attention,
which casses us to belisve that any material uncertainiy exists as an the diste
of the audit report indicabing that 'Company is pot capable of meeting its
liahdlities cxiaﬁng at the dare of balanes sheet as and when th v Bl clue witham
g pericd of one year from the balance sheet date. We, bhawever, state that this
i= not an assurance as to the hature iability of the Company. We fUrther stals
that our reporting 15 based on the facts ap to the date of the audit report and

we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that a1l Habilites fmlling du
within a peried of ote Yesr Trom the balagoe sheel cliabe, will wet oisohorged
by the Compeny a5 and when they fall duae.
| xx | & | There is no unepent ammount ynder sub-section (3] of seotion 1235 of thie A
! pursuant to any project other than ongong projects. Accordingly, ¢lais=es

Sxx){a) of the Order is not applicable.
b I_‘]'-’hare is ro unspernt C8R armaount as at Balance Sheet date under sectlon Bl |

of gectionn 135 of the Act, pursuant ta any ongoing project, henes, reporting |
| under clause Apx)(b] of the Order is not applicabls,

For JAGDISH CHAND & CO.
Firm Regatration Number: GO01239N
Chartered Accountants

[Fawan Kumar)
Partnier

Membership Number: 511057
LI

Place of signature; New Delhi
Date:
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ANNEXURE “B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 2(g) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date
to the membora of HOL Limited on the standalone finaneial statements for the
yoar ended 31 March 2023

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Seotion 143 of the Aot

We have audited the internal financial controla with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements of ECL Limited ("the Company™ as of 31 March 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financisl] statements of the Caompany
for the vear ended on that date,

Managoment's Reaponsibillty for Internal Finaneial Controls

The Company s Management and Board of Directors of the Company are respongible
for establishing and mamtaining internal finencial controls based an the internal
controls over inaneial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal controel stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting dssued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India [ICAIY. These responsibilitiss include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that wers
operating effcctively for ensuring the orderly and cfficient conduct of its business,
including adherenee to company™ policiea, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of rawds and errorg, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting reoerds, and the omely preparation of reliable Anancial informetion, as
required wncler the At

Aunditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is o express an opinion on the Company's internal Gnancial
controla with refereiice to Standalons Finandal Statements based on our sudit. 'We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Aundit of Internal
Financial Conitrals Over Financial Reporting (the *Guidence Note”) and the Standards
on Auditing deemied to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicahle to an audit of internal financial controls with reférence to Standalone
Financigl Siatements, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethucal requirements and plan and perform the audit to obiain
reasonable assuranee about whether adequats internal financial controls over
Imancial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operaced
:H-I:*L‘Tj‘l.l'c'k_'-' i all marerial respecis.

Oawr aucdit nveolves performing  procedures to obtain - audit evidence about the
adequecy of the intérnal financial controls system with reference o Standalone
Financial Siastements and their operating effectiveness. Our sudit of internal
financial conteals with reference 1o Standslone Financial Statements inciuded
obtaining an understanding of nternal financial controls over financial reporting,
asseasing Lhe risk thal a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
deaign and operating cllecoveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selecied depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
cue tiz frad o error.
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We believe that the sudit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal finanecial controls
system with reference to Standalone Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Finanecial Controls with reference to Standalone Finanelal
Btatemaents

A company’'s internal financtal contrel with reference to Standalons Financial
Statements is a process designed o provide ressonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reportng and the preparation of standalone Anancial
statements [or external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the mamtenance of records that, in
reagonanle decnil, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assels of the compeany; (2] provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of inaneial statements in accordance
with generally aocepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in aceordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and [3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
preventicn o tioely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's aascts that could have a material effect on the Anancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls with reference te
Standalone Financial Statements

Beécause of the inherent limitationa of internal inancial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements, including the passibility of collusion or improper
managemenl cverride of controls, material misstatements dues to error or fravd may
goctr and nol be detected . Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal Anancial
contrals with reference to Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal (inancial control with reference to Standslone
Financial Statcments may become inadegquate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of complianece with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinfon

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit,
the following material weaknesses have been identified for the year ended 51 March,
2023

a) The Company did not have an effective internal audit system commensurate
with the size, nature and complexities of the business.

b) The Company did not have an integrated ERP system. One Unit of the
campany  is using different software package for recording financial
transachions which requires manual intervention.

g} The UCempany did not have an effective system for approvals of Managerial
Remuneration as required under the provizions of Companies Act, 2013,

d} The Company did not heve effective system for assessing and recognizing the
variable consideration of freight where sale price is inclusive of freight.
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A ‘material weakness' (s o deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal
Financial control over Fmancial Reporting, such that there i a reasonable
poessibility that a marerial misataterment of the company's annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In cur cpimion, except for the elfects/possible effects of the material weaknesses
described ahove an the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the
Company las maintained, in all material respects, adequate Internal Financial
Controls over Francial Reporting and such Internal Financial Centrols over
Financial Reporting wers operating effectively as on March 31, 2023, based on the
internal control over [nancial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the sssential components of internal control stated in the Guidanes
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controla Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have consulersd the material weaknesses identified and reported above in
determininy, the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended
31 March 2023, and these material weaknesses have affected our opinion on the
standalone lingncial siatements of the Company and we have issued a gqualified
opinion on the atandalone ioancial statements.

Far JAGDISH CHAND & CO.
Firm Registration Number: 000 129N
Chartered Aceauniants

{Pawan Humiar]

Partner

Membership Number: 511057
U

Date:
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%ﬂl. LIMITED

CIN-L74899DL1983PLCOGE008
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2023

|Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulass Note Be alf fiz at
M. 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
BSSETS
Mlan=Current Asiels
Property, Flant and Egupment 3 F3IE] B Q155 16
Capital wark-dn-pragreess 3 - 331
Right of Llea fxzpt 3 103&.74 Jo.21
InvesTmien: Property 3 17082 16877
Other Intanpible sisets 3 a 1
Financial Azysts
| Imvestments 4 15.0H bd 17
il Dher financial assets 5 130 724
Mon Curent Loans B 1033.18 102594
Qrher mon-clarrant gssals T 484 05 449 42
Tatal Mon-Current Azsots 100BS.43 100us 31
Caprrint Adaets
Inventories ] FNI917 1454 5a
Finan<ial Assets
| Trade recaivabies 9 GE0E A0 657150
ii  Cash and cash egquivalents 10 S63.60 21601
Il Bank balances other than (il) abows 11 156.45 105 66
v  Loang 12 14346 1077
yi Cribar fnancial assets i3 4.95 487
Current Tax Assets |Net) 14 01.24 4.2 BE
Dthar Current assets 15 31835 316,52
Total Current Asseols 11335.62 1121273
Total Assats 215311.04 ZZ156.94
ECQUITY AND LIABILITIES
ECHNTY
Equity Share Capital 15 B00.01 300,01
Cither Equity 17 11E54.85 1043022
Total Eguity 12184 86 10T30.23
LIABELITIES
Mon-Current Liabliltles
Financial Liakilities
Borrowings 13 1253.36 1597.87
Lease lizhilities 13 25 29 48 54
Pegrvissans 2% 13160 LF1 25
Deferred Tax Liabilithes | Mat) 21 L% L5045
Dther Mon-Currant Lishilities a2 211 511
Total Mon-Current Liabllitles 145365 2303.35
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*II'.:I.. LIMITED
CIN-L74899D11983PLCO68008

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2023 {Fugses in Lakhs)
Particulars Mate As at As at
Mo, 31-Mar-20723 31-Mar-2022
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
| Borrowings 33 S45.47 173010
il L=ase Hakbilites 24 13.3c 2155
i Trade Payables 25
oo & Small Enterprises a5 ’
Others 5 G2E1 45 G925.8]
il Other financlal labilities 26 265 .07 15835
Crthaar Current Lisbilities 27 13741 17221
Provisions 24 9.33 T.41
Current Tax Llabilitles {Net) 24 L
Total Current Labilities 766255 5123,35
Total Liakilities 8156.18 114270
Total Equity and Liabillities 21311.04 I215E.94
Carpaorate infarmation & Sigmfrcant Accounting Policles 1-2 =
Motes 1o Accounts 160
Accarmpanying Motes are an intagral part of the siendalone finandial statements
As per our report of even date attached
JAGDMSH CHAND & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Actountants
FEMN 000125N
Pavan Hismar Rajeew Khermka Ashish Khemhka
Partner rir-G1a3 360 Dis-00103321
FALMNOLE1L105T Director Directar
Placa ; Maw Dethi Plage ; Mew Dalhi Flace : Maw Delki
Drate: Dratio: Drate:
At Apgarwal

|Company Secretary)

AZATEI

Place : Mow Delhl

Datps
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KCL LIMITED
®cin-L74899DL1983PLCO68008

Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31.03.2023

[Rupees In Lakhs)

R PRRT T Mot Year Ended Yaar Ended
Mo, 21=-Mar-2023 F1-Mar-2022
INCORME
Revenue from Operations 3 51514. 74 45042 11
Loss: GET ecoverad 7800.58 BI06_ TS
43714.21 39735 56
Crther Income 31 37E2 2736
Total Income 43752.03 I5762.92
EXPENSES
{a} Cost of Materials Congumed 32 L1141 17346.32
tb) Changes In Inventorles of Finished Goods & Waork-In-Progress 33 10416 139,61
ic] Employes Benefits Expense 14 Xl09.42 1824.43
idi Financeg Costs 35 386,82 421.04
(e} Deprediation and Amaortization Expansas 16 1274.27 1427.12
(F) Crthpr Bxpensas a7 H28B.27 ¥163.42
Total Expenies A1674.35 38322.00
Frofit bafore tax 2077.68 140,92
Tax expense; 21.3
Current Tax F3720 455,10
Mat Credit entitlment BF 28 L3640
Mat Cradit Witilised -B7.2E -23B.40
Incame Tax related 1o earlier years 2401 008
Deferred Tax Adjustmant 52.18 -56.55%
Total Tax Expenses 54709 AL 63
Profit for the year 1430.65 ol 1%
Other Comprehensive Income/ [Expense]
(A} Wems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(1} Rameasurament of investment at fair value 2.81 24
(i} Remeasurernent of net defined banafit plans -6.43 .93
Intoime tay refating to itemes that will not ke reclassified to profit or boss
[B] Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - =
Incdarie tax relating to ltemes that will be reclassified to profit or loss . -
Total Comgrehensive Income for the year 1424.563 100746
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KCL LIMITED
M cIN-L74899D11983PLCOGBO0S

Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31.03.2023
{Rupesas in Lakhs)

Par G Mote Year Ended ¥ear Ended
Mo 31-Mar-2023 31-Blar-2022
Earnings per Equity Share of face value of As.10,- esch iR o
Bagic 48,36 3375
Diluted 4836 33,75
Corporate Irformation & Sgnificant Accounting Policies 1-2
MNotes to Acoounts 1-60

Accampanying Motes are an integral part of the standalone financial statemants
As par our report of even date attached

JAGDSH CHAND & &0, For and an behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountanks :
FRMN 0001 25M
Pawan Kummar Rajeev Khemka Ashish Khamka
Partnar CHN-00103 360 DIM-001033321
M.NO.S110687 Direcoor Director
Flaee = New Dalhi Placa : Mew Delhi Place : New Delhi
[rate: Diate: Ciate:

Asmit Aggarwal

(Company Secretary]

AIATEY

Place : New Delhl

Dhafi
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KCLLIMITED

CiN-LT42200L 1983 PLCOGEDOE
Tiardpion s Stanar ol Ches e in Gguity for SFa year ended 1108 202

B Brpd ity sbace cagilal

Pastimubary Ruribierd vl
J Fin in Lakhe]
Raberow a6 an Aprd 4, MG AR BIOLOL
[aargas I popaty thare capersl during tha yaar - -
Ralwrce we st March 31, 2603 1, [RIE T SELaL
Cagrggem i popaity shara capetsl during tha yaar -
Oalsrce e af March 1, 3021 !& FE 01
B, Ceher saudty
s P 2 Lo |
Particslari Rk i il i ol Eerra ol Cihar Tertal
Conprabarara
LI a1
Capiled Mesiree | Geweral Bedemve | Hetassd Earrong | Seowribes Premun
S
Dalarce an o Apel £, 1I21 107 44 Rt | 20047 29%.81 411 BEILTT
Transber of dafiren] barebi 12 00t ainad o ning J
Mool far Ehe A el 15925 - { 1O, 4%
[T T S T e T T ST =
e (e of incnme: )
Fﬂ 35 1 March AL, 2112 13114 E% FITED FEL|
Baandt ed-a1 Agril 1, DI 137148 Tl 01005 2R DL
Tt Tor 1he year . 1430058 - (FELT o
o bt cvam prel eiies brenose [ feapenas)l dor the - - -
féear jnet of Snome e
R RuiF]
|Bealesiie do an lebaerel: 33, 2R3 L0714 TLIL.24] LA 348 01 IB.T4| LLEGAES
Cngurabe WiFDoo arisn & 5 gt it Loomaprang Poliphs o]
HONE] 10 B C0R RS B0
el E T R e ans i integisl e o the srendalon & Enaccisl ik
Bk T T gt BF @een date sTiachied
JAGLE CHARD B 00, Farard an bahaf ofths Board
Charssiod Acopunbanis
FRM (5331 FIH
Pawss Mumar Aajrms Kham=io Rthigh ERemika
Pairinar (=8 LR D e IR e e R
A AD S 110ET Diremor Ol ggrnr
Fimco 1 Fow Dulki Plaow : Mew Doihi Floom: Foew Dk
L (=15 Dkat
AEmn agganyal
o moany Secreraryl
AKIETHY
Huce - Mew Dslbd
Dabs:
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KCL LIMITED
CIN-L74899DL1983PLC068008
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows 5tatement for the year ended 31.03.2023
JHH-‘El_ll im Lakhs )
Particelars For the year ended Foor Shee year enched
31.03.2023 11.03.2033
&b Flow Trom Operating Activities
ot Profit bedore Tax 2077.68 14apSz
Al jumsements foe |
Digpreciation and Smoclsstion 127427 1427 .12
Lass on imalrment of Investment 43,00 =
Prowisign for Gratuity & Legve Encashmeni .47
Fmonce Coste 3a36.82
Prodit on Sale of Praperty, Plant and Eguipment 3.5
Interest incoms ~18.45
Operating Profit. befooe Waorking Capital changss 377093
Adfermeans fov fieerpase) /S decreaseIn Operating Assers
I PV O i 435,47
Trade Fecgivablos 53,20
L, N e LT -22.58
Bank balance ather thsn cash and msh ecuvebents 30,79
CIThEr CUFPENT &55215 30,56
Cither financisl assets -0.08
Other Bon Finarcial et B4
Other Mon Current azsety -Fi 4
Agiustrnants for imcremse S foecremesbin Opermfimg Limbilides:
Tracke Papabley 54236
Other firancisl Fabilitie BT
Qther Current Liakdlities -34.%0
Other beas= Babirties 1.78
Cash generat=d from Coerstions %305.98
Incceme Tax Pasl (et of Refends) +6353.05 Ead. 33
Huk Cank Flaw Fram Opsrating Activitiss [4) 2597.33 136283
B, Cash Flowm from Investing Actiies
Purchases of Property, Mlant and Eqguipment B Irtangibles Axsets -435,34 a02.74
Achance for capes 3533 155,54
Cradicor for capex 0,00 o ]
el st in subgidiary 0,0 B AENL ] |
inc=ecaf docress i Lomg Term Cagital Advanies
Procesds fram Sale of Propedy, Fam asd Eguipresnt 16.23 A0
[interest Mecsived 1EA45 1600
|riet Cash Flow from f {usesd in] investing Activities () 330,95 -1029.186)




C. Cash faow Tram Flnancing Actiitie
Proceeds from Long Term Barowings

-MELE] o334
Mt incresce ) [odecraase) B shar term Rorrdwings -raa2 ~3482.34
Citheer Flramcial Liahilicss -23.35% o1 =
Interest Pald -3BB. B2 421
Meet Cash Flow from [ |used in) Financing Acrivities i) 190051 -3645.13]
Ml Inctesie [ [Decrease) in Cash and Cash Eguivalants [As84C) 47,59 ._1.1.111&
Caih mned Cagh Equivalents ad the beginining of the year F1E6.01 A2a
Caih and Cash Equisalents ak the end of the year 553.50 hﬁ{!-]_.l
Cais end Cash Eguivalent conssts of cash in Rand ard balances with
banki Cash and cash eguivalents induded In the cash Paw saiemsent
amarioe of fallowing balarce cheet amours as por node /&, 10
aik and Cash Equivalents at the end of the vaar
* Comprises
{a) Caski én hand 8,73 L]
(k] Balarmces with Barks
1 R Currend Asedunds &0 IEFL
ik s Fleed Depaaiky 530,00 13467
55360/ 21801

Codparate Infarmation B Signdficant Actdurding Policies ] =
Motes to ADcounts 1-ED
Accompanying Nobes are an integral part of the standalone francsl satements
Og per car report of even date attachssd
JAGDISH CHAND & OO, For and on beha! of the Board
Chartered Acoountaris
FRN DOO1EaN
Parman Kumar Bajesy Khemka Adhiss Khemika
Parner mN-00103260 OEW-00002321
M NOLS11057F Directar Dbrector
Place : Mew Delhi Place ; New Delhi Plece ; New Delh
Date: Durbe: Date:

Amit Aggara

(Company Seorstary]

AZETEZ

Pl : Mow Dailki

Date:
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KCL LIMITED
Standalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March 2023
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COMPANY INFORBMATION

KCL LIMITERD {the "Company') is 3 damssstes public limted compenry with Fegstersd office stsatad &1 E-}02, Sarrta Wik, Mew Oelhi
110844 arel iy listed on Metropalitan Stack Exchangs of ndia Limitsd [MSET). The comparsy is ane of the lesding menufaciuser af
“orrugatad Boandi & Baxes and Healthcare Food Pradicts, it has Manulaciuring Faciliies st Faridabad (Harvana), Grester Moida
AL, Badd] and Paonta Sabib (H.P.), Chayvar (Tamil Madu) & Sricky (AP) The prodicts are sepplied o rapetsd Buavers [mothe
flekl off FAMCG products, fato Soctor & Food Industres, The Company has teg majer segmerts Packaging Products and Feosl
Products.

Thi fimencial slatements weere approved and autharised for issee in accordance with the resoluticn of tha Company's Hoaed ol
Direccors on Mesday | 02 September, 2003

SIGMRITICANT ACCDUNTING POLICIES

Comnpliance with ind A5

The itandelons firancial statements (herenalter referred as Standalone Frenoal Stotemends of tha Finencial Staternents) comaly
in afl matarial especty with Indian Accouriting Stendacds (nd &%) notified under Section 199 of the Comaanles fct, 2013 |1iha
“ct’| [Campanies [Indian Acesunding Standerds] Rules, 2005) and cther relevent arovisices sf the Aot

Bagid of preparatios

The Standalone Financial Statements of thi Carmpany hove beem pregamed i accordpnce with ndian Accourting Standards [ihd
A5)natilied dnder Companées {Indlan Accounting Standards) Nules, 2015 Thase Standalone Financial ststaments inckodes Bolarcs
Sheet as 3t 31 March 1023, the Stebement of Profit &nd Loss nduding Qther Comprehaniive Income, Statamant of Cach Elows
and Sesternent of Changso in Eguity for the year snded 310 Mareh 3033, sod sammary of significant actounting galcies snd
ather axplanatary information [fogethar hirsnafter referred o as Slandatans Finarcisl Statements o the Finsncial Statemants).
Accounting policios have baen consistently appiied eecept whers 8 nesfp-lsued occounting stendard s Initisfly adopted or &
rewsSion to an assting sccaunting flandand requires a change in the scoounting policy hitherta in use.

Historical Cost Conmvamlian

The financial fatemsais heve Seen prepeced on stonual and geing concem basis under hislerhcal cast conuEncion, sarsal for the
Fl borastrgg

1) certain financial sssets and labditles that @e mesiured ak fair value:

) gedinad benaht plana - plan asseds mgasuned @ (& i,

Company's Financial statements are pressatsd in el Ruipses, which 1y sleo s fencional currency, A8 amound in Ehe Financel
statements and accomaanying fates are presertad In lakbe snd have besn roended-of! o two decinal place In accandancs with
thea prendilons of Schedulz 111, uniess statsd atherwase,

Uge of Extimates

The estimates and judgemeniis used in the preparation of the inercial ststements ar continumsly evaluated by the Campany and
arg bsed on hissorical gxperiance and vasious ather assumations snd factant (incuding meactatices of futire eviEity] thet the
Comnpary belleves 1o be reasonable urder the edisting droumstancas, Diffeences bebsoon achual msdts and sstamaies ars
recegriged in the period in which the results are knowny matedalisac.

The said estimates are besed on the facts and events, that exdsted as 2t the rapartiag dite, or that oocumed after shat date but
provide additioral avidercs about conditions sxisting as @1 tha feporting date,

Classilication of Assets and Liob#ities
Schadufe It the Companies &, 2003 reguires aiset and labilibes 1o oe dassfied as sither Curreat or Mon-cusrEnt
An azzet shall be cassiiad 3 currant when it satsfies any of te falléwing oriteria:
it 16 @apected ta be realised I or is iInfanded for sale or consumption in, tha Campany’s normial opsrating cyeli]
i s hald primarily for the purpos= of being braded;
H iz mapectad to be reaficed within tesshe morfs after the EgEatineg daie or
i is canh or cach equivalent unlass it i restricted from being excharged or used to setie & lability for 31 least twelve maonths afer
the reporting date,
Al dsiats ofhar than current assets shall ba clisilisd an man-currens.
i babiBity thall be classified sy camrent when (b satisfies wny af the folowing critera:
16 bz expected o be sailad in the Company™s normal oaeraling cyoe
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it b held primarity for the purpose of beirg tradad;
it |8 due 1o b settled within fwehee months after the reporting date; ar

the Company does not have an unoonditiosal right 1o defer setflement of the llability tor at leass twelve months after tha
reperting dats

Al liahilivies ather than current laklickes shall be dadiifiad as nes-curment,
(ieferreg tax pssets and liabilicies sreclassiied as nor-curnant.

Uperating Cycle

At eparaling oycle i the time between the scqpuisiifon of assets for procestag and theic reslrstion in cazh or cach eguvalont,
The Company has ascertained the opprating cycle & fwebhee morkha dor the purpose of current or Nos-cursest clessification of
muaiky o linmilities

Inssrtarie

Fave Watarial, Wark-in-Proceis, Finlibed poods are valued at b of cost @ fel reslsable values, atter prawiding for cost of
cbeolesoence and other anticipated lussess, whireever consdersd necessary, Cost s computed on 1he weighted sversge basis and
Iy net &f recoverable thwes, sere o Stores and Spares parts ane valued at coat an basiy of FIFD method. Firiched Gaosds, Wark in
Frocess incledes coat of eanuerion and otfer cost inourred in bringing Ehe invardaies b their present bcation and coadidan, Mit
realizabliz yalue is the estimated seling price n the ordinery course of business, bess estimated coms of comaletion and estmates
conty recessary io maies e

Proparty, Plant and Eguipmenl
Tangibie &svets

Praperty, plant and ecuipment is stated at acquisition eaet et of secumuleted deprecistion snd accumulated Imgsement lsses, if
&y Subssuent rosts are included in the asw=t's camying amount ar fresognised a6 4 (epdrabe Suoet, 30 o00ropeiai, oy wien il s
probable 1bkar Fulure econamic benefits saocsted with the item will flow to the Company and the cast of the sem can be
measured selably, All other repairs and maintenance am chaged ta the Satement of Profit and Los: curing the geriad in which
hsty are Ingusrad

Gairs or losses arising on retirsment or diipeisd of property, plant and eguipmant are racogrised in the Statemant of Profit and
Loss. Depreciation is provided on & pro-rata bisks on the W0,V méthod based onestimated wsaful lifs prmicribed urder Schedule
lingthe Comparies &ct, 2013,

Froohoid Lied & nol-depredisted,

T riedicdal valuws, uashel Inves and method of deprecation of property, plant amd eguipment i3 reviewed at each fiearcial yea:
end and adprbad prakpectiely, i approgripe, For reny projects, for direct axpences and direes sverheads incloding intenest an
Borrowed Funds for the sogdisition of Asats are capltalioed Hi the assets are ready for infended dis. Upon first-tirme sdoption of
il A%, the Coenpany has elected to measere all its praperty, plant snd equipment at the Previews GAAP carrying smount as it
daemid cast an the date of transition to ind &5 Le_ 15t April 2016

Imtanpible Asvets

Separataly perchased imtangile assets are initially measured ab cosé Intangible amet scpeined Inoo business combiasion sre
recogaised at fair valee it the aoguitition date. Subsecuently, mangible assers are caried #t cost less any sccumulated
amortisation and aceurnudaked irnpdirment ladses, if any, Finie-ife intangible assets ane amainised s & vraight-line begis over the
pericd of thair sxpected ueeful lives. Cstimated uselul B by majar dass of ivite-18e intangible ass=t s a5 fallows:

Compuner software - 3 years

The amoetization pariod and the amorisation retkad far frite-iife intenphle assets & revlewed &t sach Bnancisl vear znd and
pdjuied prospectvehy), If aporcorizte.

Ievestment properties

ImmiEment propecties sre propertes held sither 1 Garn rental insarme o capital appreciztan or for bath bat nee Far sale i the
crdindry course of Business, uve 0 predaction or waoply of goods or serdces or Tor other adminstative purposes. Frdtrment
properties @ne inifialy mesured at cost induding transacton cost Subsecuent ta nitgal recagnitisn inyestment progeties ane
stated aff cosi less accumulated depredation of imgaisment ko, Deprecistion on irseStment propaties are nrovided ower the
witimabed ussful Il and |s not different than useful life as mentared in schedule || of the Comparies Aot 2013;

Investmant prapertiss sre derecagnived sither when they bave been disposad off o whien they are permanently withdises frem
usd and no fature acancmic Benafit i expected from their dispasal. Tha diffarencs Babwain the net disposal procesds and ihe
zarrying amnaunt of the ausets s recogrised in peofit or ik in the pedod of derecognised.

Though the company meaceses [rveiment propsrties using cost based maasarement, tha fair value of investment properies 1s
sdiscloved In the notes. Fak value are determined by using gingle retos of the corcermed registration aumaniy,
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Gaife ¢r lasses srfsng on redlrament ar depossl of Investivent pregary i recognised In the Statemert of Frofit and Leys,
Cupraciation is provided on & pro-rata basis ma the W 0V method based an estismated e ful (i prascribied under Schedeke 1 s
the Companiss &, 2013,

Barrowing Cost
Borrorwing, codls that are aftributoble to the acquisitian or corstructian of praaffying aswns are mpitalized ai part of the coot of

Azsats, Cusifying Asset i oi that necessarily tabes sibstantial pavicd of time fo get ready for intended use, Al cther b g
i are treated a5 pericd fost and Charged &G the statement of profin and lecdin the ywaar in which ic s meuered

Irspairmeent of mon-financial assems

The Compary assesses 3t gach reparting dete as to whather there is any indication that ary progerty, olant and mquipment i
tangible assets or group of sssets, called cash generating units (CGL) may be npadrad, f any such isdication exsts the
recoverable aneaunt of an asset ar CGL s estimated to detedmine the extent of impairment, & aay. When it ks not pasibie o
mufirnpte the recoverable ameust af o indriduasl wssel, the Company eflinabed e recoverable amaunt of the CGU o owhich thu
pirent helonips

An impaeTaent ks s recogniged in the Sttement of Profitand Lo to the sdert, asset's COFrng amoank esceeds 185 recgvarable
amaiing. The recoverable amount is highar ol an swet's foir weiue less cost of disposal and walue In use. Valus n gss 15 based on
the esticvited future cash flows, dl=counted to e prowent value wsing preax daceunt rate that reflects cufent merket
mssmygments of the tima value al meney and sk soedfc to The aasels

Reverue Recognittian
The Compeny generally follows Mercantile System of Arcounting and recogrites dpndicant items of isceme ard enpendite on
acorial baly except dalms those with significant uncertainties & g Insurance clsms which sne acoounted o an cash hasis.

Revenuee s madiuned based on the transaction price, which is the ronsideration, adjuszed for disseunts, incentive scharmes, if A,
B pEr contracis with custemers, Tages colfected from custamens ca behalf of Government are oL freabed as Reveniss.

Interest Incams is recognised on st time proponion Basl tking imto aoomount the amesat cutstanding and 1ha face apglicatle.
Devtdends gr= recognised in proft ard bgs onby when the Bght to receive gaymant iz estabBshiod

Eaport Inconthals &ré dccaunted far on exports of goeeds, if the entitlements can bo estimated with reasonstle securscy snd
sondtions precedent to Claim am femscmably sxpected to be fulfilgel,

Foreign Exchisngs Transactian

Tranwmctinns cenominated In faraign cariendes sre recarded at the §szhanges rate prevalling on the dars of the tanssctions.

Fonatary itemi denomingted in foreign ournencies a1 the vesr end are mstated ag yesr end robey, In cis af items which ane
rovered by forward exchangs cortracts, the differance betwsen the vess end rate and rite on the date of the comrac &
recogrized e exchange difierenca and the prermium pasd an foreard contreets i recogrized cver the life of the contract. By
prafit ar leds ariding on cencellation oo renswal of foreard exchange contracts are Mecagriced as inoome or & expensss for the
wEar,

Hon-fmerEkary iterms ar= carried ot cost

Any lnpome or eaperie on st of exchange ditference sther o weittlement or on ransksicn |s recapnized and is reflected
narately nibe Starement of Profit B Lass,

Employess Benefjis -
Shart Term Emglayas Benelits

&l employee berelits pavable whoby within teelve manihs of fendeting the sendoe ara dassified s short teren amplayes benafits
and the undiscounted amount of sich employ=e henelits are recognised in Statement of Pro®t and Lass in the peericd 1n which the
ampdinsde renders the nxlated services These barefity inclede salarios, wigis, bonus, perfomance incenbves =ic

Dulirad Baneft Flan

Gratuity and lermg—term compensated akmances are proviced for bassd cn sctusrial vahsstion cried out §1 the dose of aach
perind. The sctuarial valiation = done by an indegendent Actuary 23 per projected unit credis method,
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For defined banefit plars, the amount recognised as ‘Employes banadit sxpenies’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss is the cost of
sccruing emploges benefits promised to amakeyees over the year and the casts of indiidual events sach as pastfFebne serdcn
behufir chinges and wetilements (such events are recogaisml immedistely in the Statement of Prafit and Loss), The amaurd of net
interest superde calulatad by spplying the llabiity discount rate to the net defined benefit labdity or st bs charged to
“Emplover benefits expersa® in the Statamsent of Profit and Loss, Any differaneas Between the itarsst Wesme an plan sssets and
the return actually achieved, and any changas in the lakilities cuer the wear cus ta changey in prhuarial assumplicea cr saperence
adjusdrsenty within the plane, are recagnised immodiately in ‘Oeher camprehersies incoms” and swhseguently pot reclassified o
thie Stabamenit of Prefl arel Lo, '

Oafined Cantribwtion Plan

Contributions to defined contribution sthemes such as emploves stabe iRsurancs whame, employes provident Fund,
Supseanfuation scheme, employee pension schanke #te. are charged o3 an expense based oo the smaurt of contibuton regyired
bo b mada a6 and when serdced re rendered by tha omsloyeei. Cempany's provident furd castrbution, in respect of corain
erployees, |s made o a gevemmens adeéinistered furd 2nd charged as an expanse ta the Statement of Profic and Lo, The above
banefity are clyssified o5 Defived Contsibution Scherme os the Company has no Further defined obbgations beyond the manthly
N [

Cask & Canh Equivalenis

Cmsh and Cash Equivalents somproes cash and cesh on deposit with Banks. The camgany considers all hegivle Iguid Investmeant
‘with & semmsning maturity a1 the date of purchice of thres manths ar less and that are ruatdily corvertible 1o known arsaurss of
cakh to his sach ddunsalants,

Cash Flow Statemsent

Ca vt are teparted psing the indirect mathod in atcardimes with Ind 4% 7 “Statement of Cagh Fiows®, whereby a praf before
fane is adjusted far the effects of tranesctions of non-ash nature ared ary deferreds or accruals of past or future cash recspts or
payments. The zash flowa freen eperating, financing and Investing sctivities of the Company are segragated,

Tax Expansis

The ta« expense for the pesiad camparfig curfent snd deferred tes. Tox i ricsgrised in Satement of Prafic and Lo, exceps to tha
aatend that i relsies to Hems recognsed in the cararehersne income or bn =quity. In which caas, the taa s alse recagrdied in
oahiar Lomprabsisiive noome of equity.

Carrant Tapn

Previnien for Tesation |5 ascermained on b basis of axesmsbls profit computed in accordanss with the provizians of Feome Tax
Aot 1861,

Dhrfaried Tie:

Deferred tax I3 recognised on Wepanscy differences boteoen the carrding amounts of assets and lisbilites In g financsl
statements and e cosrasnonding tar Badss uied in the comoutation of tasabis prafi,

Dederred taw Habilities and assets are messured o the fa rates that ane expected to appéy in the poriod in which the Fabdicy Is
wriiled or the asset realisec, hased on 1@x rates (ond e [aws) that heve been snacted ar substantvely snactad v them #nd of the:
repartivg period, The carrying smount of Dafarred tas lisbilites and assecs are reviewnd at the end of sach reporting peiod,

Leases

The Company has adopted Ind A5 115 Lamies, using the modified retrospective method, The Compary hias spolied the standard to
ity leases wath tha cumaulative imoect recagnissd on the date of Inflal saplisatisn. Ascardingly, previous parigd infsrmatian has
il b restated.

Tha Campemy's lesse azset classes primaity congdst of lewies for Land snd Bulldmgs. The Sompaeny misesses whether 3 cantract i
of COnL&ing o leave, at nception of & contract. A contiact is, e containg, @ Ieaze i the canaract coieys the right to control 1he use
o pn identified aiat for & pariod of time In echenge for congidoiat or. Te aiseis whether » confract coevaays the right to cantral
the use od an dentified saset, the Company assesses whether;

(1] thee confroct wreohas this use &l an identified asses
(i} the Compzrny has substantially &t of the seanemic banefits from use af e aviet throwgh the peried of the lease and
(it tha Comparty has The right to direct the uso of 1he asser

At the dote of commencement of The bease, the Compeny recogrisss a right-ol-use ssset |"ROL°) and 2 cormospemding laase
kabilivy Tor all lease arranpements in which & 15 @ ledses, encept for =as=s with & temrm of el manths or bess [sharttares by
and |pases of 10w valus puiety. For these shorttemn end liniies of iowr velue sssets, the Compasy retogried the leose paymenis as
Ir operating oupans:e on a Straghilice basis pvar the teom of the lease
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The right-ci-use asxets are initially recognised at oost, which comprises the Inial amount of the |sass liability sd|usted for any
l8age paymests macde &1 or prior 10 the commencement dete of the lease plos sy Iritial direet 2osls le arrg Inaee nceclves.
They are sulbsaquantly measurad ab ot les accumulaped depragivtion and imparment losses. F any, Righis-of ude sl aoe
depredated from the commencement date on & straighi-Bne basks over the shomer af i leass teom ard wesful Fe of the
wnderhying asket

Trrie i Hababily ia initiallly irveiciured 31 Ehe prasent walus ol this Buture leeie paymenty, The lease paymenis are dscourmed usini
the interest rate implicit in the lease ar, If ot readlly detaeminable, using tha incremsantal Barfinving ribes. The lnase kability |s
suhsequentty remessured by inoiesdng the carmying amount torediect inferest on the lease Nabilioy, @lucing (Fe earrging amaund
i v Pl then lmase payrmants made.

i lease llxbPy is remeasured upan the coodmancs of cartasn everts such a5 @ changi in B laaie Yerm or o chenps in
a0 Indes or rate used to dedermine |ease paymanis. The remeasuremaent normally sio ad]usts the Meassd piies.

Loago labiky and ROU acsot hawe been roparatoly presantad in thi Salince Shiat and ase payments heve bess classified as
financing cash floes.

Proyisian and Contonpent Linkilities
Providsons are recogretad when the Dompany B @ gresent el or cansructive chligstion es 5 result of past evends, it S prokalde

trat an cutflow of resources will be requied 1o setthe the obligation and e amount can b rallably sstimeted, Provisions are mot
razignisasd for futune operating logees

Pravisions ane maasurad at the present value of ranagemaent s st astimate of the ssperditure required ta ssttie the pressat
obligetion at the end of the reporting pericd. The discount rate wsed mo determine th present wilus is a pre tex reie that reflects
turrnnt mmwket puassmets of the fime walbee of money and the risks specific fo the Bab@my. The Incraae i i pravivien dus 1o
i pakkape af e [ recogniied as inlenesl aapsan.

Carlingerd labilitees s chisihined wihsan theis iy & possibls oblipston arsing from past esends, the exlstence of which wil ks
comfirmed oy By (he Sciumencs oF Aon-Goiu e e al ane or more unceifain fufee sventy mot wholly within the comdrol ol 1ha
Company of & prasent abligathon that adses from past events whane it s etk not probable that an outflow of resounces will be
required to seths the obligation or a reSiabile astbmate of the amount carmol bs meds.

Fenancinl indiramsaty
al. Financial Adsatd

Fenandal atsets are recognisesd wihen che Company Bapaimdd o party to thi dentracikun pravisions of the irstrumens. On indtlal
recogrition; @ financial asset i recogrivod at falr value, in case of Findrcia) dddets which e recognized ot fair webie thraugh prodit
and logs [FYTPLL it transaction cost are recognised im tha ststomant of prodit ard koge in gfhess casss, the transaction oost are
ptiributed to the scoaisitian value of the financial asset. Anenclal assets are sobsequently classfied amd msaiured &

= Emortiped cast

& Tair walus throogh preit armd kss (FPYTELL

Ivwestments in unquoted eqgulty shares of Sabsidiames and related parties

& sukmidiarg b an entity contiolled by the Compary: Control st sten the Compeny has pows ouer tha enthy, |5 expased, ar
has righis to varkable refusms frem s inecleament with 1he ety amd Pas the ability b @ffect those returns by using it power
cuer endity. Power 15 demanstrated theough esisting rights that glve She abikty 1o dirert relevant actheties, thase which
spnificantly affect the enting's metunns: The Company hes sccoonted for dts Imeestments b unqueted aguity ikares of
Sulmidiaciniand ather related parties ot st

Imvestments tn subsidiaries are carried at cost s per Ind AS 27. Cost comprises price paid oo acquire investisvent snd directly
atiriiasable cast, The investreents in Subsidieries are carried In these finandial siatements at historeal ‘2oat’, except when the
Invagimartl, ar g pesticn thereed, s clasiified ad held dor sale; In which case it 1= accounted for as Non-currend assets Bkl far sale
and discantnied apadaticni, Where the corrving amount of an investment & grester than s estimated recovarable amaund, ik
wiigEn dotam Immsdigbely &G i mgseverabin amaunt and the difference s tronsierred to the Satement of Frofit and lese On
digpoial of ireestmant, the difecsncs befween the net dispasal proceeds and the carrying amaunt is changed oF credited 1 thae
Statement of Prodit and Loss,

grtner investmients in quoted equity share

All guatedd aguity ifvestmaents are meaiuned ab far valoe, with velue chamges recognized in Statement of Frofit and Loes, axoep
for thase equity imvestments Tor which the Compary Fad alecled 10 aieient the value charges in 'Dibsr Comprehemsive Inooms”,

Empairmen] of financial assets

I dctordaree with Ind AS 105, the Company ies "Expecied Credit Lom® {ECL] mede], for evaliasting impairment of finandal azsets
oiher than those measured at fair value throsgh profit and los (FYTPLL
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Thar Cormpany messures the mpected credit loo dssaciaterd with its s9sets besed on histoneal Srend, nduestry practices snd the
busieess enuinznment nahich the entity operates of sy ether snpropriate basis The imgasienert methodology spplind depends
an vwhather thane his been asigrificant Incresss in credif fik.

bl Fimanckal Liabilizies

Fimancial llabliities are recagnisad when the Company beronees a paty 50 the contesctual provisians of tha istirument Einandal
lahilities are mitally measined ar the amanized 2o81 unless ot initled recogriticn, Wy ame clesifed as fir valos thraugh profa
ire] Jaun

Finarcis Habilites are subsequantly meaiused o8 amoriised cost using ths EHesive Inkerest Aate (EPf) methed. Fnencial babilites
caried 2t Far value through profit or loss ane messeied of falr value with all chengas |® Tair value recognised in the Saisment of
Frafit arel Lo,

A inarciad Gability iz derecogrised whan tha obligsticn specfied in the conbrct is dscharged, cancelfed or sipines.

EArnmigs per Share

Earning Per Share [EFS] i cakulated by dividing the Mat Pref@ ar Loss Far the period sttrdbutable 1o aquity shareholders by the
‘Weighied Average Number of #guity shaces cutstanding dusing the pericd.

For tha purpais af calculating Diluted Earning Per dhare, 186 Kt Bralit or Los: for the peroc attibigakble to equity sharshoidars &
dividea by thi Weigted Avempe Nomber of shares outstanding duiing the perod after adjusting far the effecis.of all dilutive
podential equity shanes,

Recent Promsenoemant:

Or: 31st March, 2023, MCA arendud fhe Compenies {indlan Accourting Stardards) Rules, 2015 by Issaing the Companies [ndisn
Acgoamt ing Standards] amendment Rules, 3023, appicable from 1ot Aprl, 2023, & balews

Ind A5 1-Presertation of Financlal Statements - The anerdmenls reguine companias o dacleds ther materal sceaunting polides
rathar than their sgrificart accounting poflces. Accounting paliey information, together with athes information, ks material whwen
it can reasonsbly Lss gxpeched to influence decksians of primary users af gereral-purpose financial statements. The Comipey Fas
=eajuated the amendment and e et &f the amendment Is h,:llnlﬂmt Ine The Sarelifare financisl sTats menis

ind AS 8- Accounting Policles, Changes in Accounting Drtimates aad Errors - This amandrment has introdaced a definition of
"sediienting estimates’ and Included amendmands to Ind A3 § to help entites distinguish eharges bn sccounting poficias from
changis in sccainting estimates. The definitian of & change n scoounting estimates has Bein reploced with a definitian of
accounting aitimates. Under the new dedinizion, accouniting sitirmetes are “monetary amounts in fnancal ssotements that ars
subject T measurerment uncerbainty®, Intitles develop acoaunting estimated iF sccownting pelicies require ibems in finandal
Sotements to b2 measurad in a vy that involves messorement uncarsinty. The Campany does 1ot eXoReE Thin senerd mend b
Fave sy sgriicant impact in s stardalare financial stat=ments.

I AS 13- Income Taxes - The amerdments clarify hevw companies account for deferred Tax an transactons such a5 aies and
cacommissiering abligatons. The amendmesnms nirrowsd the scops of the recogrition goem plicn & paragraphs 15 and 24 of ind
A5 12 (recogrition sxempiaan] 3o thet it no longerapgfies bo tramcactians that, on initial recognition, g rise ta =qual tasable and
deductible temporany diffaranees. The Campany has evalestad the amendreent and theee ls na impact an s @anddione finarcis
Eatements.
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KCL LIMITED
Standalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

®upees in Lakhs|
Mote 3 Propery, Plant & Eguipmen
_ GRS BLOCK DEPRECIATION WET RLOCK
Particulars s Additicn Safes o Az ot A ot| For b yoar|  Sebes for Aa wt i
Mmﬂ oL04.2 Adjusimun Fﬁhﬁ__* 104 2022 | Adjscment] 31032013 31032023 LI
Asse1s:
Land s . : T A0 507549
Lass held Lend 77094 i ayn sl . i . . ; E
Exilding AR . &34 20 28312 1929 3943 1IGLTH
Tubewall 214 ¢ . E1D m.m_L 3 = 656 134
Plant & WMachaieny 14031.80 TAGEL G3L10| LEI0ETE LEL R | #7.13 SEN IN172E5 THEsAL
Elecivic nstallationg ELE R . L. I511E m 15.15 : 33686 1698
ﬂ___EE B i 4,45 | : 4.85 368) - L) 058
asting B Checking &7, 144 & BRIT BE 51 ”.u : 42 a1
Hra Fighting Egui prissnt 13 004 1077 B7.65 9.30¢ = 7604 ThAY
Furritare & Fixdere 24000 ERE] ; FUPE | 16784 19,691 ¥ ;L] il 35
Computer 17942 11m . T)ad 15774 1255 | LGE 1975
Office Equipments 1634 575 ¥ B 61,78 6.1 " G974 1n33
Intarsees Splems 2546 10.88 . %33 1567 539 ; B oy
air Conditires a4 .14 Tam 5434 557 sl k| 15.61
Wehide hangs 111,52 4184 LV EL] fik.1n 4150 BeB3|  57ALE 19134
Tiuchs & Tracinr 92204 168 1| S T R e #iax el Twm 25178
Watarial Fandling Equl pese nts el plant 6t T]IT upﬁ . 70,05 56,17 1493 s 411d :.ﬂﬂ
T m pordey Conitnec ion D = . - a8 1] = x k.44 . F
Sub-Total Hings 30 43857)  1ELAs)  2rmaRag i3510.0a]  D2ed.m3 163.18{ 14535 75155 FIECRT
Prew Frer 2214024 | 1225.16 205.40(  25005.30 rzrooss|  1dsran]  zrisd| 1asnand|  sessis 3337.66
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KCL LIMITED

Standalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

{Reipear in dakh
[Capital Wiork s Progress Ao at Additinns| Tramsder o Aes at
o 0. 1R PPE S1.85.0028
Flant & Machinery P 131 L
Subs-Takal 331 = L 00
Frioy Yew 415.14 EET] 41518 il
Capital work:-in-progriss (DNIP] ageing schodule
Far the year ended March 31, 2023 [Augees in Lowhs]
Farticulars Aot ie CWW fior o pariod of Tt
L ifen J yrar [-2 werory | -3 years fdore mor 3 yesrs
Frojects in progress 4 3 g
Frojarts lampararily dspented
Eor thee yoor ended Mareh 31, 1003
Particddar Ampgrit o CWIF for @ period of Totol
desoghan Dpear | 0-2jeern | 223 peany télere then §f peovs
Prej oty b progriss 33r - - EfEH
Projects temgoranily susgendad - -
There & no CWIF whioze compietio b ovndup of hes sscosded 15 008t enfmsaiid b 84 nilial plan
GROSS BLOCK BEPRECEATION NET BLOCK
Eight-af-Lise Aasen Az at Additlon Eﬂu B at A | For sheyeas]  Sales | o) A &l As ot Bcat
01.04.30 Adaam 31.03,2023 0L04.2m2 Adjusiment] 31032003 3LE.N1 31032007
Lamehaold Land = PR Lhe B0 ; ars.m
Larndl B Bl il ik 13839 5 139, 53%) BU1E 13410 2054 1. B M
Sb-Tetal 139.39 . 1118.812 01| 2340 3158 06,7 M1
Prav Ve 6918 mLIt 133.39 #.12 | 23,06 | 69.14 L B
* For clist ioiore ned aned 10 bad A5 116, meler Node no, S6
INVESTMIENT PROFERTIES | GRONS RUKE | DEFRECLATION MET BLOCHK
Esat Bewitions|  Gedes for _r_.._q B at] B theyear|  Sales [ or fis As o A
L4, 0022 Adjustment| 34.03.2003| 12 Adanzment | 38,03, 2023 3102 2023 31.08.2022
Land (SAHA} .m0 E08 REED] .00 aoa 11337 L5 30
Buildnpliaklag 113,04 LB 54,57 e] BLE SrAL B4
Sulb-Tetal btk | &0B 0.0 EE_ 4.5 0% GRG0 imar 18,77
Preskous ear 2o | 1225 oo FEEET| FrE ] .66 | EpET IRE T 15679

"For digesure mdated to ind &5 40, reder Mole na 55
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KCL LIMITED

Standalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March,2023

Imangible Asses GROSS BLOCK DEFRECIATION MET BLOCK

Az ol Additions Salex for LTE T kxat| Forthe year|  Sales for A% al g at Agat
004 2002 Kefustmant| 31.09.m73 1,04, 0072 E e R b BT 1 3108202
Lomguber Sottwara 5744 5744 E.__.._ Ui 5744 Ea_ oo
Sub-Tata| Srad 0.0 0 5744 £7.44 .0 i 574 0,00 200
Propeiiis year 5744 [T A 5744 A7dd oo [T A74d 0.0 209

Tedal T3ER4.TE 4155 106475 2IMEED 1809133  wpazsl  16020] 1519643 855011 m
Previos yéar 2285434 13707 72500 2w4e7m 1gezes|  1eanaz| govee| weesina|  mmres 795219

#ate Moo 3.1 For titke deeds of immovahile proparties sot helt in the name of mameany redar nets na. 5B

Mbe hoo 3.7 For peoparties pledged with banks reler note ao, 181 sad 73
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KCL LIMITED
Standalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

IrveErmenta (Mon Current)

(Rupess Im Lakhz)

B at A= at
PRSI 31-Mar-2023 J1-Mar-2023
Inyestrnents mepsured ot Cost in fguity Shares
Investrment in Whallv-owned Subsidiary
ih 100000 Eguity shares [(PY 100000 =quity shares| of KCL Paper Mills 106 S
Pt Liendpad & 10y - each Tuly paid up. "
Unquoted Equity Shares - Others
irA2D00 Equity Shares (PY 42000 equity shares) of Ginnd Peckaging 43228 422
Frivate Limited of 5. 104 sach fully pald up
11} 420000 Equity shares {FY 50000 equity shares] of mM)'s KCL Milk 500 45,00
Products india Private Limited of Bs. 10 each Fully paid up.
Less Prowisicon far imaas ment -A3.00 =
- 4500
bnvestments measured at Fair Valee Through Other Comprebensive:
Income)
Ouoted Equity Shares
&% Equity Shares {FY 609 eguity shares | of Indian Bank 176 0.95
[Total 15 48 §4.17
Partkulars b A at
AL-Mar-2023 AL-Mar-F0EE

LL] imwr value al Gueotad |rvestmenks 1.76 DE

b} Aggregate harkat Walue of Ouoted Inwestrments LTE .55

£l Agrragate Walkis af Unguabed Inevast mants E,zl a2 HF
1‘“"@“ armaunt of impairmeant in Value of Irvestmiants A9, 00 . F

4.1 Mz KCL Paper bl Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary was incorperated on 21.04.2021 the subsidiary company

i yel Lo tommencs s budneds operationd as at 31t March 2023

4.3 &n Impadgremant on Iresstment of M5 KCL Ml Private LUimiced of Bs 49200 lakhd has oo provided a: 3t 312 March

203, as the net worth of the company a5 per the latest avafabie audited firancals statement was fully eroded

Other Finarcial Assets(non current|

[Rupess in Lakhs)
A at ALt
Partioulars
31:Mar- 3023 F1-Mar-2022
Other Bank Balances
- Fiwed Deposits with more than 12 months maturlty periad* 1.20 T.24
Total 1.30 .24

* Padged with gavernment deparirant/banks s security,
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Standalone Notes on Financlal Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

&

Mon-current Loans

[Rupess in Lakhs]

Az at A at
Particrs F1-har:. 2033 F1-Mar-2023
Laan to related parties (Refer Mote Mo, 45)
Unsocurad, considered good
- Imter Corparsta Loans 101954 101219
- Drifigrs 13,74 15.74
Total 1033.15 10ES. 94

5.1 The company has given an 1o a refated party 875 €CL Milk Products India Privata Limited amoonting ro s 996,44
tadkhs, This related party has negative net current assets and & hes negative ned worth as per the atest avallable audsed
financial stanemants. The management of the company , on the besls of ks internal assesment; has consider=d this koan as
fully recoverable and in the opinian of the managemant, no prowvision for dirminutlon of value i required

5.1 Loan given ta related parties 8re non interest baaring and are repayile on demand,

5.3 Discinswra for lnan o specified parson reder note no, 432

Orther non- current assets

{Auipaas in Lakig

At al Asan
Particula
i 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022

Adyance for Capltad Goods Iny.a9 2700
Sacurity Daposits with gowernment autharities & others 11806 11590}
Pri=paid Expenses F0.05 23.0F
ther raclevables nges 30.85
VAT Credit Beceivalie B0 8.7
Fraoporative Exponses | subject to allocation |
Dpening Batance T4l
(Additton during the ywear - -
Le=ss : Translerred dusing the year to Proparty, Plant and Equipmant - 7.11
Preaperative Expenies - -
Total A4, 05 A40.42
I aniorins

[Fupeas in Lakhs]

Ax at As At
dibas s 31-Mar-2023 21-Mar-2022

R matarials 259770 1691.33
W k-In-Prograss 13087 13433
Finkshed Goods 300011 40184
Scrap Lis .15
Stores and Spanes 197.38 13703
Goads in transit 1.946 -
Totai 3008017 | J454.64]
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Standalone Motes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

&.1 Inwgnearies have beed Nyporhecated wilh banks agalnst working captal loans Refer note na. 18,1 and 23

Trade Receliablos
{Aups=es in Lakhs)
Particulars ks ik
¥1-maar-2023 F1-plar-2027
= Spcured, Consldered Good o
- Unsecured, Considered Gaod Bar0.ze BA4E 10
- Trade recievable which has significant increase in cred risk = N 75,45
-Trade Recievable- credit impaired 17.749 171
Tatal E36E.BE 993,31
Luss allowance for downciul trads recievabilies 27.74 .71
“Less pupncted credit loss an t_rat:ha rE'I'F!'BblE'_E_ 26.72 =
Total BA0E. 40 EATL.60

2.1 Trade Recesvables have been hypothecated with banks aganst working capital loans. Refer note no, 181 and 23 Tor

dotads
4.2 Bgawise disclosure as reguired are attached in rots no.d3

.3 The company does not hawe debts dus by divectors or orher officers of the company or any of therm elther sousrally or
Jairthy with any other persen or debis due by firms or private companles respectively In which ary director is & partner ara

director or @ memher,

Cash and cash equivalents
{Rugees in Lakhs)
Particulars Aak gl
314Mar-2023 F1-Mar-2023
Cash and Cash Egquivalents
Cash in hard 2.74 503
Balances with Eanks
- Im Darrent ACiounts 4.86 16,31
« Flewd Degpagirns owith Banks bess than Imonth period] 550.00 1B4 67
[Tatal 563,50 216.01
Bank balance other than cash and cash squivalents
[Rugr=es i Lakhs)
BE at AS Bt
Particula
z " M-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Orthar Bank Balances
- In Margsn Bonay BCoinsns 37.9% 50.59
-Fiwed Deposits [with bank more than 3 manths bt bess than 12
manth pericd} IST.55 50.53
Faond Deposits with more Than 12 months maturity period 1,004 T34
= In Employrees Group Gratulty Saving Bank Account [Vt 4,13
Less! Arnoent disthosed under the head "ether Ban Current 1.0 7.24
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Standalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Financial Assets” (Refer note 5)

Tatal 104,45 105 56|
il Losns [Curment)
{RLpRes i Lakhs)
fs gk Az ak
Partlculirs
31-Mar-2023 1-Mar- 2032
{Unsecured considered gaod 5
Loans and Advanoes o Employess 133 .46 1L77
Total 12345 100,77
il Dther Financkal assets (Current)
[Rupess in Lakhs]
s at As at
Partkculars
31-Mtar-2023 Al-Mar-2022
i} Other Receivaldes (interest acorued on FOR) A£.95 4,57
Total CEE 457
14 Curvent Tax Assets (Met)
(RupeEes in Laknhs)
As at CLE L
Particulars
31-Mar-2073 31-hiar-2032
Currant Tax assets [neth 91,24 1rar
Tatal 91,24 1707
15 Dtheer current asspis
{Rupees m Laxchs)
A5 at LTSS
Particulars
* 31-Mar-2023 F1-Mar-2022
Prepaid Expensel E0.5E 4R.1R
MAAT Credit Enkitiament . 28.73
Oibhers
(I} sebeange 1o Suppliers & Others 25767 173.35
iy Sther Recalvables .10 [ E |
Tatal F18.35 316452
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16 Srarn al

|Rugsaed in Lidkhap

A5 an g al
1-par-2ma 30-Mar- 2022
Bty Share Capital -
suthorises Share Capltal:
000000 Equity Sharas of Rs.10y-aach a0 80
[P 0000 D00 sty Shares of RL L0/ saeh )
S0l oD SO0.30
thsupd, Sugscripag snd Paid up Capia:
SO00085  Eguity Shaves of Ra L0/ sach 001 00001
(P~ 300,00, 08 Equity Shares of f= 10/ sachp
ITOTAL 0. 0L En rligl
161 Ths dtai ki of Shha ridsside rs holdng moes than 5% shamd @
A5 3 LT
A1-Mse-2023 31-Mlae-2022
% hzid Fio, o Ghaces | M haid
17,54 ] IT54
.__I_-.E 3?']&:! 1501
13,55 245,535 1]
88 25t 7 i
1737 531,550 1104 |
434 5 5_1_1. % 16.1%
T, 000 .57 200,000 B.67
*hares of Late Sh. Shyes Setcer Khamkaaa yar b ba trarshodved ta his Sl bl
LH.1 Tha réesoncilat an al 1he nusbss of shionas outikandisg K ist cut below
Anat Bia wt
FE-Mo-2023 1Pl 2022
HﬁErl Mo, af Shanas Mo, ol Shama
Equity Shares 2 the baginning of tha year SIS ]
Bidl - Shavre, tcagedd clurirg the peer - b
Lema ; Shisns canceled on buy back - '
|I5l.|l'|-l'ﬂl.l1'l-ﬂ'l|'l! gnd ol thi year SO0 SOCOHEES
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Balarca shest dets,
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i
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HAeatined Tunmm @ ihe oeafit bt P compety s oerned B0 dabe ey s tander in Ganera Rmerve, Sivceds oi

other dirribaiinar pa sharghclde
Other Coamprehendve Incams:
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bt Chinnderkaly She mia divecnans of e coegey B h Senjeey Keenba ikarchioder of He compary . 80 ssorid s are
wreder Pt pasiu charpe with Hanks .

1R Terms al repayrrest of mrmioam S vehicimib N i iny =d
11 eric Ioam are seowred by woy of Sypoihecasion of veriles naroel by Dines snd MEFE

LEE  Urkeiures Leans feam Dingstors s Lang Term Derrowings sod are Imierac heachg , wharaeer sopboabls

19 imnes Ui | Fon-Tument§

IReprms i lakhs
Aa az Aqan
Paminelary
Ti-fiar-1033 B Pl RO D
imam Liabd i [Reder Mot no. 56| ﬂ_\ﬁ 4354
Tatal 5T H.H|
an Providam [Kan-Curmses]
|Foi ps i k]
s A5 ar
Pambialai
A 82t 2025 Simeraoiz
Arasidan Tar Employes Eeralis (Fale aote no. £
- pbg ity (Tande ) il bR
Lwraee Encadrmeet jusfusded] dd. &8 LT
Total 1i1e] 1136
21  Daforned Tax Liabilfies (Meat)
Papes in Lakhy|
Ax at As &
Pa sty
Fi-Mar-3029 11:Mar-20122
Darlurred Toe LiybiRiaes
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Standalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

30 Revenue from Operations (Rugsees in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Sale of Products 52965.12 ATA99.84
La<s: Incentive payable to customers 1016)
Less -Internal Consumption 1480.17 1557.52
51514.79) A5042.31
Less: G5T Recovered T800.58 6206.75
Total 43714.21 F9735.56
Sale of Products camprises of Yoar ended Year ended
31=-Mar-2023 A1=Mar-2022
Corrugated Boards & Boxes A1TED. 26 IGRTE O
Duplex 8oard Cartons 6355.53 6179.84
Food Products 122557 145301
Milk /Dairy Products 1330.80 1222.65
Scrap 180296 1B06.50
Total - 5ale of Products 520B85.12 47490 8B4
For disclosure related to Ind AS 115, refre note no, 40
31 Other Incoms
(Aupees in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 11-pAar-202 2
Dividend Income .03 0.01
Interest and Deposits 18.45 16.60
Sundry Balances Written back 5.40 2.75
Rent Recened T.66 720
Fareign exchangs fluctuation 0.90 0.04
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 381 0.78
Misc reciapts 1.26 .01
Isdurince Claim Recievead 0.30 -
Total| 37.B2 IT.36
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32

Cost of Raw Materials Consumed

[Rupees in Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
F1-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Opening Stock 2691.33 18B1.10
Add: Purchases 30657.95 29800373
33345.28 3158043
Less: Internal Censumption 1440,17 154278
31909.11 30037 .65
Less: Closing Stock 2307.70 26%1.33
Cost of Material Consumed 289511.41 2734632

Material Consumed comprises:
1. Kraft Paper 23708.40 21666.50
2. Duplex Board 4151.07 40597 .06
3. Corregated Boaard & Sheet 1426.11 1650.51
4. Lamination Film 20,54 3448
5. Flowr Wheat & Maize 2B0.0% 245497
&. Diks & Fats 35.20 25.75
T. Chemicals, Flavours, Sugar & Salts d41.11 40332
& Skimered Milk Powder 30 0.03
3. Packaging Materials[used in packing of food 147.59 130.25
10. Dextros Monghydrate 0.0 .00
11.Rew Milk 382.01 31751
12.0thers Gdd.12 4E8.07
13. Sovabeen G705 4711
12.Focd product 27.97 L3.10
15.Food Ingredients 0.0 16,56
30951.58 28889.11
Less Internal Consumptlon 1440.17 154278
29511.41 2734633
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23 Changes in Inveniomes

[Hupans in Lakhs)

Yiear endeg! Year ended
El-Mar-2033 I1-Mar-2023
Lnyvenbiries b the sid of the year
Fnished Goads 30011 &l R
Work-in-Frogress 12087 134.33
Serap :L:Iﬁl 015
&22.13| 526,10
Lnventaries at the beginning of the year
Einlshad Goads 404.81 378,43
‘Wark-In-Propres: 12433 3566
Scrap I:L:IEI 1.83
L, 29| BES.01
Kot [Increase) [ Dosrease 10, 16 139,51
3 Emplovee Bersefits Dkpenses
|Aupees in Lakhs]
Year ended Year erded
Ri-hdar-2023 31-Mar-2027
Salaries & Wages 178423 155827
Bonus & Exgriia 33,02 31.63
Leawe with wagas .33 0.7
Comtrbutions to Provident Furd® 7454 E7.32
Comtribusticns ta Employes State insurance Fund® 1684 16.32
Gratuliy® 2765 25.05
Sraff Wellare Exponses 16366 135,13
Total 2105432 182443

*Aefer note no, 47

24.1 Excess rearagerial ramuneration of R 3,19 jakhs has boen paid withaut apprevel of mermbens in the Generad

Meeting of the Company.
3.2 For réloted party discleawres refer note no. 45
35  Flnanoe Costs

{Rugess in Lakns)

¥ear ended Wear gnded
F1-Mar-F0F3 A1-pAnr-2002

Intareit Experse one
[1] Tenm Lasns Trarm Barkcs 12118 A0E.40
(] Cthass Borrowing Costs 260.01 313,45
|#d] Imterest on lease Lahilitles 4.84 1.24
Total] 3B5.E7 421.08

36  Depradiation and Amortisation Experaes
[Fupess in Lakhae)

Foar end Year ended
21-Mar. 2023 Ri-M;r-'tilﬁl
Depreciation on Praperty, Plant and Equioment Liad, & 1357, 40
Amartisation of Right 1o Use 3 7308
Deprecation of [rvestmens properties &, 6.6
AMOITiEATon on Intanpible Assets a, #.60
~ Total 137336 1427.23|
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ar

Other Expanses
{Rupees in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 A1-Mar-2022
Manufacturing Expenses:
Consumption of Stores and Spare Pars 1194.11 910,04
Consumption of Black Printing & Design 604,91 502,24
Pawer and Fuel 1358.57 1152.39
Factory Rent including Lease Rentals 3.87 513
House Keeping Expenses 23.73 15,00
Carrigge Imward Expenses 2158 15.50
Contractor wages 1337.83 1074.02
Repairs to - Machinery 517.83 563.06
Rerpairs to - Cthers 279.21 335.57
Sub Total| 5352.64 4572.94
Administration Expenses:
Rant 23,95 36.75
Insurance 78.49 5187
Rates and Tawes ar.64q 47 .56
Trewelling Expenses 139.67 g3 97
Conveyance Expenses 659,38 657,781
Primting B Stationary 1329 14 53
Fostage, Telegram E Telephong 23,68 24.39
Legal and Frofessional 85.12 43.0a
Retainership Charges 71.44 100.43
Security Service Charges 76.47 5548
Membership & Subscriptson 6.42 5.06
Car Maintenance B Vehical Upkeep &6.06 £3.23
Electricity B Water Charges 24.33 74 48
General Expenses 36.08 230
Ermployees Recruitment & Training Expenses £.26 34.57
Charity & Donation 3.79 13.37
150 Cartificetion Chargaes E.28 9,74
Sundry Balances Written off 10.73 41.53
Software charges 4.87 3 g1
Bad Debts Written aff 6,48 29,63
Provision for bad debis 6.03 7171
Frior Perlod Expenses 0.00 243
Listing Faes 0.54 0.64
Expensies bowards C5R Activities{refer 1o note no,37,1) 23.35 14,69
Provision for doubtful advances 69.73
Imypairmant of investmeants 48,00
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Prowision for expected credit loss 16.72 =
Penalties 38.24 0.3
Director Sltting Fae 1.26 .
Interest on late fes-GST 0.53 1.41
Interest an late tds 035 0.0a
Forelgn exchange fluctuaticon 0.69 T 86
Bank Charges 13.52 &
Sub Total 1045 .50 57105
Selling Expenses:
Consurnption of Packing Materials {Net| 361.33) 333,40
Frelght Crutweard { Met) 121667 1075990
Sales Promotion Expenses 118.89| 128,77
Discount Allowed 33.02 21.78
fAvertisement & Publicity 1.58 0.47
Sales Tax Paid 1.2% 9.91
Damages & Claims 146.69 123,50
Commission on Sales a.77 5.40
Praduct & Sample Distribution Exp 1.97 10.78
Sub Tokal 1885.14 171391
Auditor's remuneration{excluding applicable taxes)
ALt Fas A4.00 .00
For ather services i0.29 0.E2
For Limsted Rewview 0.Fo 0,70
Sub Total 4,95 5.5
Total| BZEE.27 7163.42
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Standalone Notes on Financlal Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

¥ 1- Detadls of SR [Conparate Social Nesponsibaty ) expenditure.
The nature of CSR activities undertaken by the company includss proamoting sducatian, heslth care and enwironmental
sutainabllity. The details of C5R expenditere iz given below

[Particulars Wear mrded
J1-pAar-2023
(Fupaes in Lakhie) |
B.Gr0ss amount reguined 1o be cpent by the com pary Currant Year 17.07
Previaus Year 104y
B. Amount spent during the year
'-}t:n'rsr.rl.-:mn.-'amuhlmnﬂfang A -
Prewpws pear i=—J
] On purpshies stbar thas |7 abase 13.35
Provigue pear 14689
5B Aacriviti=s with relased parties 231%
Previnus pear 1469

There is no shortfall at the end of Rdarch 31,2033 and March 31, 2027 in terma of amaunt reguisad ta be spent by the camparmy.
For cortributlon made ta relaced partias refes note ne. 45

111



&CL LIMITED

Standalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

Moke Hﬂnrnirll Per Shaire {Ruge=s in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2033 I1-Mar-2022
Earmings Per Sharo
i Met Profit alter Tax as per Profit and Loss Statement
attributeble o Equity Sharehoiders 145065 993 249
i) Wizighted Average Mumber of Equity Shares used as 3,000,085 3,000,085
dengminator for caloulating EPS
i) Acdd/(less); Adjustment for elimation of shares for Cross Holding between 42,000 42,000
KCL Limited & Ginni Packaging Private Limitsd
iv) Weigted number of equiry shares 2,958,085 2,958,085
] Basic Earnings par Share {in As.) 48,36 3375
wil  Diluted Earnings per Share [im R.) 48.36 33.75
vii} Face Walue per Equity Share [in RBs,} 10 10

The basic and dilluted EPS as per audited financial statement for the year ended 315t March 2022 was Re. 33.58 per
share

Mobe 39

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
{Rupees in Lakhs)

As ok Asoat
31-hiar-2023 31-blar-2022
Contingent Liabkifities
Clalms against the Company not acknowledgsd as dabt
1} Surety Bond for availing duty under EPCS Scheme £8.94 E9.84
2] Letter of Credits 394,31 109.45
464,26 175480
Commitments
- Estimneted amount of Contracts remaining 1o be exsecuted on Capital 66482 1163 64
Aceount and not provided far [Net of Sdvances)
- Export Dbligation against Import under EPCG Licence 4817 15 AB17.15
A1 .07 5o70.78
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B -ah

Discizaures as regquieed under Ind-a% 1157 Fewensn T oosiraos with cotomar

231 Disaggragaiion of Revenue:

Yeur Ended 3150 Marh, 102 % (LT AT T
Prodis type | Coragabed Beandi & Boges | Duphes Beand Cartom] Foed Producis | ek /Calry Prosucts| Srrap Inter- Comuem Tolal
Prdikid Conirly 4171 36 BESS.ES E2F LT 112064 o.ns Ldafi 3% 45T
SCrap 100 b 200 2802, a5 o.0n zB:E_Ei
Total 1175036 REGG L1235.57 132064 | 1 e 144017 1150400
TaEF Ended 3100 Marcly, 10X [Aiymuesm Lakhs)
Peodat type | Covragated Beands hnhutl|lrl-__i|lblﬂd-1|l:irlm Fogd Praducts |k | Dalny Preducts itap Inier- Commum Fatal
Fmizand Gondy TG 04 fi79.84 [EREE 1) 137165 [ [TCEET] 413531
5t ol aco [ ooal A ia 0.0a §BCE S0
|1‘lrhll IEATE 54| [FECET]| vu.‘l:d LITLER .50 155753 A532.31
A0,% Terdng of iranser of goods
Yeur Endad 1 Alarch, 103 | Fugssps in Kakhes)
Frodact type | Coomugaced Boards & Boxes | Duples Bowrd Cartorm| Faod Products | MUk /Dairy Praducts [ | brftmr- Commumiption Tanal
Paint in Tims 175025 FESE 53 L215 57 AR LR S 144017 S1Ei480
Chwer thie Be I:I.III| .00 0.0 [FT) - .00 0041
Tatal AR TR TR E855.53] LI25 57 L330.61 LBOE 13&0.1F 5151480
Wear Endiad 3145 fdanch, 2038 {Rupe=s In Lakhei
Prasduct Coonugned Boards & Bones | Duphes Board nuw-l Faad Froducs | IR Dairy Products Seiag inkgs- Comumption|  Todal
PFant iz fime W04 [TEEF] FTEL J] LiF2 S TR0 50 155752 [T FER
Cver the Hive ] | 11,041 .00 - .00 000
Tatad f T 517584 1s159a 1337 4% 150650 155752 A5547.31
an.i srapraghksal Maracs
Wgar Endicd 385 Masch, 2003 ﬁEInL&H
| Product ppps | Comugaied Boands & Bases u Bocard Ciepanis | Food Preduces | Mk fOsiry Producm | RLEF- L : Toknl
Irull ALTA T AANT 51 L35 5T 15354 11190 A0 LT 5151400}
af Ireita [Ten, o) 000 (] D .0
41750340 GR55.53 122557 1!.I.I!LI!.-I| 1H01 9K e £958314. 56
Voar Ended Tiat March, 3021 [Hispme iny Lakdna)
Product typs | Cor i Boardh & Bewes | Cupies Soand Canons | Food Preducts |Mik Prodecty Inter Conkumpton | Total
i 35E7R.3 517004 1411.91 1232 65 130450 L1557 5] 20435
af e ia 0 LoD [ lia) 0oa - [iXai] T
o 587699 517954 1411.91 12Fr5E| 18D, 50 155753 [ETTEN T
b5 4 mponiiiatien o feseriue m‘-}uﬂﬂﬂwn Price;
if Lk
Particu laes Year Fesded 31-Masch-223 Yawr Ended 1L-March-2032
(Srdad seesniun recogtioed curing the pear 153450 3043, 33
B! Irargkas po W BB CLldsan ETETS .00
M| reeeniuE reoog need Guning the yesr 51514.B0 554,37

P pdusAmEen Dol Aevenus fam cormrechs mombhich fesight b comd dered as Wb be oo s ran e T bissn mads m el corsidemmion iz tomme of ind 25 115 “Sewasue
from Enek rect with Curiomen™ dus to ungsa@ssilny of eguired data. Howeser, in viiw of Bhe reacagea  thic sl pat beve s impee an profi dor the ymar
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MNote-31
41.1

aL.4

416

The Tallowirg Larnd aloted | purchased are vt to ba ragisterad in the narme of Comphng
a| The comgany has entered ina Agresment for purchase of Land measuring 4.53 Acre & Village Gumshani,

Tehshil- Bajpur, Urranchal, Dis- Pdham Singh Magar, Khata Mo 0057, Khaszara Mo 315/3.3.59 acre Ares. and
BmoUng paid 10 parry was debited in Capital Work in Progress up to 31.09.2021. Tl date the possecsion of the
property has gl been received. However due ta refusal far the registration of the the 333 progerty by the
seder, the Company has filed a suit ageinit him and the manter |s still sub-udiced with the courts and now the
A, gaid o the saller has been transferred to other non current assets.

b The Company had made payment against slicomant of Industrial Plon Ma, 254-255, Incustrial Estane Sector,
R ka Mea, Faridabad, measwing area of B100 =g mbr and received posiession certificete of such land on
dated 30.10.2045 which was shown s Capital work in progress up to 31.03.2021. Haweuer, the campany has
debited cost of such land in its propermy, plant & equipment bl 1he convegance deed &5 ot exerdted in tha
narme af cormpany due te non-compietion of the praject i time.

c) In the earller years, the Company had made payment sgalrst allorment of indusirial Plot Mo, 202 -215,
Industrinl Estate food park Saho, Ambals, Hargana, measuring area of 4050 sq. mir and recelved possession
cenFicate of wuch land on dated 10,10.2006 snd therefore, the company has debitad cost al such land in s
property, plant & aguipment. Howeever, the cormesgsnce deed of such land, i the nams of thie cerngrary has
not besn made since the company has not peéd instalment of enhanced ol amounting to Rs .07 Lacs for
such land

The Sricity Project of the cormpary has come nto aperation in the manth of March 2017 for manufacturing af
Corrugated Bowes. This unit & situated on 10 acres of Lease Hald Land {99 yeard) ot Sathyowveds Sub-Déstricr,
Warscaishpalern Mandal, Bacherla Panchayat of Mopurupal Willags, Chitteoe District, Andhra Pradesh and this
unit iz eligible for tax benefits vp bo Assessment Year 202021 as specified in Section 3240 of the ncome Tax
fazn, 1961,

the campany bad recaived certaln concerns raised By ane of Ex-cérecter of the company with respect o
rariers of corporate governance arc some other aspects of acoourts of the company. As per the infarmation
and explanations glen to ws, the management khas refuted these sllegstions and the matier & pending befora
Hon, National Compary Law Tribunal and managerment believes that this would have no imgact on stendalone
financial statements.

In the opinion of the Soard of Directors, the Currant Assets, Loans and Advances are of the salue 3 stabed if
feaked I ordinary Coirse af butiness.

COMD-15 has ceused diruptions to businesses acrass India, The managerient hai considered subsiquent
avenipintarna and external irformation in fEnafising varous financlal estimates as &t the date of approval of
thesa financial results angd have not idemifled ory material impact on the carmying value of assers Fabifities or

provishans. The managerment wil contiue to clesely monitar any changes 1o future scorcmic conditicns and
g3sess 43 impact an the operations.

Sales Tax pssessment of units of the company situated I dilferent sates have been completed wp to Financial
Year 2016-17 and assessarmant for the nemt financial pears are in process.
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41.7

al.8

q1.9

4119

41.11

Thie incoeme Tax Assessement u's 1433 of the Incoms Tax A, 1961 has baen completed up bo ALY, 201415
and Income tax demand af Be.3%.02 Fakhs i mestanding s on date pertains to A, 2000-10 1o A, 2002-13,

against which reguest for rectification has been filed with the dept and thersfore no provision has seen made
in thie boaks of acoourts.

The company does nat have any perding Pigationg & on dale exeepl below:

« Ol Wiric Petition woder Artiche 2367237 of the Constrution of India on daved 3005 2049 has been flied
againgt Allahbac Benk for lssuance of writ in the nature of mandasmis directing the respondents fo redunsd
g 30.B4, 7535/~ illegally charged on scoount of take over charpes [Foredlasure charges) under tha garh of
releazing the security doecumants oo rransfer of koan,

= The Company has flad recovery sult in Lower f District court, against three debtars [previsus year-two
dehiters)involving amownt of BS.32 66 Lacs (previous year Be.15.57 Lacs| for redovery & the matter is pondiag
for disposal

The Company has filed ‘Writ Petiton in the month o March, 3031 &fainst Greater Moida Industrial
Davelopmant Authoeity in respect of 18 leate hold property situsted at 118, Udyes WViker, Grester Nodia,
sgpinst outstanding dues of Rs.3.57 Crores demandod by the autharity for autsanding lease rent payments,
Interest & other charges leived thereon, before Hon'ble Allahabad High Court, which is gending for dapasal as
on date.

During the year, the Comgany has nat entered into any long-term contracts including derfeative contracts,
The comrgany b not peid or declsred dividend during thie vear
Thi commgany hal rernal &ud System in place, however, the Internal Audit ol twe units of the campany for

the last quarter af the years wag not carded out since the recards of the two units were not pravided b the
Irterreal Buditors by the unit Incharge:
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Note 42  Loans or Advances to Specified Persons

Repayhle on demand

{Rupaes in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2032
Type of Borrower Gross amount Gross amaunt % aof Tatal
of Loan or % of Total Loans, of Loan or Loans and
advance in the and advances advance in the advances |
nature of loan in the nature nature of loan the natuwre
outstanding _nm“_ putstanding loan
Promoters - - - - -
Directors--- - =
KMPS - -« - -
|Other Related Parties as per the Act 1033.18 89,33% 1025.94 91.06%

42,1 Refer note no. 6& 45 for lnans to Related Parties
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MNote 43
Trade recievable ageing as on 31.03.2023 {Rupees i Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Farticulars Less than 6 months | & months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3years | More than 3 years Tatal
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 67dd.13 B2.57 39,53 191 2.15 6870.29
__“__”_ Undisputed Trade Raceivables — considered doubtiul 0.00 0.00 100 730 56.52 64 83
(i) Disputed Trade Recevables considered good 000 .00 0,00 0,00 .00 0.00
[iv] Disputed Trade Beceivables considered dolstful 145 0.1 15.61 D43 9,29 2N
TOTAL 6745.58 83.49 56.14 969 67.96 EO62.56
Trade recievable ageing as on 31.03.2022 [Fupees in Lakhs)
Cutstanding for following periods frorm due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 months | 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3years |More than 1 years| Total
(i} Undisputed Trade recervables - considered good G805.20 #4327 20.11 405 12.41 §946.10
{ii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtful .00 0.00 0.00 1583 5.66 25.49
(i} Disputed Trade Recelvables considered good 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000
|(iv] Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtiul 148 10.90 0.64 B.70 0.00 1172
{TOoTAL G506, 68 95.22 20,75 52,58 18.07 659331
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Note-44
Trade Payables ageing schodube- 35 on 31.0%.2023

[Rupeas in Lakhs)

Ourtstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less tham 1 year 1.2 yiears 2.3 ypars| Maore than 3 years Total
[THMSME 0,04 {00 1,08 0,00 00
[iifOthers GO60.79 12.63 13.00 195.02 (28145
{i} Disputed dies — M5SME 0,00 .00 .00 0L .00
[iv| Disputed dues - Others 0. .00 0,00 0,00 00
Total E0G0.TI 11.53 13.00 155.02 FEELAS
Trade Payables ageing schedule- as on 31.03.2022 [Aupees in Lakhs)
Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years| More than 3 years Total
(| heSPAE 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00
lii}Dthers GGl 65 1577 20.54 18145 92381
(i) Disputed dues - MSHIE .00 0.00 000 (00 (.00
{wh Disputed dues — Ofhers _"_..n__n__ 0.00 [T 00| .00
Total BEYS.65) 18.77 24.94 181.45 692381
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HMote 46
Sagment information

Tha Camparny Rad identidlied the following two Primary Basinsss Segments dusing the year ended 3151 March, 3023

1. Pachaging Prodweits
2. Fosd Products

Ergaged M Manutaciuring of Corrugated Boxes and Duples Baard Camong
Emgaged in Manutaciuring of Poad @ roducts Wafer Stacks, Extruded Ceraals
Froducts, Ready o use Bakery Products, Slucose D & Dairy Prodiecss]

Primiry Busirsis Sagment |Ringszes in Lakhs)
Partculars Period Fackaging| Food Preducts| Corporste & m.l‘
Produscis Ur-alics pdile
Riigniss
ross for the Yes: snded F1-Pdar-23 5040771 258741 BI0E5.17
A1Mar23 ddFE IS SAAN.50 AP By
ey Sagment Tuf rawer For the Yes ended F1-Marg3 1412.19 787 188017
31-hdar-2X ARy 47 CER il A55x.32
Expe=rmial Turn ot For the Yea ended Hlohiar-31 48008 52 53843 E1ET4E
S1-Mar-2¥ 324 gF L6 R by
Less: GET RECOWERED For the Year ended 1) 1505.13 79545 TEOOEE
51-Mse-11 e 21845 [ F Fl
Bl Turncwer Far tha Yeds endied 1-Minr-71 d1a80, 38 PFEERT] HXFI4AT
31-Marl 37457.54 | FI5E05 FETEE AR
Rizsuly
Sugrrars Nasuit | | | |
Proft Nefore Tax & Intenest For L Vi avcbeac] 11-mar-23 171449 -BOI &% A7.36, 24g4.50
13-Mar-22 _l_rﬂ.i'.:" Srar -13 48 1882
Dperaiing Frodn For 18 Tear anced 33=-htar 2y 2a84.5
Ji-Mur-22 1aa2a1
Inberast Expories For the Yenar anced St-Mar-2% 386.8
31-Mar-22 471 08
Dither Income For the toar anded B1-Mnr-z23 4762
31-Mar-I1 Fr
Incomee Tax For the Year ended 3b-Mar-x3 Ga7.03
31-Mar-23 $27 64
Profit From ondinany set vl Far the Yesr ended Z1-Mpi-F1 1400 5
E1-Mmr-11 S,
Bdd ey 55 Faar tha v i 31-Mmr- 3 =503
3Pl - 33 215
et Profit afeer Tas Far the Year gnded 31-PAa-10 142464
11-Mar-11 20T AR
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Otner Eviormanon
Segmant Adsirs IR pee in Lk
Froperty, Plart sad Equlpment Foor thin Waar anded Li-har-23 s e TE1.59 80,77 TI52.55
3i-Mar-11 b FRLAE 40422 PSS I6
inganilble auien For the Fear anded Fi-Mar-21 nm| 0.0
Fi-bar-2d 000
Capicel Work In Pragresa Ii-Mar-23 Q.00 {a ¥ ] 0 0.
dn-hdar-a2 Lar oo a.:tl';[ 3.31
Right of s Sxsen Fier thi Fear e 3L-mar-23 sl s} 6. B0 100674
Fbdar232 [=Ye ] Azl e i
Inumttmans Fronerty Far the Year enged 31-Mar-23 o.00 170.82 :ml.u‘
A 1-Mdar-22 oo 16877 168 77
Finmncisl Appets
IRy tarthe Year anded ILMar-23 15.8E (TR
I1-5dar-22 617 E-'-I.l?E
Crher Finasdcial dssats Eqr the Year ended JL-mar-23 120 .60 .00 :LHIE
A fdar-22 Tra oLon LX) 7.24
FOtherdon Cwrent o=y Enor the Year ended Ji-Mar-23 -E08. 95 A6A% 107745 R4 8%
S1-haar-2E . 0R 1607 107030 £29.97
PRl Agiars, oo and Far the Yes gnded 31-Mor-23 10286.98 ASH. 1 LR 11335 EZ
|t mnces 31-Mips-2F LE233.08 BABE.54 144.07 1121273
|
Tatal dsgment Loty For the Year endod Si-pie-h 15871044 163634 17835 HITTEE
31-Mar-22 LASTT 06 Lssngl 1971 85 2113100
]
Total Assabs Far the Yos anded H1-Pee-23 F131104
Ei-Alar-21 ERISE B
Segmard Linbiliie
Blan Cprrent Linbilliles For the Year ended 1-Mar-3d 1015.08] 18504 15556 153,43
31-Miar-21 1407.5% 17815 .11&',_5? LIRS
Current LiabslTiies & Preitians Tor the Year enged 31-Wiar-23 458,00 1714z 1663 RETETY
3i-har-d2 AL 3 129 40 33.57 11338
Tiodal Boganeny Liobilitias L] 311-Mar-23 BESTOE s pa 332.18 k.8
13- hosar-23 1%ET 3 308 55 JE0L24 1142670
Tivkad Liabiliekei &gl 23-Mar-23 U561
13-hear-22 LE43ET
Capitnl Tmployed &g a 31-Mar-23 T4LE AL 17T 1450.16 12154.07]
38-Mar-22{ EIELS 1349065 117140 10730.23]
Capital Expundiiurs B an lr-mrzal Ak 50
I J1-Mar-23 Q02,04
1I:I=.-p-r|=1:|ll:l.m Earthe Year enced 31-1.1-.-131 110439 13147 L 1I74.27
31-Mnar-22 123242 453 25 a2 41 1427,12
Hon - Cash Expenses other than Far the Year enced F1-Mpr-Fi 0.00
Dapruciaticn S1-Mipr-ii oo

Gomgary's ol umaser.

‘Wiin in ingha
|

dE T Rarwanda i par mph:;ulm

4372437
Hil

H5.1 Sabs 10 W0 cuslamans of e company s RS 130 Crores onevicus pesr Be 118 Crores) which @ mone Fan 10% of i
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Mioae-a7

Ermphayan Remati

2] Dafined Contribunion Plana
Thic Comgany R recognted T4 59 oy (P T &F.33 lace) a5 contrias o i president fund inGialemant o Prolic & Lo

by Cefined Rensit Plis
Tha Company has 3 sefinad Banafit graquiy plan. Every empligs wha hes comcfaied Tha poars or mors of sera bl Q60 3 gratuity on degafuie ot
15 daps s baey [baet cemracry wada vy Tor zarh compleisd yier &l service, The schieyss iL funded. The Comgany has also provided ne leave Ercashment
whlch i urtuntesd.

Tz Fil kerasirgy Talhe & Sam msrioe the eomgonsin s of the tunided skatus and amoants rictgnized in the belanze el for ther respecties plans |y pur

Actumtial Vakuation 3% on Vet Merch 2023

Summary of revaits
ANupuas e Lakks)
Anmets [ Lability A1-0a AL-01-22
l Fresent walua of colgation 21357 175,71
Fair valus af plan assets Lan 45 rid A7
Het amsets / [Hakillity] recogniged in balance sheat & privaishan -20.1F -BE.24
Summary o mamisarship dats
I lazat - 2-m3-z2|
nl |Mumbar of employsensy CF qEI
Tatal Monthly Falary jLakhs) 55.85) £l 34
c| Jrwaragn Fust Sernice ingars| .79} 7
iusermge Aupa [¥ears) 3315 BT
ApEraEe e msning ivears| Hi
. 18, 19,
WEB'I'E
F| |wemghied average durstios 13.4 13:87]
Actuarial Adsursplion
a) Ecomarnie Asjaimgrtiors
¥3-83-23] 310
i} Dhiounting Faks '-’% 3.2
||| Fuqure lﬂﬂ I B Ea 5
b} Demographic A piom
13328 31-03-F
il Aetiremant Age |'|'|ii|'5:- LEABOIESTD 58
i Moty retes Inchsive of provididn far disabiliy ™ 10G% o BALN (2011 - 14] 100% of WAL 2011 - 18]
wicsdra W i
B} ARIr RS a1 AgE:
s A9 H'nrillq m‘q
iUp o 30 Yedrs 5 £/
[ from 3150 44 yeen : -
Abrem A4 paars I 2
Moriakly & RAAerddiny rases - 2008 el IALN (3001 2-L4) rakey hava ban acsumed which alio rcbudes the 3l e for Ity Iy

Genle of Bamelis

Last  drawn  gealfying
sk,
b} festing Periad 5w of seniice

As per fhe provEions nI'I
5} Inersfa on nomeal retiremant pawnend of Gewhaly AS1
1RT aw amendoed
Edimi ¥ moeTnE
retirament benafit Based)
on sarvice oo the datg
o Euit

&) |Sakany for caloulstion of grabaty

d} |Banwfit br eany retirement  withd sl § reslpragon
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o] |Benefitan desth msenvece

| Il IIJI'I'Ih

me ER] nurl'l'l:J
reteement benefil bas
o0 service upta thi dati
of death & ro wasbng

Pilam Ligility
|marte Encling 31-03-23{ 31-03-23
|m:mum of obligatian s ot the sed of the persd FAHAT] 179.71]
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Th @rmounts recogritid in the income statement
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Standalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

Mote-51
Financial Ratios aed explanation for changes in the cases where BI-FE.EEIEEEH%EEIEE.
Rativ UM [Numesator Dencminator Curesnd Pariod |Previous  |% Change {Reasan forvarance
Period
Currer Ritior Times  |Cumens fsssers Current Lishilties 145 124 1520
Debt equity retio Tiees  |Toize Debes 'V Sharhalder's Equity LT 0.3% 4696 (Due o lower debt & Incesse B
presfit
Dobt Serdce Cowrage Ratlo Tires . [parnng for Debn Serece Dbt spraice ™ pk L 341 B0 |Decrepss wis prmartly o aocaun
of Intrease in piody
Beturm pn Equity Ratic ] M1 Prfits after fanes Hoerape Sharphoicar’s Equity 1350% 2518 M |merease in et profas durieg the
year
Inseniory hanover ratin Tives |Aewenus from operatians Auerage Fesinry 1350 14.07 4,04
Tracke Hecohahles burm over ratin Times _|Revenus from operatians AWETAEE 1T dde Terivabies 742 785 5.48
Trade payables barnover ratio Tres [Nt credil purcheses = oAy Average Trade Payanes 550 a7 .93
purchases + Other
frpenses
Met copitel furmowes ratis {werking capinal turmoee W _anrn::n from ocperationa Swerage Working _._u_u_E__. 154T% 253K -1d.72
ratiak
Het profit ritio % [met prodn afier ax Bguprum {roen operatiors 3278 251% 0,27 |Inereass in net profits during T
i
Betum on-Capital emplayed %  |Eaming before interesk, txes [Capital Employad (5] = 1175 E01% 1340 |increass In net profits during 1
and exnceptional kem Tangilha Het Warth + Tofal
Tebit + Befered Tax
LialriEny war
Aeburm on investomenk % |nberest boome from  Baek|tel igesl BT ol B -
Meposas
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KCL LIMITED
ndalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

53, Odhser statuiory Infoomation as at Sat Maroh 2023 and 3tel March 2022

i} The Compaeny doms nes have any Benami property, whens any procesding has been Infiated ar panding against the comparny for hodding
any Bensmi proparty.

fii] This company does nok hasve any transaction with such antilies whose narme hes bes sinic off under Sectian 243 of the Companise Act
2013 or Sastan 5802 of the Companess Acl, 1955,

§I) Thi Company caas not have ary chearges o satisfaction which |5 yet 1o ba registered with ROC beyond the statutory peried.

[} T Company doss mot have any iImmovable propery whose title deesds ars nat hesd in the reame of the company axcept refer note na. S8.

w}. The Gompany has not any such transaction which 8 not recordad in the books of acceunt that has besn surremdarad ar discdosed as
income durlng tha year in the Epx Avkasuments under the Ineome Tae Act, 1961 {such as, S&anCh OF SUrsey G B0y ather ralavant provisions of
thie Income Tax A, 1961,

wi] The Camparny has not been deciared wilful defaiftor by any bank or fisancial instiution or government or amy gavernmant suihoeiy.

wil) The Cormpany has nat sdvancad or |omnmd or invested funds to any ather personlsh or entityfigs), including forzign ekt
[ntesmadiaries] with the usderisanding that the Intermedany shallz

{a) directly o isdiractly lend or rmvest in cther persons or entities MantFled in ary manmar whatsoever by or an Behal! of the Company
{UEImate Beneficiarias] or

jb| provide any guarantee, secority or the Bl to.or an hehalf of thi Lizimate Bersficiaris

viii] Tha Campary has net recetaed any fund frost amy person(sh ar srnyiies), Inceding foreign eaities (Funding Party| with t5a
undarmanding fwhether fetardad in vwriting ar arhersise] that the corngiany shalls

{a} directhy o Indirectly lend or inuest in other perssal o antitios dentdfied in ary manner whetioeryer by & on behalf of the Furding Parcy
|utimate Benediciaries| or

|} provide any gesraniee, securty ar the e on tehald of the Ultlrace Beneficeries
I} The Carapary has not traded or irsasted in Crypto aurrensy or Virual Currency dusging the finarcial year.

x] The campany has net revaluad any of & Propenty, Plant and Equinmernt.
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HCL LIMITED
Standalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

Miorbe-53 {Rupees in Lacs]
Recontilation of Quarterly bank stock statement for working copltal-FY 2022-23

Amount of ____...E_.E.i_

Particulars As at March 31,2023 difference] As at March 31,2022 difference

Financial Statements| Quarterly return Finaneclal Statements|  Ouarkerly return

[Cuwarter 4 _=...m=E:._m__h_=E=mWﬁ_ 3018.02 23450 675,52 3454 4% 2357 24052

Sundry Dabiors EA0E.40 o417 74 45061 BT L0 G381 132,39

Sardry Creditorns GZHLAS f110.08 1747 RER:) AT10.68 ma.iz

Met Curmeni Assats 364497 2650.11 99476 3502,28 335200 170.28

Tatal 1985253 17520.58) 2331 36 2085217 20105.36 T46.82

Cluarter 3 Irvertary(enduding scrap) 2424.50 221805 20683 254455 243542 109,13

Sumdry Debtors TOE.GH G504, 038 £55.80 HBES 54 [T gy

Sundry Creditoes LRl | S1p4.51 192.01 gvsLm GEAG 2 17170

Met Current Assets 4129.05 355043 57062 3763.09) 715,79 47,31

Total 1897113 1744586 152,28 19028.22] 18590.02) 4380

Quartar 2 Inventorgeschuding serap) 319890 3045926 144,04 2417.81 244304 4477

Suredry Cebior TB61.65 727H.51 38314 634751 626461 13204

Sundry Craditors 612101 5577. 144,23 572708 558178 14531

[riet Current Aasets 4738.74 435019 284,55 315823 313587 e

Tatal 2173110 2065553 106557 1771063 17415.31 355.33

|Cusarter 1 Irvendony] excluding sorap) 3174.15 2043 38 13078 2560.46 184527 EA 51

Sundry Debtors T0Z3.54 843,65 180249 5300.59 S0T363 12716

Sundey Creditars B0 500 179,51 12059 484943 453076 21RET

Mat Currant Assets J9BE 60 380752 181.08 303153 328814 -iT6.1

[Total 0396.1% 19774.05 622.14]) 15722.71 15837 B0 -115.09

The stock statements are Prepared and filed befare complation of financial statements closuro activities inchuding ind AS adjustrents reclassification, st off as
applicabile, which lead to these diffierences between final financial statements and the bank stodk statment based on provisional beoks af aceenis
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KCL LIMITED
Standalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

Mote-54 Term of repayment of term loans & vehicle boans are &5 under- {Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars  |Weighted  sverage!Installment ﬂn__n_mnﬁ.____sh as at Annual repayment schedule
Rate of interest] 31.08.2023
(o)
Term Loans 2023-24 2024-25 025-26 | 2026-27
HDFC Bank 8.30 Monthiy 620.45 251 80 253.41 115.24
HSBC Bank 8.20 Monthly 456 84 225,95 209.61 2103 027
Sub-Total 1077.31 47775 463.02 136.27 0.27
Vehicke Loan 50 Manthly 214.54 107,68 §5.30 45,14 553
Wiy 129,85 58543 | s83 | wmia | 7w
L 236916 106319 | 99135 31767 7.46

134



KCLLIMITED

Standalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{Rupees in Lacs)

55, INWESTMENT PROPERTIES

Giress balamce at beginning

Additions during the year

Dispasals / Deductions

Depreciation for the year

Accumulated Degreciation

et balance at the end of reporting period

Fair ¥alue

Smourt I'EEI:lﬂ,ﬂ'-IS-I‘."II in Staterment of Profit &
Loss for imestment Proportias

Rental Income

A5 &t Az ar
31-Mar-23 A1-pAar-22
223.34 204,09
o8 .00
Q.00 .00
603 B.G5
54,57 47,9
17082 149 52
7084 247.00
Yiear ended Year endead
31 March 2023 31 March 20232
766 7.0

mote no.dl. 3{ch

The investment proparties are lessed to tenants under short term cancellation lease with rental payvable on manthly basis.

Mot 1; The investment propecties consist of residential properties in india and have been categonsed as imvestment
properties based on nature of Hs uses. There has been ng duange in the valuation method adopted

KMote 2: The Tair walue of Investment properties has been determined on the basis of svailable circle rates of the property of
the concerned reglstration authorty and has been ceteporised in kevel 3 fair value.

Maote 3; The conveyance deed of this Investment properties valued at are yet o be executed in favor of the company (refer
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@KCL LIMITED

Standalone Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

56 Ind A5 118

() The Compasy has slected not o Epply the reqerements of ind AS 116 Leases io shart-torm lnnmes &f all
manths o less ond leases for which the umiddrlying asset i of low value, The lpase PEYTETI ivooiated wis

EEpnEe on @ straight-dre Bah cver the oate feem,

(b} infarmabion about leasas g afiich the Company Is a lesiee |5 prasared below

Rigitt-of-use assats
Right-of use aisets relabed bo besse ok propemies

musets that bewr o lesss ferm of 13
b the s hesaes @ feinpnised oy an

Follewing are the chenge: in the carmdng vahas of right &of wse assuts for the your erded March 31, 2033 and

Murch 31, 262 [Augies In Likhs|
Particulars Land & Bui Leasehold Land
March 31, 3023 Flarch A1, 20232 Rarch 81, 2023 Riarch A1, 2022
a} Daening Balance 031 2306 EE T
b} Addiion = E ] 57564 .
cf Begraciation chares for the pair 2340 23.08 - -
ol Closing Ralance 4580 70.21| 938,54 =

The aggrepate depreciation edgunse on ROU aweis

i included andar depreclation and armortisation ERDARAE in the stitwonent of prodit and Lo

and March 31, 39232 in case of Land B Bull

# year ended March 31, 3073 ligding
March 31, 2028 [ March 31 2022

The foflawing iy the mevement Ik o liakbdlites during th
rﬂ'ﬂunﬂirs
i| Dpening Balarice

a1 25,11

[B} Addition 70.21
{£] Firwnce Cost atcrued during the year 4,84 134
d) Payrwent of lease lishiFtos 540 2640

] Closirg Baslance Aid 6 031

ﬁufﬂl-whmuﬂmhrnh-upul cirwent and Asf-current
7 TE TR =

Teane linbilities as st March El,mudmal.mmuﬂﬁumaimm
]

Particulary Mtarch 31, 19__?_3 H-n_;_hﬂ._..'.lﬂu
Han-furrent lesie Bakdligies 2520 48,54
Charrarit luawe |;|.I:llﬂlii 23.35 41,56
[Tekal 4K, 51 TOLE]
Lease |abditied
Maturity snakels - contrectual diseaurbad cach Mows
Particulars Comiraciasl cash NMows
-1 Years 1.8 Years 5 Years and above
Leaze Liakiltes 21.56] 27.08 0.00

In ase of frgwed old property at Grester Molda , Lktar Pradash. fhe camrguny hos filed s writ petition with Grester Neida Industiial Authoricy

|Rifer nota no, G182
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[Ty [ ——— rmn | Tme ety bl bn e sdete | Whnehar 2l vl ieatwiur i | Fropey #70n 42 1 g bkl T

I s Gareypinyg ol & prormtar, i o i i
Balzane ibesi sl A, |-H:h

i Lidib) i isurkes i dlraciar o A
B g
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Propaitp Mlaet Lo BadEng o1 378 Saror 1 Farauied ¢ F0| BTy CONT ALRUES Thlp Dmsd 1015 L Perre g Ll e wmscithan of gm0 mema

Iaaigieeal  |Fiyes LT e Of Chek Cons sy, sk rorith ARTEE T dad By
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JAGDISH CHAND & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

H-20, LGF, GREEN PARK {(MAIN), NEW DELHI- 110016, INDIA
Phones: 26511953, 26533626, 41758467 Fax: 41755467 email: mailifjcandeo.org

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMEERS OF KCL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of KCL
LIMITED {(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company®) and its subsidiary
{the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”)
which comprise the Consclidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, and the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss [ncluding Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consalidated Statement of Cash Flows, the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity for the vear then ended, notes to the [inancial statements
including summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
infermation [hereinafter referred to as the consolidated financial statements).

In cur opinicn and fo the best of cur information and accordng to the
explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the matters described
in the ‘Basis for Qualiied Opinion' section of our report, the aforesaid
Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act®) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards preseribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companics ([ndian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, [*Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2023,
and their consclidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive income its
consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity for the yvear ended
on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

al Asstated in note 6.1 in the sccompanying statement of Consolidated financial
statements, the Company has given loan to a related party company, M/s
KL Milk Products India Pet Lid, amounting to Bs. 966,44 Lakhs. This related
parly has negative net current essets and it has negative net worth as per last
available audited financial statements., As described in the note, the
management, an the basis of its internal assessment, has considered this
lnan as fully recoverable and in the opinion of management, no provision for
dimninution of value is required.

BRANCHES AT NOIDA, BHIWADI (RAJASTHAN), GURUGRAM (HARYANA)
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In the absence of sufficient audit evidence to support the manapement's
aforesaid assessment, we are unable to comment upon the recoverability of
such loan.

b) Me adjustment of Eevenuie haz been considered in some cases for Variable
consideration of reight in terms of Ind AS 115 *Revenue from Contract with
Customers™) where sale price 1s inclusive of freight. (Refer Note No. 40.5)

) Excess Managerial Remuneration of Rs. 3.19 Lakhs has been paid without
approval of members in the General Meeting of the Company. (Refer Note No.
34 B 45)

d] The Subsidiary Company has not complied with the provisions of section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 while extending loan to Holding Company of Rs.
9.50 lakhs. [Refer Note No. 42)

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing [SAs] specified under section 143(10} of the Act
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accerdance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
fnancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
maost significance in our sudit of the Consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be Key Audit matters to be
comrmunicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matter

e e

 Auditors Response

Impairment losses represent
management's best estimate of
expected credit losses  on
receivables at the reporting
date. We have focused on this
ared because the measuremnent
of impairment losses requires
management o make a series of
judgements and decisions, The
Group assesses impairment of
trade receivables oth
individuglly and collectively at
gach reporting date. In
estimating the amount of
impairment losses, which is
equal to the Expected Credit
Losses [ECL), managemerit
takes into account, among
pther things, the payment
history of the receivables and
the historical experience of
credit losses, and an
assessment of both the current
and expected general economic
conditions at the daie of the
report, Thus, the kev arcas of
measurement uncertainty and
judgements related to  the
recognition of impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

» the assumptions used to
estimate the credit risk of
the related exposure and the
client's expected future cash
flovwrs;

» identification of exposures
with significant credit risk or
credit impairment (default)

 Impairment of Trade Receivables

Among others, we have carried
out the following procedures in
this arca:

s Agscssing the
appropriateness  of  the
Group's impairment
methodology apainst  the
regquirements  of relevant
financial reporting
standards.

» Understanding and

assessing the key internal
control systems in place in
relation to trade recewvables
recoveries and impairment
testing.

# Testing the accuracy and
completeness of the Group's
ECL calculation as at 31
March 2023.

»  Procedures related o
collectively  valued trade
receivables (based on the

expected credit loss (ECL)
model)

« We tested key parameters of
the collective Impairment
model, such as historical
information on default rates
and their impact on the
model, taking into account
the Group's own historical
credit loss experience.

& Procedures related to the

totality of  impairment
provisions:

=« Assessing whether the
financial statements’

disclosures about expected
credit losses related to trade
receivables are presented in
accordance with the
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t;]:.-qujreme:nts of relevant
financial reporting
standards.

Revenue Recognition

For the vesr ended 31 March
2023 the Group has recognized
revenue from operations of Rs.
43,714 21 Lakhs.

Revenue 1s a key performance

indicater and therelore in
internal and external
stakeholders” [ocus. Revenue

recognition has been recognized
gz & key audit matter due to
diverse and complex revenue
streams across the Group.

We have identified following key
areas for consideration:

In line with Ind As 115, the
| (sroup recognizes revenue when

a performance obligation is

satisfied by transferring control
| over a promised good or service.

Due to the Group's business

model, overtime revenuecs arc
| currently not material.

! Revenue from the sale of goods

is recognised in the income
statement when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the
buyer. This normally means
when a product has been
|deli?erad to the customer in
I accardance with agreed delivery
terms.

Our audit procedures included
the following:

« Evaluation of internal
coantrel activities over
revenue recognition and

testing of key controls.

s Analysis of sipnificant sales
contracts to verify correct
Ind AS accounting
treatment.

s Testing timeliness of revenue
recognition by comparing
individual sales transactions
to delivery documents and

by checking significant
credit motes  issusd  after
vear-end.

+ Analysis af TEVEnue

transactions using audit and
data analvsis techniques.

s Testing of accounts
receivables by requesting
confirmations from the
company's customers and by
reconciling cash payments
received after the yvear end
against the accounts
receivable balances at the
vear end.

% Aszessed  the management
udgement and supporting
documentis around timing of
recavery of such costs,

* Selected a sample of sales in
corrugated box and food
segments, made pre and
post vear end, agreeing the
date of revenue recognition

to third party support, such
as receipts, to confirm sales
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are recognized according to
contract conditions.

» Examined inveice samples
with various shipping terms
to test whether revenue has
heen recognized correctly.

¢ Agmessed  the disclosures
made by the Group
(Also refer para (b} of our
basis for qualified opinion &

Mote 40.5)

Emphasis of Matter

a)

b)

We draw attention to Note Ko. 41.3 in the accompanying statement of
Consolidated financial statements, wherein it has been stated that the
Holding Company had received certain conoerns raised by one of Ex-director
af the Holding Company with respect to martters of corporate governance and
some other aspects of accounts of the company. As per the information and
explanations given to us, the management has refuted these allegations and
the matter is pending before Hon. National Company Law Tribunal and
management believes that this would have no impact on Consolidated
Lnancial statements.

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

The Group has Inventories of Rs. 3,019.17 Lakhs as on 31 March 2023 (Refer
Note Mo 8). We have not observed physical inventorics of Raw materials,
Work-in-progress, Finished Goods, Scrap & Stores and spares as on 31
March 2023 as we were appointed as Independent Auditor of the Holding
Company on 15 July 2023,

Ouir conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information other than the consolidated finanecial statements and Auditor's
Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
the ather information. The ather information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report but does not include the Consalidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this anditor’s report.

Cur opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Consclidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information, when it becomes available, and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we rcad the other information, if we conchude, that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those
charged with pgovernance as required under SA T20 ‘The Auditor's
responsibilitics Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
the matters stated in Section 13415) of the Act with respect to the preparation of
these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated fnancial performance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frands and other irregularities; sclection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
mamtenance of adequate internal [nancial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated hinancial
atatements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror, which have been uscd for the
purpose of preparation of the conselidated financial statements by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the respective Management
and Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group is regponsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters rclated to going concern and using the going concern basis
af accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to Lhgquidale or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternalive but to do s0.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are

also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the holding
compeny and its subsidiary.
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Auditors’ Responsibility for the aundit of the Consolidated Fimancial
Btatements

Dur objectives gre to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Consolidated financial statements s5 a whole =re free from materal
misstatement, whether due to fraud er érror, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not 4 guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
alwavs detect a malerial misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
agpregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic décisions
of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial statements.

Asg part of an audit in accordance with 8As, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consclidated
financial staterments, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for pur opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenticnal
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s (btain an understanding of internal contrel relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
gection 143(3](i] of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

s Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty cxists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant deubt on the Groups's ability to continue as a going concern, If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report te the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, il such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
arc based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our aunditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group lo cease Lo
conbnue 5% -a going Concern.,

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated
financial statements, meluding the disclosures, and whether the
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Consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achicves fair presentation,

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the fnancial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the consclidated
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent aunditors.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in intermal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
saleguards.

From the matters comprunicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
Consolidated financial staterments of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should net be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matters

a) The consolidated financial statements of the company for the year ended 31
March, 2022 were audited by another auditor who expreased an Qualified
Opinion on those statements vide Independent Auditor’s Report dated 5
August, 20022

Cur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

bl Some disclosures as required under Ind AS and schedule [l Division 11 of the
Companies Act, 2012 of the company for the year ended 31 March, 2022,
which were not incorporated in audited accounts for the year ended 31
March, 2022 which now have been incorparated by the management and have
not been audited by us (Refer Note Na, 59.4),

Char opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3{xxi) and 4 of the
Companics (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order”/ "CARQ") issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143[{11) of the Act, to be included
in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given
to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Holding Company
and the Subsidiary Company, we give in *Annexure A" a stalement on the
malter apecified in paragraphs 3{xxi) of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

al

b

)

We have sought and except for the matters described in the Basis for
CQualified Opinion paragraph, obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belicf were necessary
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

Except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have
been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Consohidated Balance Sheet, the Consclidated Statement of Profit and
Loss [including Other Comprehensive Income) the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

Except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

The matters described under Basis of Qualified Opinion section above,
may, in our opinion have an adverse effect on the functioning of the
respective Companies.

On the bams of the written representatione received from the directors ag
on 31 March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
respective companies, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3lst
March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act except in case of Mr., Sanjeey Jain (DIN 00011248}, director in
Heolding Company.
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We are unable to comment on whether Mr. Sanjesv Jain [DIN 00011248
Director of the Holding Company is disqualified from being appointed as
director in terms of sectien 164 [2} of the Act since we have not received
written representation for Mr. Sanjeev Jain.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with
reference to fAnancial statements of the Group and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure
B". Our report expresses a Qualified Opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s Internal Financial Controls with
reference to Consolidated financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31
March, 2023 on its financial position in its Consolidated fnancial
statements (Refer Note No. 349)

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses
during the year ended 31 March 2023,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protecticn Fund by the Group during
the vear ended 31 March, 2023.

iv. |a} The Managcment of the Holding Company has represented that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
ar invested [cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any
ather sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company {*Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b} The Management of the Holding Company has represented, that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
cither individually or in the aggregate] have been received by the
Holding Company from any person or entity, including foreign enticy
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company shall, whether,
direetly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
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identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantce, security
or the like on behalfl of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(c] Bascd on the audit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come
to our nolice that has cansed us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under {a) and
(b} above, contain any material misstatement.

v, The Group has not paid or declared dividend dunng the vear and
until the date of this report.

3, In our opinion and as per information and explanations given to us, the
managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2023 has been paid [
provided by the Holding Company to its directors during the year is not in
aecordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. [Refer para ¢ of the
matter described in basis for qualified opinion paragraph above along with
Note No. 34 & 43).

For JAGDISH CHAND & CO.
Firm Registration Number: 000129N
Chartered Accountants

[Pawan Kumar)

Partner

Membership NMumber: 311057
o

Place:
Dake:
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDERT AUDITOR'S REFORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even
date to the members of KCL LIMITED on the Conscolidated Financial
Statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2023)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us
by the Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the
normal course of audit, we state that:

1. As required under clause 3{xxt) of the Order we report as under:

According to the information and explanations given to us, following company
incorporated in India and included in the Consclidated financial statements,
have certain remarks included in the report under Companies [Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 ("CARG"|:

8r. HName CIN Clause number of the
No CARO report which is
L qualified or adverse

1 | KCL Limited | L74800DL19B3PLCOGR008 | 3(i)(c), 3Gi(by, 3iiiib),
{Holding idiplc), 3fakd), 3fiible),
Company) (), 3fiv),  3(x)(c),

= - 3{xiv)(a), 3xiv)(b)

2 | KCL Paper Mill | UZ1010DL2Z0Z1PTC380413 | 3{i)(b), 3liilic), i),
Private Limited 3(iii)(e), i), 3fiv),
{Subsidiary
Company} ; |

For JAGDISH CHAND & CO.
Firm Registration Number: (001290
Chartered Accountants

(Pawan Kumar)
Partner

Membership Number: 511057

TN

Place of signature: New Delhi

Date:
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ANNEXURE “B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 2{g) of the Independent Auditors" Report of even
date to the members of KCL Limited on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have gudited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KCL
Limited ["the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary as of 31 March, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Holding Company as of and [or the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Finaneial Controls

The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over [inancial reporting criteria
established by the respective Companies congidering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrels that
were operating effectively for enguring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence 1o respective company's policies, the
gafeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and crrors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Aunditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility 15 to express an opinion on the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company,
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Cruidance Note® and the Standards on Auditing, issued by [CAI and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financidal controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit ¢vidence abourt the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
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their aperating ecffectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
mternal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to raud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in terms of the reports
referred to in the “Other Matter” section below, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
company as at Balance Sheet date.

Meaning of Internal Finanecial Controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 1s a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted sccounting principles. A company's
internal financial contral over Anancial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
asscts of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of hnancial statements in
pecordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3] provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statcments.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference Lo
Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial contrale over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
audit, the following material weaknesses have been identified for the vear
ended 31 March, 2023:

In respect of the Holding company:

a) The Company did not have an effective internal audit system
commensirate with the size, nature and complexities of the business

b} The Company did not have an integrated ERP syatemn. One Unit of the
company is using different software package for recording financial
transactions which requires manual intervention,

¢} The Company did not have an cffective system for approvals of
Managerial Remuneration as required under the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013,

d) The Company did not have effective system for msscssing  and
recognizing the variable consideration of freight where sale price is
inclusive of freight.

A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of defliciencies, in
Internal Financial control over Financial Reporting, such that therc is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual
or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis

In our epinien, the Holding Campany, its subsidiary company, except for the
effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the
achievernent of the objectives of the control eriteria, the Group has
maintained, in all material respects, adequate Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting and such Internal Financial Contrels over Financial
Reporting were operating effectively as on 31 March, 2023, based on the
internal control over finaneial reporting criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India,

We have, to the extent possible, considered the material weaknesses
identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent
of audit tests applied in our audit of the Consolidated financial statements
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 of the Holding Company and
these material weaknesses have affected our opinion on the Consolidated
financial statements and we have issucd a qualified opinion on the
Consoclidated financial statements,
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Other Matter

Our aforesaid reports under section 143(3}(i) of the Act on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the internal financial control over financial reporting
in so far as it relates to one subsidiary is based on the corresponding report
of such company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

For JAGDISH CHAND B CO.
Firm Eegistration Number: O00120N
Chartered Accountants

(Pawan KEumar)

Parmer

Membership Number: 511057
LITIIR:

Date:
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KCL LIMITED
(-IN-L74899DL1983PLCO68008

Current Liabdlities

154

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2023 {Rupass in Lakhs)
Particubars Mate As at Asat
Ma. 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
ASSETS
Noa-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 735255 9155.16
Capital work-in-progress 3 - 331
Right of Use Azset 3 1026.14 7021
Inwestment Property 3 170.62 16877
Other Infangibla assets 3 - -
Einancial fssets
I Irsastments 4 593 1,17
il - Qheer financial assets 5 130 7.24
Man Curant Loans i 1033.18 1025.94
Other non-current assels 7 485.E1 449,57
Total Mon-Current Assats 1007628 i0o34 46
Cusrrent Assels
Invantories & 3019.17 3454.64
Financal Ascate
i Trade receivables a BI0E.AD &571.60
il Cash and cash equivalenis 10 573.31 116.01
i Bank balances other thamn [if} abowe 11 196 45 105.66
¥ Loans 12 12340 10LTFF
W Other financial assats 13 4.95 4.87
Current Tax Assets [Met) 14 91.24 42,66
Other current assets 15 318.35 316,52
Total Current Assets 1123533 1122273
Total Aszets 21311.61 22157.19
ECHIITY AND LIASILITIES
ECILITY
Eqpusity Share Capital 16 300.01 F00.01
Citfeer Equity 17 11854, 85 1043022
Mon-controlling interescs
Total Equity 12154.86 10730.23
LIABILITIES
Mon-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilties
Borrowings 18 1293.36 1997 87
L ease liahifithes 19 25.29 48 64
Pronvisions 20 11 1.6 101.28
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Mat) 21 58.27 150,45
Other Nan-Current Liabilities 2 511 £.11
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1493 .63 230435




HCL LIMITED

.CI N-L74899DL1983PLCOB8008

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2023 {Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars

Moks A5 at Ag ae
Mo, A1-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Financial Liaklities
| Borrowings 23 045.47 1740.10
i Lease lakilities 24 2335 2156
i Trade Payakles 25
Micra B Small Enterprises el - 2
Dthiers 5 b2E1.45 BO923.81
i Oher fmancial Rabilitias 26 26564 758 &
Cther Current Liabikties 27 137.81 17721
Froisions 8 0,39 741
Current Tax Liabilities [Met} 29 = -
Total Current Liabilities T663.12 912360
Tatal Liabilities GL56.75 11425.96
Total Equity and Liahilities 2131161 22157.19
Group Informatkon & Significant Accounting Policias i-2
MOHes 10 ACcounts 1-60
Accornpanying Motes are an integral part of the Corsolidated financiel statements
Az per our report of even date attached
JAGDISH CHAND & CO, For and on behalf of the Board
Charterad Accountants
FRN 000129MN
Pawan Kumar Rajeev Khemka Ashish Khamka
Partner DIN-00103 260 DiN-00103321
M.ND.511057 Dirgctor Director
Place ; Meww Delhi Flace - Mew Delhi Flace : Mew Delhi
Dt Drate; Date;
Amit Aggarwal
(Company Secretary)
AFETEI
Place = Mew Delhi
Date:
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KCL LIMITED
@ ciN-174899D11983PLC068008

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31.03.2023
{Kupees in Lakhs)

Mote Year Ended Year Endad
Particul
e Mo, 21 Mar-2033 31-Mar-2023
INCOME
Revenue from Operations J 51514.79 4594731
Legg: BT ecovered TEO0.58 620675
43714.21 39745 56
Othear Incorme il 312 27.36
Tatal Income 4375103 39762.92
EXPEMEES
() Cost af Materials Consurmed 32 28511.41 27346.32
ib) Chamges in Inverdories of Finkhed Goods & Wark-1n-Progress 33 104 .16 139.61
ie) Emplayes Benafits Expense 1 10942 1824.43
{d) Financa Costs 15 385 82 421.04
e} Deprecintion and Amortization Expenses B 127427 142712
ify Ogher Expenses £ EIRRIT 7163.42
Total Expenses 41674.35 3§322.00
Profit before tax 2077.GE 1440.92
Tax paperse: 21.3
Current Tax F3F20 499,10
hat Credit entidmant BF.28 238.40
Wt Credit Utilised -B7.28 -238.40
Income Tax relabed ta sarkier years 201 0.08
Deferred Tax Adjustmont 5218 -55.55
Total Tax Expenses 647,03 442,63
Praflit for the year 1430.65 598,259
Othar Comprahansive ncorme/{Expensa)
(Al 1tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remensurement of investmant at fair walie o.81 0.24
{iif Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans -6.83 £92
Incame tax relating to itemes that will nat be rectassified to profic or foss
[B] Iems that will be reclassified to profit or loas
Income tax relating to tomes that will be reclassified to profit or lass & 2
Total Comprehensive Ineeme for the year 1424.63 1007 45

Artributable po:
ownsr 1424.63 1007.46

Mon-controliing Interest
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KCL LIMITED

@ CIN-174899D11983PLCO68008
Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31.03.2023

{Rupees in Lakhs)
ks Mote Year Ended Year Ended
M. F1-Mar-2023 31-Mar-30323
Earnings per Equity Share of face value of Rs.10/- each 38
Basle 48.36 3375
Diluted 48 36 33,75
Group Informatien & Slgadficant Accounting Policies 1-2
Motes to Actaunts 1.60

Accomparyying Motes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial scatemeants
A5 par our report of even date attached

JAGDMSH CHAND B CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartéred Accountants
FRM 0002290
Pawan Kumar Rajeey Khemka Ashish Khemka
Fartner DIN-00103 260 DN -00i03321
M. NO.511057 Director Director
Place : New Delhi Place : Mew Delki Place : New Delhl
Crate: Date; Date:

Amit Aggarwal

(Company Secretary)

AZETEI

Place : Naw Delhl

Date:
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KECL LIMITED
CIN-L74899DL1983PLC068008
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Statement for the year ended 31.03.2023
= [ IRupaes im Lakhs)
Particulars For the year andid For the year ended -r
31.03.2023 31033022
Cash Flow from Qparating Activities
et Profil Belore Tak TR 140,53
Addjustnsenty bar
Depreciatbon and fmnrtsatan 1274.2% 1437.12]
L5 om imerment of ivestment 4%, H
Prosnsion for Gratiity & Leawe Encashmeni 547 21.31
Financ= Ca3ta LEh. B2 421,14
Brodit an Sake af Property, #lant @nd Eguipmesns -3.21 !
interest Incoms :13.45 16E0
Operating Frolit before Warking Capital changes 377098 F192.55
Chomaes dn Workleg Capltm!
Adiustments for fncrense) S degreose In Operating Anse s
Inventaries 43547 -TZH.53
Trade Recerda bles 63.20 -LITH.A0
Lomns-curren] 2265 -18.84
Bank Balanra other than cash sod cash equivalants AlTa -33.85
i cisrrant assats -ﬂﬂﬁi 2144
Ther financial assets 08 355
Sther Men Flnancial Assets .04 -T.24
Cxhir Ko Current Assets 7105 -E.E!r
Adfistments far merease ¢ foerremse] n QpeTaiing Lobities
Trade Fayablas E42.30 11£3.23
ey Fancial liabilites 7.4 -5.80
Eebrer Cur e Llabilitb= -34, LT7
Other beasa Eabulit ey 178 |
Cash gan@vatad from Cperations JAGEET 15%6.15
Inogms Tax Paid [Het of Releads)] .0 .12331!
Pt Cach Flow lrom Oparating Aciisiiies [A] 6764 7362 73]
. Cash Floss fram invessing Activities
Purckases of Praperty, Bant and Equigrent B ntangille Assets -439.34 50274
Arhvanca for capex 3633 S155.44
Creditor for copes = -B.12
Irsmsemen in sunsiciary B -1
Imcrete il nase 0 Long Tenm Capital Arvanies
Bracaack from Sale of Proparty, Fant ard Eguspment 1613 A0
iterest Received L2.45 AEED
Piet Cash Flaw from | |used in) Inuestng Actidities (&) 44059 -1029. 16}
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. Caih flow from Fmancing Actvities

Proceeds rom Lirgd Tens Borrdengs -7, 51 30,34

Pt increase [ (decrease | in snoet e Barmowngs -1a4, 62 -342.34

[Chtser Financiad Lol es -23.35 LS

Interest Paid -386. 22 -A21.05

Met Eash Elow from J [used in) Financing Activitles (€] .1909,31 154513

Met increase ) [Decrease| i Cash and Cash Equivalents [4=8+4C) 347 00 31145

Cash and Cagh Bquivabents at the Beginning of the year 22E.01 531745

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 573.31 22604

Cash and Cash Equivalent consists of cash 0 hand and ralances with

bante Cask and cash eguivalenis Included in the cash fow statemant

canpriss of fBallowing balance shest amount 35 per note no 20,

Cash snd Cash Equivabents et the end of the year

* Conpy e

(4] Caash an hand B.74 5.03

(b} Bdarees with Ranks

(o] Iiv Chafrg il Aot 14.57 [

@] In Fiosd Dmasizs L S5O0 Lﬂq.ﬁ?
573.31| 23601

Group Infarmatian & Saedficant Accounting Palldes 1-I
aries 1o Alzeunts 1-E0
Aocompanying Notes arean integral part of the Consolickaned financizl sTajements
fig per gur repart of even date aivached
JAGDHSH CHAND & ¢, Faor and on behal¥ of the Board
Chartered Aotoaniams
ERN U008 Fan
Pawman Kumsar Fajeew Kheimka
Partacr Dl DR R0
MA.NQ.5LAOST Dirgctar
Place ; Mew Dalls Place : Mew Delh:
Date: Diate:
Armit Sgpaneesl
[Company Sucelary]
AZETH3
Fiace : New Dalhi
D!
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KCL LIMITED
Consolidated Motes on Finandial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

Z.l

i

GROLUP INFORBATION

HICE LIMAITED |Ee ‘Tampany'], o' Holding Comeay' i & deenistic puble mied cormpany swith Bepistered office sitsaed ar £-292,
Serity Witwr, Mew Delhi-11004 and [y isied on Metropolitian Stock Eechange of indis Umived [MSE). The holding company & ana
od the eading manutacturer of Cormugated Soards B Boxes and Hesdthcare Food Products iT has Manufachueing Faciibes at
Faridabad [Warpara), Greater Meida (LLP. L Baddi anet Paants Sahib (WP ), Clayypse {Temil Madu) B Sricity (AF.). Tha products are
supplied to reputed buyers in the field of FMICG products, oo Secbor & Food ndustries. The holding company Togitker with
subindinry is rofared o ‘Groug’ The group as ta majed sagmon s Packaging Prodiecty and Feod Praduct.

The Consabsated financial setesents were approved and suthanisad for Baoe n actordance with the resciutian of the Holding
Compary’s Board of Direcpars on

SIGNIFICANT ARCCOUNTEE POLICIES

Complianca with Ind &%

The ooesaldated francial stalementy |Frainafer rdfered ai Cordofdamd Frenclal Statements ar the Anancial Stabemients)
comply i 31 maseral respects with indien dccownting Standards {ind A5} motified ander Section 155 of the Comgunins Act, 2013
[the “Acy) Boompanies [vdian Scooeming Sandardsh Ruls, 20050 and ocher rel=vant prosisions of the Act

Badad &l preparmtbsn

The Comsabdated Financlal Satementy of the Campany have bedn prapencd = sccondance with indian Accaunting Standarms (5nd
A% notfed vy Cosmpanies {indian Accounding 3andands| Rules, 2015, These Comecidsled finamcial statemenits mcludes
Consalidatnd Balance Sheet as ot 151 March 2024, the Consoldated Samment of Froft and Lass inchuding Other Comprehienshie
|penite, Comidatad Statement af Cash Flows and the Cansolidated Stasement af Chemges in Bouimy Tor the year endad 311
Mdarch 2029, and 2 zummrary of significant acecunting policies and ather thm'l:ﬂﬂl mformatean [iogether heroinafter referred 1o
a3 cormsp Fckated Finamciad Smiements or the Fingncial Statemants)

Hrcounting palces hiwe been (orsBiently applind oxcept where a newly-Hzvosd arcounting stardsrd = mdtisly sdopted o7 a
FeunEen 10 B0 siEting arcounsing tandard reguines deange in the SUoointsg policy hrhomnn in usa

Basis of Consoddation

Badis of feoauming: Fimancial Statements of the Subsidizry is dresen up w0 Same reporing date 35 of Hodding Company far
purpose of onsolidation

Principles 0f Conscliclatian

The Consclidetsd Financial Statenents relate bo the Helding Company, s Subskdiany, Julidiedany a0 Mose gnbitios s which the
Hedding Campany dieeclly of indirectly, has intergst mene than 50% of woaing power orathersize contrel ompositon of bosm or
poveriing Bady o0 as tabten economic benefits from actheities

Cansolidatied Fasnsal Matomants have been propared 3z por the felloraing prisciplac

Financlal Statements of Helding Sompamy and ibs Subeidiary anz combined on a bee by line basis by adding topethar of like vems o
Asaubi, Unbilities, incomms and Expenses after sfiminasing intra-group balances, inbna @icug transactions, unrealized profis or
leades i BEcoddanes with #i0 A5 110="Conscilated Aranchl Saiements’ notified uncer Section 133 of the Aot nead with
Campanios jIndian Accounmting Standirds| Rules, 2058 as smended Ceme 1o Gng

b -Cornrolling Intzrest [NCI| in net azsets of the cerealdated bubsidiarios & idantifiod and prosented in Consolidased Balance
Aeel separanely Tram liabdicies and egqulty atsribotable to tolding Compas's shareheldars, KT in net assets of consolidated
subsidiary cansists af-

al dmaounst of equity siifButakie ta M1 at the data oo which investraent in & subsidiany 5 made; and
b M shave of movemant in-equity sinos the dake the Halding Subcidiany refatonzhip came ino enstence

Far acguisitions af sdditiena intenests i subsdiarg, where there iz no dhange in comtrod, Group recognises @ medogtion o B of
the respective Subsidisny with difference Deregen this Tigune and tash paid, inclusive of transaction fees, beirgg recognised in
aquity. In-sdditich, wpan ditution of MO, difference Detween ash recebed %o sale or isiing of subsidiary dnares and intreases (o
MEI ks also rpcognised in squits
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I Gegup |0sed cosdrol aver 3 subsidiary, it derecognices ralaten assots (including poodwil], Sakilites, NO and othar cimpmenl of
Qnui By, whihs pny resdtent goin or ks i recogrized in peofitand loss account Any investment nitained is reoopnised at fair vafue,
Beswky of subaidiaries acquired or dhapased of curlng the year ar Incleded In the Consolidated sEatEment of Profitand Loss toom
efiectien divte. of accpisition or up Lo BfeCrva date o disposal. as appropriile

Conzaldated Financal Matemonte a0 propaced uiing uniledm Agigamibivg Policies for bke trarsactions snd othier evints in sisnilar
crcusstanoes and are preserted 1o exbent poseible, in sme manner as Holding Company's Soparaie Faaecisl Satements sxept
as abtrvdse stted Inonotes b the accounis

Histomical Cost Correenlicn

The Francial SptamEnis haee Deen Grepared on sicnusd and poing concaim hEsE under hglorisal cost corventian, oxcapt for tha
fodowing

1) certain irancal assets ard Tabiliias tharans missguresd ang Tuir vl

b definad beredit plans - plan sssets megsured st fRir volue,

Graup' hnancal siaterments are prasentad in indiam Aupsas, which s @eo ms functionsl currency of the group, A8 amoont i ths
ronsnlidaied Bnancial staterment aod scoompanying roed o prasssied In Iskks and Roess Bean fodnded-aM 16 bwe decimal
plac in ascnrdanca with the provisions af Schedule 18, uniess skatod pbherwise.

Usa of Estimates

The estemates and jucgments wsed in the preparation of the fiaancial statements are cantinuovsly evaiuaced by the Campany aed
are based on historical experience and various oiher assesrptions and faciors fincluding eapec2tipn:s of NAureE events| that the
Company beligvEs 1© be reqsonahie wrder the axissing drosmstances. Oifferences between achial esuks and estmatel are
mcegnised in the parind inwhich the reaills are known/ matsnialses

The said mstrrabes are basid cn che fmots ard events, that edsted a¢ ot the reparing date, o thil otcured sfber that date bt
prowide addnional eridence about condiions exditing 43 at the régoning date.

Classification of Assels and Lakdities
Sehesile 11 ko the Companies Act. I3 requines asosie and lakddines to be desified a5 aither Cumant or Mon-curnent.

Ain assil shall be classidiod == current when it satilied 2ry of the ToHlowing crinana;
it ks expected to be realised in, 0 & irtonded for G2l of coramption in, the Group's nermal operating cychl;
it B halif primarily for thie pupose of being thaded;
it s emepectid tm ke paaksed within ientve manths atter the reportieg date; of
it is eash or cash equiveiert unfess & s reatricied Frem biing aechanged orused to setilea Eabiliby For 2t least twebee months afis:
the reporting date.
)| asess ather tan current ascets shall De claisifed 25 ongument
& linbiigy shall be classificd 22 curremt when it satichies 2o of fhe Tollowieg eritknia:
itisapecied to be setthed i the Group's noe mal operining Sk
itis hedd prirmarily foe che purpnae of haing raded;
it is due 1o b smrted within twelve monibs after the reporting data; o
the Graup daes not have an unrondiional nght 1o defer settiement of The Banily &or a1 L3251 Twaiy@ monins afer ha reporing
date.

Al ligbites oiber than curnen] Eabdiie: chall be dassified as nan-curment.
Doferned tax aisets and Babilities ane Classified 28 nonCcurient.

Dpeeading Cyela

An gpemfing syelo & the tma betwaan the acgusitian of asaets dar processing and their razkzatlon incash of caeh BquEnts.
The Group has ssoerained the operativg cycli as Tl months for the purposs of current or Mon-currert clissification of 518
el Balmilies,

Inwenborkes
Ao Patarizl, ‘Mork-inFrocess. Finished goosh am walusd at Iower of coct and: nat mealisable value, after providing for cost of

ohegiescence and other pnticipatod lossest, wheroever considered necessary, Costis compuiad & the waighted avérage bascand
i met of recoveable taies, whens 53 45ores and Spares parts ane saluad at o on bask of FIFD method. Anished Goods, Workin
Process indudes cost of todrversion and ofher oost ncurred inoinging the Twentaries 1o their present oertion and conditian. Ml
resal [ahbe ealue B 1he estimaed selling price in the ordinary courss af business, ke estmaied costs of compbstion and gimatad
CEETE NRCRssAry maks sle

Eroperty, Flast and Foquipraent
Tangible Azsets
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Property, plart and squipeent is dtated at acquisition ¢ost set of socumasated depreciation End accumuiated Fnpaimant Insces, if
Biiy. Subsequent costs arg inchuded in the saset's cCarmying amount or recopnied 353 SPRArate A556L, s appranrae, anly wihen it ls
probabile hak lufure economic benefizs assooaced wWah ghe e il flow ta the Group and the costof the Wem can be messurd
rediably, &l olier repalrs and mairgenance are charged o the Statemant of PFeafit 3nd Loss duging the period in which they ane
Ficurnec

Gains or losses arising on netiernent or disposal of property, PRaLand eguipreent are recognised n the Cansoidated Siatemens of
Profit and Lok Depéecation s provided on a pro-@ basis on the W.0 method Based on estimated usaful it presenbed under
Schegule ! to the Companies Act, 2013

Freehald and (& net dopresinted

The sesidual values, usaful Ives and method of depreciation of proparty, plant and equipment is redewed at each financlal year
erd and acjustod prokpectivily, ¥ appropriabe. For ress propects, Tor direct sapences and dinecy cvgrheads Intluding infengst o
Bewriveed fuseds for the acquisiion of Assets sne capitaliced &l the assets ame mady for Eended e Upon fims<inia adoption of
Ind A5, dhir Campany has elected to measse all ks progeny, plant and equipment at the Previoes GAAR sarring amoont a6 it
deemed poil on the date of transitan 1o ind A5 Le. 150 April 2006

Intangible Sgeis

Separately purchased intangldae assets as inifally messured at cost. Intssgible aseets acquined 0 & business combination are
refognised @t Fair walue ot the acquisition dabe Subsequently, nEngitie assels are carrisd at cost Bess any accumulated
amuorisabon and accurmulamed Impaimment ledses, iF any, Fede-life intingible assets are amorttsad on @ steaighe-line basis over tha
penod of their expected useful lives. Estriated useballife by majar chss of finma ks infangile st is 25 fallows

Computer safteara « 3 yoars

Thia amoroaatian perind and oo Amarmsahad metiiod ¢ Hinbe- il pdangtfe ausobs is reviracd at sach fAnadisl vear end and
Eckarsed prospectively, sFanpraprishe,

TTIVAEER T VT RO TG

Inwesiment proparties i grapertieg held sither to gamn reatal income o capital sporeciation er Far beth But Aot for s2lein the
ardirary course of business, use in producbon or supp by of goods ¢ sersites o for other adminisirative purposes. Investmest
prapartis ana ininally madiured 21 cest intluding iransaction eost, Submsequent fo inftlal recapnition, Investreat preperties are
Mated at cost less pcoumufated depredaton or impermend loss. Depreciatian an investimient gropemies &g pravided ouer the
estimaled wetul ife and 15 nor diffeeent than usehd N8 & rieniesed inschedule 1ol tig Campanies Act 2013,

Ivaestment properties are derecognized either when they fave been disposed aff or when Tty a0g permessently withdrasn fram
e and no future soononic beselit 5 edpected fem U dispasal The difference between the net dlapossl proceads and the
CRNTFIg ameussT-of the axsals |5 poegri=ed in grofe-on loss in the pened I:'I:|EIE|:I:IEI1L'?I:I.

Though the company measunes imestment properbes using most based maasgremant, the FEr walug of investmant prapemizs is
citichosed i Ene notes. Fair vakin 28 dataiminad by agiag einde rates of the torcemed rogistration authoriby.

Gains or logses arsing on retirement or disposa’ of Invocemant gropeny i recognised in tha Candelidated Soatement of Profsand
Logs. Degruciation is provided on a pro-rata Bagis on the W0 method bazed on estmated useful 8= prescribed undar Schedule
11 g the Comperees Act, 2013,

Barnosing Cost

Boeroieng comis that anz atbributadie o 1he acquisition o Son@rucfion &f quaifying a558ts are capifafioed as port of the cost of
Aapiti. Cualifging Assel i ane Wil recedsiarily akes sutntaniisd pesiod of time to get eady for inbended we Al gther Dorowing
ooty are treated 43 pericd cost ard chargsd to the satement of profit ans loss in e wear 1o wdich 5T vess sudimsd

lmpairment of non-Enancial assets

Tho Group acsakess a7 nach teperting date as ta whether there |s 2oy Ingication thet any property, plant and eguigment ard
intangible azets or proup af assets, caled cash generating urits {CGUY may B impaied, |1 any such indication esists the
recoverHe amoung of an st or GOL & estimarad 10 deleneess Lhe et of irparmenl i any. When i 15 st posibin to
BSHmIe T fecowerabie amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recovarabla anaunt of the CGEL s which the
asset helongs.

An impa et foss & racognised in the Conscldated Smtemant of Froft and Loss 1o the estent, asset’s camying amaunt cadaech
s mecenarranbe ameerd. The receversble amount is higher of gn asset’s falr value J=ss cast of dlsposal and walkod in use, Yalue in
e ixhased on the estimsied future cash Bows, dscounded 10 e present valie using pra-Tax gRc o] rale that sefects oerent
market assessrraenis of thee thmm valug of miey 2 sk Specifc (o the assely,

Revenue Recoagnitlon
T Gircap gararally folkei Marcargile Spstem of Accowrbing and recognises significant items of income and expendibare oo
accrual basis exoept clalms thesa with Sgrificant wecortaintics ¢.f Eeuraree claims which sne accounted far oncash basks.

Roverws i1 mzasurad based on the cransactkan price, which Is the consideration, admsted foe discounts, inceantive schemas, ifany,
25 PR LA S Wil cusromers. Tenes olected frem cuttamars an bohalf of Govarnimant ars nat treatad an Baveaue,
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literest income i recognized e 3t fime propartian bask veking it sccount the amount cutstending and 1he rase apgiicakie.
Gividerds arw recopnisad in profit and ioss anly when the dght b recele pavereet |5 escatiched

Eipoat infaniives Are accounded far on auperts oF goods, (ke entitesseits can be esimated with réaisnabla accuracy and
cosdifipns precedont to eim are neasonably expected to be futfiied.

Fuaelpn Exchangs Transaction

Trariactions deraminated In forelgn corencies ar racordad ot Bio excharkyge rate proaailing an the date of the transaczions

Manatary items donomirated in foreign cemangies at the' year sod are restaiad ot year end rates, In case-ad Wems which s
tierec by fonuand exchange contrects, the ditfergnce Bebwesn tha year end rate s rate oo the @t of the contract |s
racigrized oy excharge differ=nce and (e previem paid os forward coneracts is racognized over the life of the conbract. Ay
profie ar lass arfigng on cancelatkan or renewal of foneand enchanpe comtmits are recognizad & income oF as expenses for the
ik,

Men-monstary Sems are Carried at cast.

AAY income or ekpenie on acount of exchange difference ither on settismant or an - branshbion i rscpnized aad i refscied
spia ey 1 the Stabement of Profic & Loss

Shor Term Ermployes Benefits:

Al empicee benefits payabio wholly within twehe manths of rendering the seredes are dassified as shod tsrm employen benslis
and the undscourqed amount of such empicyee benefits arm recognisad in the Consoliated Statement of Peofi and Loss i the
pericd i atuch the employen rendors thi relatod conGeos, Thede beneRes inchets salaries, wiEs, bonus, perfarmance Incendivad
el

Cufinpd Baastit M

Gratity and Ieg=ledm compensabed shiences are provieed for Based on actuaral valuation ceiried out at the doss of =ach
period. The acharial vakuatin is dore by an indepandent Attuary as por projactad uni credic method,

Far daiired penelit plars, the amaount recognised 35 "Employes beoelit axpenses’ in the Consalidsied Skate ment of Prolr and Less
is the cost of accruing depleves benefits promsed |o employees over she ear and the casts of individusl evenis such ag
pastfiotura service benefit changes asd ssttlement [such ewns 3'e fecognised mmediately in the Corsalidatod Siabement of
Prefit and Loms). The amewnt of net intersst expensie caludabed by appiying tha =iy discount rats t the ret defined b it
liblry ar assat i charged to 'Emgloyes Denefith sxpense’ In the Condelidated Statomant of Praft-and Lass. Pary diffurances
Dwgin The infenest iIncoma on pan Assets and the rorurn acpubly achieved, and ary dhanges in the Babilgies weer the year dug
Lo changes In acbuadial assumplions ar expaisece sdfustmests within the plana, == refogniged immediately i Onber
camanehensiee ome’ and subsagesaty not reclassifted w0 tha Caslidated Statsment of Profit snd Lo

Definad Contribation Plan

Conwibnetions o defingd (enlibution schersss Such A8 emplajes state Insumnce. scheme, amplyyee pravideat fund,
superanruation schame, empioyiee penson schene sic. arn charged a6 am gxperae based on th amesnt ol contritiution reguered
- ba made ad and when serices and rendered by the esplogess. Sroug's prawidest fund contnbution, in respect of certain
efpicymey. is made oA gosarnmant adminiokerad Turd and charged as & gaperne bo the Cansolidated SEtement of Prafit ssd
Loss. Tha abovy benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes a3 the Group has no Turther defined obigsions beryond
thi sonknky comiributions,

Cash & Cash Dguivalents

Lath and Cash Egubmlents comprises cash and cash cn depasit with barks. Thi eampany corsidess all highly Bguld invesmens
With @ ravnaaring mslurity at tho date of purchese of three meeths or less and that are readily convertibie e known amoonts of
o tobe cash equivalonds.

Cagh Flow $atement

Cash Naws are reporied using the indirect method In accordancs with bnd A5 7 “Statgsment of Cash Flows", whersby 8 profif besgm
tax i adjusted far the eMpres af transactions of nee-cash nehwa 2sd any deferrals or acondals of past or fubarg Cash receipls or
panymants. The cash flaws fram operating, finpacing and imasting activitizs of e Group are segregated.

Tak Enpanses

The taz empense for the period Compribes currant ang dedered S Ta & recapised in SMatement of Profit and Loss, gxcept to e
EXTENT TRAE if reliled o itame recogedsd in the comprhantive negme or in equty, | which case, the (3 ks 889 recognised in
dthes comarehariba inedme arsgquity.

Currert Tak:
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Prevision for Taxation i ascertaingd an the histis of assessable proft wamEedied in accordance with tha Proviskng of Ingpime Tay
At L3961,

Dieferred Tas:

Duferred tan i recognised on warparery differences between e carrying amaunts of assess and Eabilltes ¥y the fingnsial
ALVIRMES and the corresnnndieg tas hases imed i the compusation of Laxasks predit

Deferred tar kabilines and AREElE ang rednur=d ag the tax res that arg 2xnected 10 apply in the period inowhich thae: liddlioy bs
sutbed or the asset realised. hased on Last: ratas {mnd tau lawss) Ehat have been & bckod of Sabstartively =ngepid by thee end of the
rEgarting gericd. The rafmeng ameiunt of Dodeced tox liabstities andl asaets are reviowad At the ond of sack fEpOrLing perind.

[TEER

The Group has adoated md 45 ILE-Leases, using the modified retrospective methad, The Crouy bas apoled the standard 1 s
lsases with the curmulalive impact recopnized on the date &f inital apglication. Accordingly, presious period indormaticn has nge
bzan raitaied.

The Greig's lease asset dasses Frimarily congist of kases for Land 3 Bulldings, The Gréaup assoses whether 3 contract i or
conthing 3 loese, ot Inczpion of 2 contract. o CONTECL & or contding a lease if tho contract conveys thee Nght fo contml the we of
an dantifed asse1 fer o perod af fime= in exihange for consideration To assess whether a camract conveys the right o contrsl the
use af an Hankified axset, the Group assesses whathar

(k] the corirece mvoives the use afan idendifled qsset
IN}-the Group ha wastatially all of tho eeasomic Bl fram se of tho asser Shrough the period of the lease sl
i she Graup has the right 1o diract the use of e asset

At the date of toammencemast of the J5ass, the Graup recognims & fight-ofise aiset [“ROU™| arnd & carmespanding lease labilivy
fee il hease srrangoemands in which it i & bessee, @ucept far Ipases with a tarm of bagive months of fess {sherserm leases) and

Thay s subsoquently engasured at cosr less accumulgted deprecidion ard impairmens logses, IF ang. Rightalame pet an
depratiated from the commencyment dats on 3 Straight-fine basis over the shorer of the lgase e and useful 18 of tho
underking asseL

The I s Hability & isitlslby measursd &t the precent value of the future heose payments. Ths o35 (EmEnts e discounted using
Ehe interest sate Implici in che fease or, F et readily dslurminable, wing the incemental Borrowing ranes Tha keass lability i
subsequemily rervsasired by incroasing the carrying amount 18 reflect Inbivest oo the fase liabikty, reducing the caerying amagnt
o reflect ihe lpase payments made

A leaisn Fabillty is remeasuned upon the ecowrance of cartain asents such 35 change in the iease e of a change @
#n Fdex or race wsed to determeine g Paymarda. The remessurement normally Al adjusts the leamed aceis

beave lability dnd ROU 355t hive bacr sparatols prasented in By Consoiltated Balanco Sheet and Iongs pEymants have bewn
chassifiad 35 finanong cash fiows.

Pravigian and Cantinpent Liab#ities

Prouices are recognised when fhe Group hak a greseat kgal or canstructie obligatian as a reswul of pest avenls, & i probshis
BNt an outfiow of resources will be required &5 setia the obiigation and the amaunt can ba relissly estimated, Provisians are mal
recofniced for fusure apersting lossm

Fravislons are Measured &1 e gresent vaiee of MEAgEment’s bt estimate of the expenditure raquEred to sedtle the prasent
chiigation at tie end of the feponing perlod. The discount raie used to debermine tha prezent value (s a pre s ke that reflects
Darent market assessments of (he Hme vl af maney and the ricks specific ta the lishily, The ircrease in the prnsition dus to
the passage ol time B recogrized as fjorpst sxpanse.
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Financial insrumenes
aj. Financizd Lszars

Framcial asets are rocognizad when the Sroup beoomes a party [0 The consractuad provisions of the instruminl. On inital
recggnition, o financal esset iy recognised an falf value, i case of Einansal =515 which are recognised ot fair value throegh prof
el losd [FYTPLL ity tramuaction cost 4re recogrisad in e skstomant of orafit and loss, In ather cases. e Farsaciion 52 are
aitributed 1o the acquisiton valug of the finarctl siet Binandal nigits are subsequien iy clessified ani Reaswed at

= Ainerised cast

® fair valus thraugh profit snd kses JFVTPL,

imupstments in unguotad ity thares of relatod parties
« Ther Group has sccounted for s imsestrents in uncuioted souiy shares of Subsidiaresasd other relatod partir At cast

Vet thi ddfreing srnourt of & investrsent is greater than it estmaged recoverabis AN, It i wridzan dewn immadia ey e
B recoverable amount and the difference i Wansferred 10 the Conselidatod Stasemert of Prafic and Lass. On depassl of
fwcstmaaal, the difference bebaman the et disposl proceeds and tha carmdng amssst is chargad e credited ta e Consalidated
Staternent of Profh and Loss,

mmmhmdmﬂuu

All quoted equity invgsiments 2re measuned ot falr value, wilh veige Changes recognised i Cerdalidaton Stalament of Profit and
Logs, witigrt for those equity invgstments for which the Group has slected to pressar the salug changes in Cther Comprihensive
Intome’.

Impairment of Sinancal asssss

fm sceordance weh ind A5 109, the Group udes “Expacted Cradit Loss' {ECL) modal, Tor evaluating impairment of firasgial st
ERhEr than hose Meisoned at fair valua through profit and los {FTPLL

The Group maasiras the expected crecit loss asseciated with Bs assers based oo histaricaf frend, imdustry practiess and tho
bigingws prmvironement inoabich e entey operaies or any otfey appropeiate basis. The imparment matod chogy sppied daperds
on whether than Fes Deen @ spnificant Increass in cresdi rist.

b). Finnncinl Liabiites

Financial liabilties are recognised when the Graup b=tomes & panty 10 the CoATBCtual pravisions af the msrument. Fatareial
labdigas drn initinly measured ot the smortied cost unless at gl recOpnRian, they 2ra dlassified as tar value through prodit
and kass,

Francial lablities aré silseguently meassad 31 amortised cost using the Effective Intorest R35o [ER] method, Financial Babifities
camiad ar fair walue thwrougn profia o2 Iees e measured st fak vidae with all changes in fuic walue recognised in the Spatsmend of
Prodit and Loss

A financial kability & deracagedied when the cbilgation sgecfied in the contract Is discharped, canceliod or pagdres.,

Earnings por Share
Eainirg Per Snare [EPS] & calculaien by dwiding the et Prafit or Less for the pariod attributable to equity sharehoiders of the
Group by tha Weghted firernge Mumber of aquity shares gubstanding duriig the perod.

Far oe purgdse of caloulating Diumad Earning Per shara, e 8et Prafit or Lo for the pariad atiributable o souy shafeholders &
disided by tho Weghted Aversge Humber of shares sutatanding thring the period sfter adjusting for e eMects of all dilutive
pobamiis sipaty shares.

Becont Froncantaman;

O 315k March, 2023, MCA amended the Companies lindian Acoowsnming Sandards) Rues, 2005 by Eguing the Companies Pndian
Atroanting Sandards Amerdment Bukes, 3023, applicable from 1sE April, 3023, 34 Belo

ind AS L-Prasentation of Financal Matements - The arnendmenks ragulra semaanies 1o dischase thair maberial accouniing poliches
rather than iheir significant accownting palices, Accounbing peficy Blormation, mogether with ather informeation, k meterts when
it ean reasorshly e expacted to influence decisicns of ormary wsers of gEnerakpurpoe finencla statements. The Company hag
Evaluzad the sreendment: and the impact of the smendmant is Insignificant i the comsnliflated Ginantial stsements

bnd A5 & Accounting Pofices, Chenges in Arcoumting Estimates and Emors - This senendmest has introducsd 3 defrétion of
accountisg estirnates and incuded smendments b ind A5 8t halp entities distingulsh changesin accousting polickes fram
Charges in sccounting estrnates: The defimition of 3 tkargs in sccounting estivates hins been reglaced with a definition of
ACCOUNCINgG Atmates, Under the new definition, accounting estimales ane “monetary amounts in Tiname saomests that ane
subject tn measuremart ungentainty”. Ertities develop sccounting estimates if accoonting policies TEqATE iems in inanoal
sLatamants f0 be measured In @ way that rvolves messurevesic WL omsinty, The CoOmpeny Goet nOL Gape et this amendrmant te
hawe iy significant impact i s comsobdated Arsrcisl sextements,

Ind A% 13- incoree Tawes; = Tha amenidments darify hoe companies account for deferred tas an transachors sbeh i baamps mnd
gecommizsoning nblgatians. The amendmants narewed the scope of the racagaitian ekempiion b pacagrephs 15 and 24 9f Ing
A5 12 |recognl o sxemphiong sa that it ne lenger appias b fransastions that, on iagial recagritlion, ghve rise 1 egual Exabie and
cedustible termporary diffarances. The Comparsy has ewaluated the emendrment and thers i4 na maser an 15 tasdakidated
Fraandal statemenia.

166




_ LM 1 AT EELE PIOTEET | p@et L GET RED8LIT OERUOEE | Of 20E C T FLOFRIEE piaials At )
(313516 55 T5EL CRERSFD  |O1EST ER'PETT FTOTEET IFBEECE  |¥¥L31T LT FED 0E'SS0ET (9 -G
- = 1 5 - o ELE 5 i BED st e Aeodaing
09T ShHT PR 3 EABT (e 50°0L 3 HEDE 2 1) vy d P S0 wdynig Fu)puy eLE R
0 bET BETSE 0 TRt R IR i 768 29°LD0T I 1T EIIE TAOITEE) Y B
EGLTT FETET AT RS EE'SH 0E T itz £5'604 LR LTI SEERL BN
[HERR et OEES o 5% FETS 16T ‘950 FL'S FFOL JOUDIERR Y mm
] LFEL ST T g EiE LEWT £E0% F ekl aET SURKTSLS WA
BSEL EEEL i S - s RS LO°EH 505 BEEL squiud| N
LA SLET 2 04T 2 SEET FE'LST AT : 1Lt IFELT Ayndusg
TE'TL SE0 BB T < ENEL FELAL 3T : L1 OO FpEY ALy
HISE ERIZ T . oiE L] LiEn g S0 EECEON i Sy g
LEET 5T°9L TEEL 9% 1589 L6 . I &Eee Auiypamp) g deag
agi Ba0 LE = =0 ek iFr H SVF R0 R SpInalY
YITE BRHL L SEE SLET [OTLE STESE t * ETESE Y |y A
g B'SEGE o5 TA100  foE'ES EILES [9'paES SWNIVL (AT Tt 05 TEORT LTETHREL R TR
PO T bI T a5 4 = Ak s - A a1 [REgn ]
1T AT BEbERT Fir ERE GETEL TTRETT OTPETE . : 02'vaEy Huppirs
YEELE : B . - . W GG £ BB LB PLEF] polg BRI
BE 0 B o006 . d - # GG L0 BE L6 puis
ELISEY DAUME
TIOTENTE EZOT'ENTE J_".En.mn.n.m FETIREnT =y \TI0L PO 10 ELOEBI'LE [tesugsaloy IT0THOIO
185y e 5y Ly FLNE T T SR F T R T T _"nﬂ_ _.nuu of saey s ERY gt 3y Ry
HIOTE 13 NOILDEHd30 | OO 550D
jua wdinky o g huadoeg £ 210

{5y g saadng)

EZ0ZYIIEW 15TE POpUS JEBA 21 10} SIUBWIAIELS [ERUEUL] UD 5310N PHIERIIOSUC)
I LINITTION
— e




168

i i S IR0 T Sy U 01 PR NSRS,
GF 05T £L99T L5'¥S v o6 r e |scse BOwOr . ol
LLHOL BT = ED'S LEHE fzrrer |oom lana ¥EELE i=0L-gng
_“M.mm LS £rr o [iFE ] L5F5 PRTT FOELE ivHysHupeng
HaE LEEET LLage] D LEELT o ] el [ H s P
EE0TEOLE ECOT T IE EQOE 0 L1 | beseanisn|py CINEW0'LO ETOTEOTE uswin|py FO0E
e w i oy 3 0 smpeg  |sad g o 4:2 =y Ln) wpEs SUTHIPFY & By
| IO L3N NOALVID35430 13018 $50H8 SALEITIES ANFALLEIAN]
[ e RE TR Lol BT RGN IR et s = R LLE
STEE | reoe 7069 Loose Iy BERET T RE L Al
TZ0L {raazon A5'Z6 lob'ET BTES TERIIE ; BEBET 1EIBL-GG
T2 ng'oE RS TR lobge BT BE'GET BEBET T |
= PE'ELE & = . PEGLE PRGOS - Ui} FRyasEr
T ENTE SIOTEDTE  |LRGE E0TE |emsimnlny T T TIOTETIE |wagsipy £Z02'70'T0
1m 4y 1wy 12 5y eo faegEy [k oy [ie o W wy mofsaey  |wenil@py 1e 5 i M LN o |
WA 430 MO 338430 HIOW SR0HD
cd jEsyne 1 0k poaedinna yen ) popred b SHE D S0 5 W ORI SEOLM ST DU 5] s
| papuAEns A 7158 [
[EE = TFE s Beud u ey
Tioad Foaiyl ania i £ gl For Ao o) 6527
L= Jo poyad 2 maf guad up penalg samjnatiig
T707 “TE WIJE N pesda jeal o 504
_ : papuadsms dgreindisg £158{01)
- srpBod u sty
gl L sy waaad E4F smad 7 asd T LB ST
i I peviad 8 ] A1A17 up aunilny Ajnapuey _
(SYAET 14 Faditg) - - ETOZ "LE UHE P Jeak Sy o
apnpaigys Sumde o) sadodupy o eode
IEE TR1Ls e FESTE 3y saud|
&30 TEe - 16§ [=30L-qns]
[ T ot TasLrER & g
CZOTEDIE Tdd ELOE OO
e 5y B SBySURIL [SUBIIpRY LE saauaag u) o (madeg

FEUpRT] L Feaiy)

£207 UME 15TE PapUa Jeak ay) Jo) SIUMUAYELS [EIUEL] U0 S310N PAIERIjosu0]

QI LINITION




169

£F pLE TR Y0 A0 SR SYURT Yy pafipad saqsadoud 04 TE TY 350N
5 0L a Jejag onoul s e iag i play o0 SSUa0osd DjqeLOLERE 0 SRaap BElLRY TE DR 950N

Bl FERS | erraes EETRIP] | BaadS EIELFE i Tl hhﬁmuﬁm FLEEL [ 4 FUPSRIT JERE Tl
Sir DEG TEOS5E SFROISE  |0T0aT SERLEL EETSOFT OO OFEET | BLHOTT G ErE BLERVET fEREL
o 000 Prids L g B Pb S o0 oo FRUS Ak srdiradd
o o Tes ¥ ] th'Es LS [y {00 LS 210105
a1 ] 0o L oo g L LS nenwd o Jandwog
FEOE RO TE EFNEE0TE FROZ B0 1E [Iuatsnipy ZEOE BV ID ECOC B LE [Juranialpy TTOT PDED

Wy E Y =y ra feaes  Limak gy aag yeEy 40 misaps  [ssenpey e sy

HHH LN WOLNIIAHAAD NIACHTH S5 0ED syany 3 qilueily

£T0Z'YPIEW 15TE Papua Jead ay} JO} SIUDWAIELS [EIJUBLILY UD S330N PRIEPIOSUOD)
I LINIT TOH




HCL LIMITED
Consolldated Notes an Financial Statemeants for the year ended 315t March,2023

MawEsmEinks (Mo Curnent)

[Rupis in Lakhi)

Particudars A b

21-Mar-2033 33-bar-203 3
Ingestments measred 21 Coss o Eguity Shores
Unguased Equity Shares - Othes I
15 42000 Equity Sharss {FY 32000 eguily shemes) of GEnnl Padkaging 4722 a3l
Frivate Limhed of Re, 100- sach Baly gEid up. [
if] LR000A Equily shares (Y ABIOG aguity sharas) ol b5 KTL Milk 200 o
Products india Private Limited of 84000 each Felly paid up. ml
L5 Prawision for invposrment 500 =
Inssestraa nks measured 2t Fair Value Theowgh Other Comprehensive |
IneerE)
Quasted Eoudty Shares j
G098 Equity Shates {PY S08 egquiy shares | of Indien Sank LI [al=
I Total .93 5217
A5 a1 e

iy -Mar.2023 3-Marnzd |
(2] Eggrogaie vake of Ousaed trvesEmenis LI ass
(b} fgarepate Markat Value of Qucted Investments 1.6 0S|
i} Agpregats Volue of Unquated Inubitmants £3.22 59,2
{d] Apgregate dAmourt of Impasment i Malua ol Insekimants 44.00 2

A0 WS KCL Pagar Mill Frivate Wmiged, wholly owned subsidiery was ncorpoeated gn 21042021 the sulisidising comgany

|4 et faEammence B disines ooerations as ot 3181 March 2023

4.3 An imporamaonl s investmand of RS RO Ml Privabe Lmiged of R 30000 lakhs has baen proviged as 21 315t Manch
23, ay the et worth of the company as per the fatest avoilable audited finoncials statemant wos fully graded

Oty Financisl Asseisnon curreat)

| Fagmees in Lakba)
s at Asdl
Farisoiars AL-Mar=20i3 11-Miar-2013
Dthips Bunk Eslances
- Figed Depasks with e than 12 eronibe maturgy period® 520 7.24
Tatal 1.20 7.24|
* Hodped with government deparirrer /Banks as secur Ry,
N p-mereant Loans
| Fripaes In Lakias)
Az ak &g al
e o 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar- 2022
Loam to related perties [Feler Sone Mo 45)
Ungacures, consddiersd good
Inler Conpersts Liang 101544 101
- Qliffwery 1L 1514
Tatal 103318 L0ZE54
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KCL LIMITED

Consolidated Motes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

6.0 The £empany b ghoen losn e 8 rabstad peety KOS ECL Wik Products India ®rivate Lisited seoumting 10 R 98644
Fakivs, This relabed party has nepathes net current assets and i/t has segative networth 23 per the bsest ovailatde audilid
{inamcial statements. The rreragement of the company |, on the basi of §is inbemal assesment, Bas cosabdered this e

2 fully recaverabie zedd In the opinion of the ranagement, no prosddon for dimisutlon of value 1s cegquined.
6.2 Loae ghwen 1o redated panties sfonan @Aerest beanng and ane repavale on demaed.

6.3 DEcloture tor lpan o spedified perean rofer note no: 43

i s ELfrEnt AESaLE |Fispess In Lafhs)
a5 ot dgat
e A1-Mar-3023 JL-Mar- 2021

Advance for Capital Goody 307.29 A70.96
Hie furiy Deposs sdth gowesnmens suthorities & obhers 130,08 115.80
Prepass Eepsniesg 20,05 23,02
Dithver reci evables A5 10,85
WAT Credik Reda=y ally 5.70 830
Prooperative Experssd | subect o allgcation )

Dpening Balanca a3
Adeition during tha year

Lass : Trarsfemed during 1he year 7.4}
Total =
Freoperative Eapenses | related o subsidiary compeny |*

Ugenng Balace 0. 080
Edditian doring the e D.bl 015
Lesss  Translerred duriag 1P (@ar 0050
Total ﬂ:!'ﬁ 0I5
Preopirative Expansas 01,8k .15
Tital 435,81 A49.67F
*Eiluriation of Preoperstive Daperses |Fupees in Lakba]
|Fr-:-le:.-.1-:na| Fag 247 20}

LEps 030 E.IIIE
ROC Filing Fea .09 0.5
Tokad i 8.15)
Ty errtoeieq
| Rupeas in Lakhs|
Pt B an A
i 31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2022

Kaw aleviak 2387.70 2E01.33
Ve k- - Progress E2o0.87 134,33
Finished Goeds 304,11 401,81
Sorap L.15 OelS
5Rones and Sparas 157.38] 30
Gopds in transt 1 L.96 -
I?nt.u | 301917 3054, 6

B.1 1 veneaisas hawe heen hepothecated with bisky againd] wirking capial lgans. Reler noteno. 181 ped 13
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KCL LIMITED
Consolidated Nates on Financial Statements for the year endad 31st March, 2023
] Tradp Recaivabiss
LRupess in Lakhs
Farticulers A Azt
J1-Blar-2003 31-Pdmr-20212
- Segungd, Conskdeed Gooid : =
= Wrse i s, Coesidersd Good BETR.29 RRE L0
- Trocke recsgualsio which has significant increase in credt riik 5433 .49
Trade Receahie oredit iImpabred 7T 217
Taral E962. 26 E993 39
b aliowanse dar doubcfol trade neciey sl 2rM4 1.1
-Lexs expected crifil o on tade receyatis 26.72 -
jretl B0 &7 L.60)|
9,1 Trade: Receranhies have boen yposhecabes with banks against winikig capltal loana. Aefer nate no. 1E.1and 23
9.3 Agawine divzlovure as reguired an attached in nobe ne.dR
.3 Thie compiairy doak ot e debits des by directors o otk officars of the mmpany o amy of then sither sevarally ar
peinchy walth amy othes penson or debis dee by Tirms or prysie campanis respectively in which any director is 4 parteecor
 dirsetne oF & mamher
18 Cashard cath etpialints
{Rupeaes b Lakhs)
: Bs &l At
il 31 Mar-2003 31-Miar-E022
Cach and Cad Equivalents
Cash in Band &7 503
Bolances with Ranks
- Tt Aoz auntk L5 B
- Finedd e prosits [with Banksloss then 3menth perod) S5O0 LBa.GY
Tatal RN LIE01
11 Bank Balan ee other than cach and cash eguisalents
| Fupees i Lakhe|
fis &t Azl
Rty 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Other Bank Balances
In Masgin Money AE06UNL 37.55 50,99
-Fsad Depoaits (with bank mare 2 3 manths bul fess Lhii 12
mesthperiod) 15755 50,53
- Fixgtd De=poalts wilk mere than 1 masths matun by parfes 1.20 T4
. In Emplovers Grous Grafuily Savieg Bank Accaunt 0.85 a1
Lags: Amount dgsised under 1ke hpad “other ton Ceerunt 1.0 T4
Fraancial Assets”™ |Refe note 5)
| Fotal 196,45 405,56
12 Loans {Curnant}
[Bupees in Lakbs]
My at LT
s 31.Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Loars and sdvarces ko Emplopses tl’l.dll 100,77
Tatal 113,46 177
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Consolidated Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

13

1§

inthatr Finamefal disets [Curreat)

| Bt i Lakhad
Pbiosland Az oL Az at
F-Mar-2033 F-Mar-2Ex
{11 Cither Recetvables (mtenss n:r.ru:ﬂ-a-n ron 4,95 4,87
Total 4.9% 4.87
Corrier Tas Assarts (Wit}
| in Lakid]
A ak Al
Py IA-Mar-202% I1-BAar-2022
Correnl Tax Aises {net| .24 17.07
Tosal 51.24 1
Qh CLETETE AESELE
| Feupesss in Laki)
A5 Bt A @t
e 53-baar 2023 H-Mar-2020
Prepakd Eapinges B0SE L5
AT Crsdil Enitlemen = 873
Cthiss
il advance to Supplers £ Others 25T.67 1750
[} Qiheer R pryibley (L] e r
Tatal 318,55 31652

173




KCL LIMITED
Consolidated Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March,2023

16 Share Capital [Aupeas in Lacst
As at T3
Z1-Mar-202% 31-Mar-2022
Equity Share Capital -
durhorsed Share Cimkal)
50000 Equity Shares of ReI0V- oach 500.00 L0000

|EY -50,00,000 Eguity Sharas of Re 30y aach|

500.00 ied.oo

3000085 [quiry Shares of Rs. 100 gach 001 S IHIR R

Issus, Subscribod and Faid g Capnal:
Lw 30, 00,05 Equity Shanes of As. 10/~ sach)

TOTAL 300401 04,04
151 The datali &l Sharsheidars Bakiag more than 5% shanes |
Ag at Az ak

11-Mar-H027 Ai-bdar-2013
e of the Sharehaldes P, of Shares % held Mo, of Shares  |% nedd
ILIu 5h. Shyam Sunder $Khemba® 536, DED 1754 E18 260 17.54
{5, Crandra Kala khisnta B0 [T 530,200 13,01 |
5, Rpsgh Khiinka 409,825 1365 %325 3.z1
S Eanjeay Khemks 2184, 575 BE3 EI_?E E‘
Gh. Ashish Knemia 521,750 17.37 331,350 LL4 |
s Ehisriia Laasiing Private Lim fied 434,500 16.15 424, 5K L_u_}_&_
[ fx Khpmien Pretrging Privata Limites 200,000 BET 00, 00 [
"ehare s of Labe Sh. Shyam Sanmdar Khamka are vet 1o be tansfered 1o hs legad bair
18,3 The reconciBation ef the sanber of skares outstanding Is set out below @

LR As ak

JI-Mar-2023 $i-Mar-2012
Particsfars ho. of Shires o of Shares
Equity Shares ar tha heginniag of the pear JGCEIRS ACNHIES
Al * Shanas ksued dunng the year - -
Lizes = Shares tancelled on by Back - -
Equky Shares at the end of Bhe year A00D0ES SO0HIES
15,3 Shares held By promoten at the eed of e pear 318 Panch’ 20023
R R e Mo ot Shares | meegonn | 1 5"::’:; % ot toisl _:,i,‘u,',

an 3103 Lhares 705 20 T R O
Yaar

~abah Kheimks SEL.150 1737 331,352 11.04 A%
Chandra Eala khimsks 1= o] 30,200 1303 -ITORE
Fajkeay Khembka 400,534 13546 0328 rnl A%
|saaiees remia ELLEEE BE3 164,875 BE1]  nams
[snymm Sundas Giamia ASEASDH 15 1% 352460 1175 0.5
wandana Rajeos Dhamka e 150 75,000 T
vandana Raeey CRembka = {1 1] [l i ] nm 0.a0m
Wandna Sanfecy Ehomka i ] 4.58 '.".‘__EIEI 255 08
Fajsay Khemba HUF BEa00| 1.0 fTcee) 120 oo
St Sundsr ERemka HUF | 245 AR AT
Toral 1,082,420 | LAIZ ALY

164 Tormsi rights atiached o eguity shares
This Cassamy Tias niky one ol sk of $hanes redermed to a5 eouity shanes having @ parwakee at Rs. 10y~ Each holder of eguity shanes n entitied bo one »ote par
share.

6.6 Thi Coerpa i Fas mot allated any fully pakd up sheres pursuent 1o comdrack|s] silhout payraent being madein camd nor bas alioted any fully paid up
shianes by vy of bOnus shanes nor has bought Back aeg clas of sheres during 1he period of fee years immedisely precesding the bolance sheel dete
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KCL LIMITED
Consolidated Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
Crtbher Equity
[Rupaes in Lukhs)
Particulass i s
J1Mar. 123 Al-Mar- 200 T
(o} Capital Resarve
Ciening Balance 107.14| 10714
add: Addrticns during the year z =
Legs Wiillsed / transferred during thi year " -
Chasing Balance 107,14 E07.14
(b) Secanties Premium e caunt
Oipening Balarce 24501 s
B Additions durdrg the year : £
Less: Uidsed J transferred dizing 1he year B
Cloging Balancn: 9801 249.01
g} General Reserve »
Openng Hakarke 710324 710334
Add: Addifian daning 1he year 5 -
L Litifissticen - .
Closing Balanoe 7103.24 7103.22|
![d!ﬂeﬁlrﬂﬂ Earnings
Cpening Balance 3003.05 2004, TS
Add: Froft far the wear 143065 G49E.11
Less Amaunt transfered 1o General Reservs -
Josing Batance 4433, 70 00305
(] Other comprehensive intoma
Opaning Balance k] 41.38
add: Additicra fdedestians .03 L.1&
Closlasg Balande -38.24 -32.22
Tatal 1135485 10430.23)
Cagital Regenies

Capital reseree was created from government subsidy received inearker years.

Securities Premium Redorva:

The armount received in éxcess of face value of $he eguiy sharas s recagnised in Securities Premium Asserve. This
reqaruR fan B tilicend i scoordance with e prosision of the companies act.

General Kespryg:

The general is used time ta time to transter prefit from retained samings for spprapriation purposes. As the general
e 5 creaba by transfer fram one companent of equity to another equity, hence ftem included in general
resereg will not be raclassHied subsequantly to profit and loss, Mendatory transfar ta Goraral Reserve 15 mat mequired

Retained Earnlags:

Aetnined earnings Include all cufrent snd price retained prafies.

Reatinad Earnings are the profits that the Holding Halding Campasy R anmad Bl date less any transher 1o GRsa

Resarve, dwidends ar other diswibutions (o sharehokders,

Dby Coenprebensive Incomae:

Criher comoanents af Eguily inckides Dther Comprehenzive neime arsing due to remessurement ¢! definad banaliy
clhligations and invetmeras valued at &er value through Caber Comrprehensive Incame.
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gﬂl. LIMITED
Consolidated Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

18 Bormgwings [Mon-current)
[Hipaas ir Lakis)
Particufers As ot As at
31-Kiar-F]E3 31-Mar-2022
Securad
Term Loars
Fram Benl 500,56 10047
590,56 1078.47
Wehicls Loams
-—From Bisks K737 7586
—Fram MaRC - .79
Uinsecured Loasis
Friom Directors 57643 231%.78
I
[Total 194,35 1097 .87
1EE  Term Loars from HEBC & HOFC Eank ang gecured by wey of pari passa charge over entire Prapeny, Piant and
Equipmant of the Holding Holding Company indluding Piant & Machinery [both present and future) except those
exclusively funded throwsh other Finencal Inst@rtions and pari-passu chigre on the Stocks and Receivales of the
Holding Holding Campany fcth prasent & future) and eolaterally secured by way of First pari-passu chagre on
Factories located #1 POt Mo.135, Settpe-2a, Faricabed, Flot Np.2S7, Sector-24, Faridabad, Plat Ma 118, Udyog Vinar,
Grester Nolds, Factary bocated ot Millage Bir Pillasl, Penzane Palasi, Malahgarh, solan Himachal Pracdesh, Factary Land
& Bullding located at Mopurapli Vilage, Yaradalapalens Mardal Chitloar, Ardbra Predesh, n the rame of Hold@ng
Holding Company and porsonal guarantes ol 58 Rajeey Khemke, She dshish Khembke and St Chancehala &hemica
JarEcars of the Solding Halding Compamy & Sh. Sanjess Khemba shareholder of the Hplding Holding Company - ad
sapirited &re under par passw charge with Baniks
182 Termdof repaymenl of term lgans & vehicles losns are disclossd in note no 59
183 Vehicle loans ame secured byway of fypothecation of vehicks financed by barfs and NEFE.
184  yrsecyred Loans from DEECtors are Long Terr Borromirgg: and are interest bearing , wherswer apalcable

189 lease Uabiibes (Mon-Corent)

(Rupess in Lakhs|
Partioulars e M
31:Miar-2023 3i-Mar-2022
LEase Laksities [Befer MNote nn. 36) 25,28 40,64
| Totil | 251 42,54
i Provisions [Non-Camrent)
| RUpees In kﬂmﬂ
B at Az ak
Partlculars
= 31-Mar 2023 31-Mar-2022
Provision for Employee Beaefits (Reder nate na, 47)
-GEratuity (hended) TOEZT (514
-LeAve Encashenent |un-funded) 41.48 o0
Tetal 111.60 101 38|
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Consolidated Motes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

Fi |

Fa

ri2

21.3

Deferred Tox Liabilties |Met)
[Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars iy s
31-Mar-}023 11-PAar-1022
Dedarred Tax Liakditaes
Fropemy, Flant and Equipment -135.70 202,54
Todal Dederred Tax Lslities (A) -132.70 202.54
Dederred Tax Asseis
Frovsislos for B=tirerment Berelits 3523 31.65
I:'mp:ﬂ'g'_. Flamt ared B prnent
Crhees 53,16 A4
Totall Beferred Tax Assobs [B) B=.39 £2.10
Defirred Tax Liabilities (Mat) |A-E] 22709 15045
Icvmnt i Deferred Tax Azsets
{ALpaas i Lakhs)
Partioulars Redirement Benefiks Cahars
A wt f1st Agril, 2021 2h.E2 1E.15
frafin and Lo 153 £.34
Other Comprebersive Intoeme 2 |
A at 51zt March, 2021 3L65, z0.44
| Prodit and Lias -l 358 527X
ID‘l.hur Coniprebsrisiee Inoome - =
]HM #1351 March, 2023 35.23 53.06
Pdovermaent b Deferred Tax Leohilities
|Pupess i Lakhy]
Barkiculars PPE fuet OTL L
s gt D15k April 2021 29597 207 00
Profit and Loss 4743 5655
Cther Comprehessive Iniome
at 31st March, 202 20254 150.45%
Profit arnd Lok 5 HE 02458
i Camgrahensive income
fig &t 31wt March, 2023 185,66 5827

Recorsilintion of the income ta provisian o tho amount computed by spplying the statutary incame Lax Tati 1o

the ingame before Income tases is surmmarizad bebow

Particulars ek AR
31-Mar-Z023 51-Mar-h022

(InCome o expenss
|&rcounting Profit 2077.68 1440514
Eractasd fas rates in 000 29.12% 29.12%
Camputed mrpectied tay dXparsan 05,0 15980}
Tax reversal due to experibes allowsd for indinn ta pusposes 132 330
Tao #ffect af o deductible expenses #5552 A447.73
Ackustment of fax relating ta earlier years 2.01 .15
Tatal Current ncome fan expenses 73921 A9 18
Deferrad tox
[Decrasig]) ncrease in deferred tax |labilities 55.RB 78
Decrense/{InCrease] in daerred tax assels 3630 812
Tekal delarrad 1ax cupenses! [credit) -82.18 -Ei._'ﬁ_i
Total Imtcme tax expensg BA7.03 447,63
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Consolidated Motes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

23 Ofher Mon-Current Liabilitiss

{Bupeas i Lakha)
Az ak g gt
Partiodlars
31 -War-2020 A1-Far-2022
Creditors for Capital Goocds 5-11 511
Total 5.11 5.11
23 Boerowings [Current)
|Rupssas in Lllihli-]
Asat As @l
Particul
ol 31-Mar.2024 F1-Mar-2122
Secared
\Wisrking Capital Lown from Band F50.04 198,72
Current Maturities of Long Tesm Dabits
Tierrn boan from Dants aAF7.7h 53321
Tikal A7 75 H33.23
wehide Loars
eFror Banks g7.14 014K
—From NBFC 1050 1E.&T
Total 25,47 1740.10

* sWarking Capital Limit from HSBC & HOEC Bank are securad oy way af pan passy cnargs ower entire Progerty, Flent
sd Eguapment of the Helding Compamy encluding Flant & Machirery (anth present and futured gwxcept those
exclusively fFunded threagh ather Finandal InstRutions end pari-passu chagre on e Stocks @nd Receivables of the
Holding Company [both presant B future] end collatenally secured by way of first pari-patsu chagre oa Factaries
lacatad 3t Piat Me 135, Sartor-24, Faridgba, Fiot No.297, Sector-24, Faridabad, Piot Ho 318, Udyog Vikar, Greater
moida, Factory bcated at Vilage Bir Pillasi, Pargans Pelag, Nalahgarh, tolan Hirachal Pradeth, Fachary Lang B
Bulldirg ocated at Mogursplli Wiige, Varadaispaiem Miandal Chittoar, Aadara Pradesh, in the same of Heldng
Coenpary ard personsl gusrantes of Sh, Rajesy Ehamia, Sh Achigh Khamia and &1 Chardlerkala Khemke direcios
of the Holding Company B Sh Sanjesy Khemka sharehalier of the Holding Compary &ll securities are wnder pani

passu charge with Banks.

24 Lease lskilities |current]

iRupzes InLalhs)
Particulars 314::1@ 31_ i
Leass Lnbilites (Refer Node no. 5&) 253,35 55
Total 23.35) Z1.56
25 Trade Payables [Cusrsnt)
{Mupess in Lakhs)]
% at
A :1-;“@;3 n—n:::;m
sdicra ang Small Enterprises (Medar Mote Mo, 5.1} - #
Others B1E1.45 BO23.&]
Total 5181.45 5923.81]
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i

7

R4

259 Dbl of diss 10 Woro and Smaoll enterpriges a3 defined under the Mioo, Small @nd Medm Enterpnioes
Disvalnprrent &1, 2006 {MERED Act), based an the infarmation given by the management, ane a5 under ;

thE succesding yERTS

Particider Mg at As a1
31-Mar- 2023 3103 2007
1 Frincipa amaunt due Hil 1]
7 Imtgrast due on ai e il Mil
3 armpunit of inb=rest paid i terns of See 16 of tha MEMED Act il Bl
& amounit of interest tun and payabie far the pedded of deloy R il
5 Apnpust of liersst acorued and remening unnakl as at year end rill Hil
& smoant of furtlses Inkenest remaining dug and payanle in il Hil

95, hpewise dischasure of Trade Payables as required are gheon in note nodd

Crthier fimancial Eahilities [Cument)

{upses in Lakhs)

_— Mgt A% At
iy 31-Mar-2023 31-Bfar-2022
Oribser Payables
Fayable to ompioyes LE7T/M 15150
Fayabie to Others 98,60 £3.01
Tatal PR 25850
Other Curtest Liabilities
{Hupees in LakhE)
Particulss Az at Ay ak
& . 33.Mar-2023 31.Mar-2022
el vanioes fram: others 102 1.B0
aduances fram Customers B others 523 12.94
Stateriory Dum 40,98 AlET
Sytubory Dues (GST Payaila) (Met) LS8 10651
Tatad 137.51 172271
Frovegiond {Cunrant]
[Aupees in Lakhs]
&5 @1 B Al
i 31-Mar-2003 31-Mar-2022
Proulsinm for Empioyes Benedits [Fefer nold ne. 47|
JEratuity thendad) .
‘Leaye Encaghment [un-furded a9.9% 1A%
Total ] 741
Cozrrent Tex Lishilities (Net] |Rupeas in Lakbs}
Particulars s i
e 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022

Currant Tax Liabilties {ne)
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30 Revenus from Operations

|

{ Bugeses in Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
1-Mar- 2023 31-Mar-2022
Sale of Products 52985,12 47499 54
Less: Incentive payable to customers 1016 =
Less -internal Cansumplian 144017 1557.52
51514.79 45542.31
Less! 55T Recovered TE00.58 5206.75
Total 43714.21 39735.56
Sale of Products comprises of Year ended Year anded
31-Mar-2023 A1-Miar-20232
Corrugated Boards & Boves 4175026 3687694
Cuplex Board Cartons 6455,53 17084
Food Producrs 1323557 141391
Ailk fO=iry Products 133080 1222 B5
Scrap 1802.96 1806.50
Total - Sake of Products 52565.12 47499.84
For disclosure related to Ind A5 115% , refre note no. 40
Other Income
[Rupees in Lakhs)
Year ended)| Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-hiar-2022
Dividend Income .04 0.01
Interest and Deposits 18.45 16.60
Sundry Balances Written back 5.40) 275
Rent Raceivad 1.668 7.20
Foreign exchange fluctuation 0,80 0.00
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant &nd Equipmeant 3.51 0.78
Misc reciepts 126 0.01
Insurance Claim Recieved 0.30 -
Total| 3782 2736
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32

Cost of Raw Materials Consumed
[Rupees in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended|
31-Ndar-2023 31-Mar-20332
Cpsting oy 2691.33 188110
Add: Purchases J0EST .45 29699.33
3334318 3158043
Less: Internal Consumption 1440017 1542 78
3190911 30037.65
Less: Clasing Stock 239770 2691 33
Cost of Material Consumad 28511.41 1734633
Material Consumed cormprises:
1. Kraft Paper T3M0B.A0 2BE&.50
Z. Duples Board 419107 4097.05
3. Cormagated Board & Sheet 1426.11 1650.51
&_ Laminaticn Film 20054 34,48
5. Flowr \Wheat & Maize 280003 245,97
6. Difs B Fats 35.29 49.75
7. Chericaks, Flavours, Sugar & 5alts 11.11 40322
8. Skifnrned Mtk Powcder 030 0.03
9, Packaging Materialsiused in packing of food 147.59 130.25
10, Dextras Monahypdrate (1.0 .00
11.Raw PMilk 33201 337.51
12.0thers B24.12 A88.07
13. Soyabeen £7.05 g7.11
14.Food product 27.97 53.10
15.Food Ingredients .00 24.56
30951.58 2888011
Less Internal Conswmption 1440.17 154278
2351141 27346.32

181




® KCLLIMITED

Consolidated Notes on Financial $tatements for tha year ended 31st March,2023

33 Changes in Inventores

{Rugs=es i Lakhs)

Year ended ¥ear enderd
Fl-Mar-2023 21-Mar- 2032
Inenitosies at fhe eid of thryear

Finlshed Goods 200.11 41181
WY M -F g s LrOLET 14,33
Scrap 1.15 0.15)
422.13 52623

Finished Goods 401.81 ik
‘Work-ln-Prograss 124.33 33556
Krap 015 1.3
526.20 665,91

Met {increase) f Decreate 104,16 135,61

B Employes Benefits Expenses

(Rugees in Lakhs)

Yoar onded 'r':.armfed_l

31-Mae-2023 31-Mar-2021

Lalaries & Wages 178423 IS8 2T
Honus & Exgriia 3302 31&3
Leave with wages 5.33 071
Caritribnrtiams to Prosddent Fung® 74.55 67,32
Lardsibutions to Employe e Stats Insurance Fund® 1684 158.33
Giraruiny™ zmnl 505
[SLAlT Wielfane Expenses 1E3.65 12513
Tertal &109.42 1524.43

*Aefer nate ng. 47

34,1 Exvess managerial remuneration of Re. 3,19 lakks has been paid without approval of membears iF the

Ganeral Meeting of the Company.
3.2 Far related party disclosures refer rate ao, 45
A5  Fnence Costs

[Fupees in Lakhi)
Year erded Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-kar-202
Intarest Expense on;
{i) Term Loanc frovm Banks 121.18 206,40
fiij Others Borraveing Casts I60,81 £13.45
) Enrerest an keass Liabilithes 4.84 L4
Total| 366,82 al1.04
& Depreciation and Amaortisation Expenses
[Rupeesin Lakhs)
Year ended Yeer ended
F1-Mar-2021 31-har-203 2
D=preciation oo Froperty, Plart and Squipmem 1244.93 1397 400
Amdrtisation af Right o Lse .40 E.nﬁl
Depraciation of investmant phoperties &.03 06
Amartisation on ktangibla Asats 0.00 0aon
Taotal 127426 142712
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Other Expenses
(Rupees In Lakhs)
Year ended| Year ended
11-Mar-2023 33-Mar-2022
Manufacturing Expenses:
Consumption of Stores and Spare Pars 11593.11 910,04
Consumplion af Block Frinting & Design G04.51 E0Z.24
Power and Fuel 1368.57 1152.39
Factory Rent mcluding Leatr Bengas 3.87 513
House Keeping Expenses 23.73 25.00
Carriage Inward Expanses 2258 1550
Contractor wages 1337.83 1074.02
Rapairs 1o - Machinary 517.B3 56306
Repairs to - Others 279.21 335.57
Sub Total 5352.64 4577.94
| Administration Expenses:
Riant 23.96 26.75
Insurance 78.43 91.87
Rates and Taxes 3264 42,56/
ravelling [xpenies 133.67 92497
Comnveyance Expanses 63.35 6778
Printing & Stetionery 18.29 14.572
F'ml.ug:.'l':-l:g_rum & Telaphone 23.E9 24,349
Lagal and Professional a5.12 4209
Retainership Charges 7l.44 100,43
Security Service Charpes 70,47 B5.48
Membarship & Subscriptian B.AZ E NG
Car Maintenance & Yehical Upkeep BE.06 Fdi
Electricity & Water Charpes 24.32 24.43
General Expenses 36.08 13 58
Employees Recruitment & Training Expenses B.26 14 57
Charity & Donation 3,78 13.32
180 Certification Charges : ek 874
Sundry Balances Written off 10.73 41.53
Software charges 4,87 381
Bad Debts Written off G6.48 0 .53
Provision far bad debis B.03 1.7
Priar Periad Expenses 0,00 3.43
Listing Fees 0.64 064
Expensas towards C3R Activities(refer to note no.37.1) 23.35 14.65
Provision far doubtful advances 6073 i
Impalrment of Investments 49,00
Provision fior expacted credit loss 25,72
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Penalties 38324 031
Directar Sitting Fee 1.26 i
Interest on late foe-G5T 0.53 1.41
Interest on late tds 0.35 0.00
Forsign exchange flucteation 0.68] 266
Bank Charpes 13.52 9.02
Sueh Total 1045.50 87145
(Aupees in Lacs)
Selling Expenses:
Consumption of Packing Materials {Met) 1133 33340
Fraight Dubward [Met] 1216.67 1079.90
Sales Promotion Expenses 11859 12877
Diseount Allowed 32.02 1178
Advertisement & Publicity 1.58 0a7
Sakes Tax Paid 1.249 &gy
Damages & Claims Lab.64d 123.50
Commissionon Sales 4.77 540
Product & Sample Distribution Exp 187 10.78
Sub Total 1885.14 171361
Auditor's remuneration{excluding applicable taxes)
Sudit Fag* 4.00 .00
For other services 0.29 0,82
For Limited Review 0.70) 0.70
Sub Total usl| 5.52
Tatall B2EE.27| 7163.42

*The subsidiary company has yet to cammence businass operations, henca th Statutory apdit Fee for the year of

A 0,30 akhs is treated as Preoperative Expensas.
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#7.1- Details of CSE [Corparate Snclal Rasponsibittyl expenditure.
The nature of C5A activities undertaken by the coempany includes promoting education, heaith care ard gevirenmantal

susstalmabilitg. The datails of CSH expanditure is given below

Particudars Year =nded
31-Mar-2023
{Rupess I Lacs)

B, Gross amount required to be spent by the company Current Year 17.07
Braviags Yooy 1053

B. Ampunt spent during the year

I} Comstruct lanyacquisitian af any ssaet -

Freious pear £l

11} On purposes sihar than (i) above 2035

Protacas oy 4.9

CER Acthdties with related parties 2335

Praiols yeav 1355

There is no shorolall af the end of WMarch 31,2023 and March 31, 2027 in terms of @mount requined to be spent by the Group. Far
comtribution made ta related partie) refer npte no, 45

185




KCL LIMITED

Consolidated Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

Note 38 Earning Per Share

[Rupees in Lakhs)

Year anded Year ended
F1-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Earnings Per Share
|i} Net Profit afier Tax a3 per Profit and Loss Statement
gttributable to Equity Shareholders 1430065 98.1%
il Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares used as 3,000,085 3.000.085
denominator for calculating EPS
iii) Add/|iess): Adjustrent for elimation of shares for Cross Holding between 42,000 42,000
KCL Limited & Ginni Packaging Private Limited
iv) Weigted number of eguity shares 2,558,085 2,958,085
v} Basic Eamings per Share {in Rs.) A5.36 31,75
vi] Diluted Earnings per Sharé [in Rs.) 48.36 3375
vii] Face Value per Equity Share {in As.) 10 10

The basic and dilluted EFS as per the Consclidated audited financial statement for the year ended 21st March 2022 was

Rs. 33.58 pershare

MNote 39

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments {to the axtent not provided for)

tRupees in Lakhs)

A5 at Asat
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Contingent Liahilities
Claims against the Group not acknowladged as debt
1] Surety Bond for aeailing duty under EPCG Scheme 549,94 59.94
454 26 179.40
Cammitments
- Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be exscuted on Capital 55482 116264
Account and nat provided for [Net of Advances|
- Export Obligation against import under EPCG Lizence a#17.15 4817.15
5481.97 5979.78
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Kete 40

Diwtosures o requred weder Ind-A5 115" Ravenue from ConlPects with tultamer

0.1 MHaggragation of Fevenue
Wiar Encled 114 Barch, 2021 {Rupear in Lakbay)
Proect type | Cormugated Goads & Boees | Duiples Brard Cortons | Food Preduces (R MOl Producey Scran | breere Comsumpaion. Tekal
Erihed Biods L1750 16 £55.51 132857 T320.54 .00 144017 a5711.84
Seric i [T Q.00 200 L5246 oo 1307295
[Totad U750, 1 £B55.53 23857 233054 LBIZ.06] 145017 SiE1a.8
Frar Endad 1 Blarch, 7012
PrEeiuct £ Cerrugated Boars & Bowes | Duplos Ssard Carions | Food Praducls | Welk | Cairy Proguct Scap | imter. Cancumgtion Tatil
Friihed Ganch IEHTE. M E1T0.R 110,61 EEEINE 000 15575 ALELE
Seras i [, .00 0. 1836 50 T 380550
Toial 3EHTE.5 E179.64 1413.5 122365 K650 1557.52 25547 31|
A Twrng of tanikes of good
¥ear Endad 313 Barch, 2023
Fresuct tppe | Coriugeied Boards & Boar | Duples Board Cartons | food Praducts |k (Gairy Produrt B Inter- Cansumgt; Tatal
Foini i Tine L7501 5H55.53 1235.57] 132054 163246 34401 51514.80
Gwar the lima 0.0 (5] (= B0 e o 0u0a
Toriad 41750387 AHES &) 3215571 33305 1837 36 mﬁ ELE14.ES
¥mar Excllad i1 Pdarch, 2002
Frocuct type | Corm Brards & Baoces Soand Carions | Food Producis | Wil (Tainy Produrts) incer: Consemgtan| Tatal
Foint i Tima IEETR. 54 A173.84 141351 122265 LEI6.50 2550 53| &5507, 51
Cva: e i 0.0 [T [ iR - | [ 0.
Taa 68T .54 6179:84] FLTERL STILES 130650 155752 4553231
40,3 Geographical Marker
Yoar Dedod 3148 fMarch, 2003
Praduct Type | Cormigated Boards B Sowes | Dusphos Roard Cartons | Fooed Products | Rk (D Products Soam | Inkber CansssgEan Tatal 1
Inzia 4475036 6H35.53 121557 333064 [ETEET]| fadi? 5151420
thri of |ndia 0] 5] 0413 K} ik (5
Tiriad 41750.26] AE5553] 1E25.57 130,64 1307 96| 1uu.:.7| bLkaaam
tear Ended 313t March, 2622
Pradutl [yjs | Comugated Brards & Bowes| Dugles Soard (arions| Food Products | MLk [Daky Pioduits] S | inker- (o n Toml
Incia T34 173,84 ) 281351 223365 1506 50 LEEP LD a5
O of Iesdia 00| 0.0 0.0 020§ I}Llr| 0.0
F‘-n-l AGETE 44| G178.84) TALAAT TEZL.E5) 140850 1557 52 4554F 31
40,4 Reoancibation ol weenus oo peiaed with Castract Price
{hupear in Lakig)
Pastculiry Yuar Endad 11-Fdarch-2051 Waarinded a1 March 1072
e reamaisp ot inaed gunig the vear 51524 88 [T FEER
o |reaiees sl abrke 30 Cumores 1L 16 1.0
Past il refidnided Surng The e 51514 B T FE

05

Py el s by o T A TG Coaninacts 18 mehis Ireig I o S esicheragl 3 Yarlable cansdesation has beery mmads nsle corsideration iniome of Tnd A5 115 “Hawenue
from Coniract with Customers™ dus 1o unavalobdny of required daca. dosovar, inviderof i managament Tk will fod R g impece on prafi for s be g
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Mote-41
41.1

412

41.3

41.4

41.5

41.6

Thie fellowing Land Sleted | purchased are yet to be registered in the nams of Holding Company.

al Thie company has entered infa agrepment for purchase of Land measiring 4,59 Acre af Village Gumshani,
Tehchil- Bajpur, Wrrranchal, Disz- Udham Sngh Nagar, Khata Mo 0057, Khasara o 315/3.4.59 acre area, and
ampunt paid 1o party was debived in Capital Waork in Progress un to 31.03.2021. Till date the possession of the
praparty has ot been recelved. Howewer due (o refusal for the repistration of the the said property by the
sellar, the Compamy has flied a sult agalnst Blm and the matteris st sb-judiced weth the courts and now the
amourit pakd to the seller has been transterred ta atlwer mon current a8y,

b) The Halding Comparry had made payment agalnst adatment of industnial Flat No, 254-285, Industrial Estate
Secrod, Boz ka Meo, Faridabad, measuring area of 8190 5q. mtr and recefved possessian certificate of woch fand
on daterd 20102015 which wias showr ad Capital work-in progress up o 3103.2071. Rowever, the company
hias debited coat of such lend in its progery, plant & equipment but the conveyance deed i3 not executed in
the pame of company dug to ron-completion of the project R .

cl In the earlier years, the Growp hed made peyment against allotment of industrial Plot No, 212 -215,
industrial Estate food park Saha, Ambala, Hanvana, measuring ares of 40580 50, mir and received possession
certificate of such land on dated 10.10.2008 and therefore, the company has debited cest of such land in its
aroperty, plart & equipment. However, the conveyance deed of such land, in the name af the company has
aot baen made singe the compary has not paid installment al enhanced cost amaunting to B 807 Lecs for
such tand,

The Sdcity Project of the Holding has come Into eperation in the manth of March 2007 for manufacturing of
Corrgated Boxes. This unit is situated on 10 acres of Lesse Hold Land 195 years) a1 Sathyawsdu Sub-District,
Veradalohpalern Mandal, Racheria Panchayat of Mopurupall Village, Chittoor District, Andhra Pradesh and this
unit |s ebgibim for tax benefils up 1o Assessment Year 2020-21 as speciflied in Secton 3240 of the Inpome Tax
A, 1061

The Halding compary had recevad certain concerns raised by one of Ex-director of the company with respect
g matters of corporete powernance aind some other aspects of accounts of the company. As par the
infanmation and explanations glven 1o us, the management has refuted these sbegetions and the matter is
pending before Hom. Natianal Cogany Law Tribunal and management believes that this would have no
Impact on standalone finBncial statements.

Ir the apinian of the Board of Directors of the Holding company , the Current Ssets, Loans and Afvances are
ol 1he value a5 stated if realised In ordinany course of business.

COVID-19 has caused disruptiont to businesses across kdia, The management has consaderad suhsquant
guents,Internal and external information in finaligng varioos finencial estimates as &t the date of approval of
thase financial results and have not identified any materal Impact on the carndng value of assets liabllities or
prosizions. The management will contines 1o cdassly monitor amy changes fa future econpmlc condisions and
asiess KBS impact an [he operations.

salas Tax assessment of units of the Holkdng tampany siueted in ciffersnt states heve been completed wa ta
Financial Year 20061 7 and gasescameant for the nest financizl pears are in procsss,
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41.7

41.8

41.9

4119

41.11

The kncoimg Tax Asdsisernent ugs T43(F) of the Income Tax fct, 1501 has been completed up to &Y, 2014-15%
and income tax demand of As. 300,750/ & outsianding as on date periains to A, 200910 o LY, 2012-1%
against which request lag rectification fias been filed with the dept and theredore no provision has bean made
in the bpaks of sccounis,

The Holding compaeny does not have any panding litigations as on date eoaept balows

= Chidl ‘Wit Petition under article 2260227 of the Constitution of Indiz on dated 3000%,2019 has been fileg
agalnst Allahbad Bank for Bsvance of writ in the nature of mandamus directing the respandants te refund
R 30,BA, 753/ filegally chasged on account of take ower Charges (Foreclosure charges) ender the garb al
relessing the seturity documents on transfer of loan,

- The Holding Cormpany has Hisad recowary sult in Lower f istrict cowrt, againss threa debbors [pravious yaar-
two deftors) Involving amount of RE2Z 66 Lacs (previous year R 15,57 Lacs) for repowery & the mattes =
pending far dispotal.

The Haldmg Campany has filed Wit Patition in the month of Mach, 2021 sgainst Grester Rloids Indestrial
Develogment Authoeity in respect of its leass hold praperty situated st 118, Uavag Yiker, Grester Modia,
against opsstanding dues of #5.3.57 Crores demanded by the authoriy for cutstanding ledase rent payments,
inte=rest & other charges leived theseon, Before Hen'ble Allshsbad High Court, which & pending far disposal as
an date.

Duiring thie yaar, the Growp has not entered mte any ng-tanm SOnIrects intluding derivative [ORTFECTS.

Thie Halding compary has not pald or dedared dividend during the wear

The H-;_-.ldir-g carmpary has mtemal adit Sysiem in place, hoeever; the Internal Audit af two wnits of the
cempary far the last guarter pf the years wes not carried aut sines the records of the two wiits werenot
prowided to the internal Auditors by the unil inchange,
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Nete 42 Loans or Advances to Spacified Persans

Bepesyhil= an demand

[Hugaas in Lakhc)

iz gt EY- ]
1=t March, 2023 it March, 2022
Typa of Bomower Groms amaunt Groms amount % of Tata
of Loaam ar % af Total Loans of Loan or Loars and
lvancs in the ant advarces advance in the advantes in
nature of [oan inthe nature af natwre of kan the nature
nu't“lliﬂdi:l" | e QiFrsLard irg L]
Fromotsrs--- -
THremarg = = «
KPR~ - - -
Erlated Pasties = per the At 103318 A% A0 1025.94 01064
421 Refer rote no, 6% 45 dor loans to Bolated Parties
azx.2 Laans araduances to specified person in case ol Subskliany company
& ol Bormower Amownt of lopn | Balance as @t 31st | Percentage tothe
Lat=nded dum'm;lh:l fliarch 2023 totad Loans
Pramaters 950 KL HIL
Direciar 000 HIL ML
HAAP 0,608 MIL HIL
Cther Related Paties Do% HIL HIL
Typa of Borrawer Ampunt of loan . | Balance as at 3ist | Percentage to the
Extended during the bAarch 2023 total Loans
Prompiers ML HIL HIL
Clrectoes ML LN MEL
EhiPs ML NI MiL
Cithar Related Partles ML N FRiL
4713 Dwring the year the suksidlany company hac granfod mterest fres unsscured loan renayabie o demand of Rs. 950 Lakis to haldirg

company without tamplying the prevsions of esition 185 and 156 of the companies act, 2003, The boan sas sguared off during the year
and theautstanding balance as at 5138 Mach 2023 5 NIL.
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Consalidated Notes on Financial Statements for the yaar endod 315t March, W73

Huls 15
[Ralpees Py Legr paares trg =izimraren regarsing Reixias Fartin ban bewe detarsiesd e T8 bess o critedis i iral AR DA "eisied Pariy Simbmaics™ mesiba e et nach para Fove

bean iderelfed By 188 compan g, on e beea of ivkermaron saeiebd s s hs e TR Fa s SEEs o e oD0f | B 1R aad e,

B3 pur Ineila 34, ther dic o F Trens ol with e ieleec partea o ghven belaen
ol Faive of Aelired Pares sl dhinitoitan of rédilas |
| 1] ey Pl s it P oaacan el med Rl i
| Dy Eplarioss of By Mugperssr Pereaaral wie whem the Covepeeyg eo renoarsl er Sureg mes geas ors el bsiom |

Sl Chandea Kasa Khissha kb, b Bl kg [ERETITT AT i, Arkish Dhamis
| Wheds Thre Direcior ] 38018 2027
& Bizthiet of th Fsjeew and dshbh

|Dinkcieih | Wik Tiereg Dinctor | B b’ 1®hala Tirsn Diimcicr]
ATl B0 Tl i T S Despranibad Fheevka T Wi b ik Tk o wandard mhevaks
|y if fh Budeek Khiiba) fé'hala Tira Diiccior [t of 3. B eew Kremba| "eta of Th. Sanjess Tharmba)
Sl boniboa Khernka i Adahimia KhEnky bafi, Wi Bhsanica ey, Sanbah Kraiivia
|Whis of 3h. Qi etitie Khireka Pl gt of Ui ity Whovied,.  |508 0] Sh Ry Brevnka, Breoar (5o o 5b Sdnjeds ERiEfika,
Do b} Bl
Wi ‘wWrinde Kheris
[Tinughios of Bh Bajesy Khsmis,
Directon]
| Erie o whsrm sigrd o, mflusscor & it el Drp B2 p W iy ST PRI ] BAE1 1T (e . P ] 100 L0 i 'l L T8 i i gy
il Packaging [P Lmhai B ik Prachels bribe Priveic Gebied
Kaemeha Rpcaglag [Fiklniied Ehamka Charitahie Togal
Fhidriba (pasing (7] Unisd
Wy aemed
PerkEln A 008 Ky W T Pery sl Dt Pl saiich
andibak Faks s sgalimmaily inflaeme o
Inflisaced by the Company
B lafadas by wiwin
51,0397 3029 [ Tr o] [RTLLIris] [FTo LT e
Arrram ST dmpunl AsrgaE |
(Rapem o laced | (Supss o le) | Mo e L) | Sapei B Lacn
R ikl
. Ranii® Blimda i 1ad
fetCha radeadh sl Lhareas ] FoR
Rrui. Yaon éama Khernks wi o Sh Bppeery Benribs 133 18
Srer Y Exnn Khemd min S kanaes Theevda 1a 1.5
AL ALED
bf Peqvireraion Pkl b kel gergdsinen| - s
Faeen Klwirha aakp L
ki s W b 2340 A0
Auhgh Ehamin LEE o ALEE
Deapeiras vk samia R R 1158
‘iancra Servie wia T Adjec I heieki LAy ans
Wardarn VR Frkd o B ba ey Kasena LB.L2 A
L pd b R THER LR FER
wardaen ek 51,48 LD
a7 irecta Ak a7 1 0%
'efs it b et T o 4.8 Hao
Sarthak Mhamis bR L]
- Sarig Kaw=ns AL aen
pl.- 8 v Sk
21 L et gaay Chapaer i bt
ELil s e A L e am 1843

193




Wheolty cwned ey P 3R end Piri crendl Cilse Faamies wiich
SataHbres daiil tick Fclaibne gy Inflsmres e
Infiusncad by 1he Lorrpaag
it thar individunl by erwinh
ol
AL/ALFIL [T EECEIITaY LTI
LTI Ao Amzern Areurk
{Rapeecinlas] | Repdrinies] | [Kopeesm Les] | (Puzsseinlsec)
difnfare onemaned lcars
se] ChasErakili CRawiia FITT] 30100
Bk, ek Bhieeka 154 FE- 4
LR T RS R o L35
Ef Desgmenhi Cherskn ngs (L ]
naJa B}
£ AR i I ES
Elwrrh i Che bl e Trami poBt] 1585
1] bnwneioaa i [ Subeheinry Fomy
Kl Fapas Wi Pas Lig mm
Lann qaken Fram wizsdany L=
Loar spipment o aubridary L]
Capye o s rede b e [r—]
Balusion i e e S
| U ot Lo Todkdens Tioe e 100
Faryaales. o the begrirg
b Chsndia kel tharss 7385 Tiw il
#aiun Kramia R ErTE
L B jsay Ko 11.E0 11.51
th Pewpeenria Charia KR 11
13318 2A0LER
Loare Emapkduri=g S year
Ev Chandim baris i0s nisa: RIL WL
Laary repprmT daring the jee
Sevi Chandraba b D2 Fiia HE.Le TR
55 Rakiik Kvmha S 180
oM ey Kiveha 1RED 1
Sk Spapanivhu Sharba L B0 £
1151 5619
Ursncu i Seirn, Tiaotns Triws dictods
Plirpl i 37 T el
e ChgsTakah dhseiia 1LLE TER P
B4 dabink Kb AaT L
Wi R ey B L] u-j
sk Deszmiih Chemba 55 %
FELET] oL e
B} biner-Copnand Depodr, Cunusnding
stk glaang
ETL R B Repchpein il P Lis EELED Se0451
Eherdm Lewiing Prt 4 LA L=
EhwTn Avckag ng out 1d 1.8 138
Ard Packaprg P LLd 141 [
Bhor e e Tl s La 7
LAzN 5 LOLE1T
Fapmienic in e Conporste dusng the Fee
D0, Abke Frechusts ndi Pri Li= ] Sodd
itmmila asing Prilid [2EFS LT
Khmrrias Pathigig w1 s ks
Qe Packagrg et ik L BAR
Wi b e Tl 2% =] B0
7,34 KRG
nipr-Corporais Cepmi. TuidmdEing
nE o of ywar
KK bl Prochucis i Pyl MG HOM
ez laamag Poi hd T e ry
Erapriim Parhagng m i EE ) 1.k
B Backagra Pa nd T.AK TR
Ehmmiis Chatrabi Trnai E5.14 L.
= Farcmovak L233.18 L2158y

Sacyus rruryprnal reruneesler o By L 1R Lavis b b piss s b apprereid o srrrdeeey b Dhe Seae el el sl ke Samju ey

194




KCL LIMITED
Consclidated Notes on Financial 5tatements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Nate 48
Segment information
Tre Growp has identilied the Mlloedng Do Primary Busmess SEgments Gurmng he year ended 319 parch, 2029
1. Packaging Products Engaged in Maralactuing of Conuagated Boxes and Duples Seard Cartars
2. Food Products Ergaged in Manufactwring of Food Products [Wafer Sticks, Extruged Cereals
Fromucts. Readdy o use-Bakery Prockucts, Glicose D& Dairy Products)
Primary Busingss Segmants [Aupees in Lakhy|
PFarticulars Period Pachaping| Food Fradwcts| Corporale & Todal
Prodistts Ui flocable
s unug
Harms For e Yaar endad H1-Par-13 SoaaT.TE 2557.41 5396511
51-Ptar-2 4R8G5 JA30.50 dFd0a g
Inter Sagment Turrereer For thie Year ended 31-Pler-23 141529 39,87 1940,17
3lMtar-1l I504.42 59109 155757
Esternal Ternouver Far the Year endsd E1-Rdar-20 ABIF5.5] 2529.43 54534.05
I1-Pp- 22 4515553 2556 5 A543 51
Lizss: GET RECOWERED Fiae 158 Yiar eraisd Fl-Mar-73 T=0513 25545 TR LA
31-hpr-27 5555.23 JI545 Loa
Mel Turngwer | Foe the Year ended 31-Nler-23 W10 3N FEEER T A371a.37
| 31-flar-21 FPREF 4 JAEE 0 A5 735 &6
Reult
Sagmant Resal
Profit Bedure Tal & inianest For the Year ended 3123 FT14.45 232,63 5735 2454.50
J1-Mae-22 jEjil'_\..ﬁ'i" ¥ -13.44d I3l
Operaling Frobt Far the Year erded IL-Mor-23 2354.50
JL-Mar-22 FEsLO]
Intnrast Expanies For the Year endad IL-Mar-23 1k &}
Ji-Mar-22 dIL.09
Crifer lncome Ear tha Yaar endad FL-Mar:23 iTEY
3t-Mar-22 XXA6
incomn Tax Five Wie Vs ended ak-Mar-23 BATOL
18-MaEr13 LL3.5]
Prodil From ordingey octhitieg Far the Yekr ended A3-Far-23 143065
il-Mar.22 Qug e
Ad s OC] | Far the Year ended 31-Mar-17 -6.02
31-Mear-22 20
Mot Profit afier Tas T s Yeur andad 31-Mar-33 pLp A
31-har-322 T 4E
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@ICL LIMITED
Consolidated Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Other infor mation
Segment Asnels |Pagees in Lokha)
Propsety, Plact sad Equipment | For the Foar cncad 31-Mar-I3 820020 Te159 330,77 735255
51-Mlar-22 725535 793.57 A% 27 JIEEIE
mEangbla assecs For the Year ended ENELS P 0o nan
31-Mfar- 12 00
Capital ‘Work In Progress d1-fmr-13 0,480 0.oo 0.00 000
31-tar-22 in rirrl 2aa 232
Prght &t Lhm Ao For the Year ended 31-Mar 13 QLo o0, B0 026,74
F1-Mme-17 o FO.21 FoL 2l
Innest g - Progsr|y For s Yeer endad 51-1Aee-11 oo 17ED 170 .&
31 Mefar- 13 [=s} 16877 2EETT
Financial Asiets
Inieasmeants For thie Year ended 21-Par-23 LGSR 55
31-Peltir-23 w1 AT
Dhir Finascial Assets For the Yesr aniled 31-Mar-23 Lig .00 oeo 131
1-piar-22 T 00 o T34
A Oyl Aases Finr the Year eniled E1-fdar-219 -Gl 4 16,45 16r7.48] 43581
-Mardd EELH 16407 ler rie 4SBT
Current Asaets, Losre and Far the Year ended 31-Mar-23 A02H4. 94 ag.u_ml o 2 1133533
Adances 31-Mar-12 10233 4 dde5R 144.07 1131073
Total Z=gment Asseds For the Year ended A1-Mar-23 1588090 1636, 54/ 1TELDE HIATa.AT
I1-Mar-33 1EETT s ]EEBJEi 19115 21111325
Total Aty For the Year ended 31-Mar-33 H3ii61
!-i-Hdr—l.EI 2215718
Segroemt Liabillties
Mon Currant Lizslitiag Fai thia Year asdied FA-Mar-33 1003.03 185.04 ]_fﬁ._ﬂd A459.63
Ii-Mar-22 140753 1715 TI6E7 F103.35
Currérd Linsalisas & DPrévdcisng Fasr thia Waar bl ll-ll'.ir-.'.‘HE Fa54.00 171.92 372 Tad3.12
3i-Mar-a2 0. 34 12540 3357 bk N
Tortal Segnient Liabfties | 3i-‘h'|.ir-lif 8957.03 35505 ]3]‘_'?% 156,75
=:] 3i-Mar-22 10A57.91 SOA.55 TE024 1147696
Total Linkiliies B -Mar-23 G158, 75
3y Mar-23 1140596
Capitsl Employed Ay o EI-IM;PJ!E T933.27 1279.17 1445 30] 12154.87
a1-Mar-32 E20A.15 1345.ER 116140 1073003
Capital Expendnune Fg Fi-Mar-23 435.534
Ai-Mar-22 20lva
Dspraciation For the Wear ended i-Mar-23 103,30 138,47 T4 127437
31-Mar-332 123242 152.26 d!‘.d:l 42742
Won « Cash Expedreis cthier thin Fir Uhie Year eredec I-Mar-23 0.0a
Depreciation Ir-Mar-22 .00
46,1 Salas bg e cuslomens ol lhe company i= Be 130 Croms [previous year s 110 Crores) which s mone shian 10% of the
Sorrgany's fotsd lumaser
A5 T Raveiiug B3 pey geogranivc sl anes
‘With in lnda 4537249.37
| Cutside India Hil
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KCL LIMITED

Consolidated Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Nate—&7
Ervgilzryne Esralis

&l Dafined Contribugion Flans

b} Dofined Berafis Plne

Iz umfuncled,

pliers as pér Aeluanial Vahation & on 315t March J623).

Thie Group Bas recognred T3450 Lace (PY % 67,32 lacs| 35 contritution 1o provdent fund e Ssemant of Frofi B Loss.

The Groas has o defined benelil gratuity plan, Every employes whs hag errigla el Toce gears o mone of servioe gets 3 pralury on degarture 28 1%
dayz sabury [nsd chewen salaey] or each completed pear of sennce. The ctharma ic funded. The Grous hasalsa provided for Ledgwe Encashmeat which

The Felluwing talikes summarlze the comgonent of the lereiid siaius aad ampoents recogrrred n the Canspldatad bafance drast Tof Thie Fecoectie

Summary of res
|Ampes In Lakhs|
[Aisets [/ Liability 31-02-73| ia-a-23)
2 |Presen yelue o abligatian Pl 1.'-"i-.'.':||
b JFair value of plan assets 148,85 114:47]
¢ [Metossets | flisb iy ) recognizad n balance sheet 81 provishon -10.13 -E!-.zd-1
Surnmary af membership dala
[ Jasat 31.43-23 11-03-23
a]_|Mumber of errgluyns 1371 475
B [Toal Monihiy Satary i Laki] L, £1.149
] |enmrige Pes Jervicy fFears T 7.4
3] |eneerage Ape fl'-ﬂl&_l 38.3 3E.7TL
" Aueage rerraining I¥agm) e L"I.Z'*
warking 1ds
[ [weigrees sverags dumiion 13.98) 13.57)
Acbaarial Assumplions
a] Ecanamic Assumptions
13-p3-23] 31-09-13)
i} Discpunsisp Rate 7.3 7.2
I} Furbere sakary Incress 2 ﬂ
b} Demographic Adsemptian
31-03-23] 21-03-22|
i] Hetinment Aps [Years] SE 60, Bl 58

B Mortaliy mbes inclusne o pocwision tor disabimy =

100% of 1AL (2011 - 34

1000 od MALM 2002 - 14]

WHhEiwal Wilitairaered
ii| Adzrition at Apas Rtk m_‘} Aie
Upto 30 Fess 2
Fiom 31 1o &4 years |
[ Atmie i yrars |

PAartality B M0 ity rates - 100% of BALK [2012-34) raves have been assumed which sl isdudes the allowance for disskilty bedafits

Scale of Benefin

&l |Salary Bor calduldtion of pratuity

salary.

by Juesting Perad

t.m drawn  qualitgng

Bowaarg al weodea

£] §Rerefit on soemal rELingment

AL per the provigiend of
payrrent of Geafuily Act
1972 as arveradad.

| |Baneft oo marky reliremaEnt [ wilhccawal | resipnaeon

f=ams as nareul
miremesay benefis haod
n servics uple tha dals
ol Exil,

197




_8

KCL LIMITED
Consolidated Notes on Financial 3tatements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Same s normial
retirement beref® based
sendce wrio the dale
deagih & po vesbnp

#] |BansfE ca death in sarnco

i |Lmii .00 Lakhs
Plzn Liability
Date Erl 31-53-2 31-03-23
Prespn value of adBgation a5 at the end of the periad TIRED 870.71
Service Cont
31-03-33] 3§-03-23
3 |Coerant Sevvice Coal =.23] 1556
b} |Fast Sere e Dl inghiding ¢ artailmgnt EliﬂE:'LEHH
| Gakes or Losses on Mon routine setilemes s
d' [Yosal Senece Caqk %13 21.50
MNet Interast Cosl
| 31-03-23 319322
a) fintereit Coston Gelined Benalil Oblgaion 1298 1144
] Jintarest income on Plan dsaeis 5% E19
) [Met Interest Lot [Ingamal 4,43 3.45]
Change in Deretit Doligation
31-03-23) 31-03-23|
al Ereenl valua of ohEgaton o= at the 175,71 174,76
Eaginning ol the percd
b |fsquiktion adjusimant L3 = L
i) |Eagmresi Gt }:.'!E 1188
d] |58 ek C“ﬂ 513 21568
#] |past Service Cor including cumament Gens/Loses
Fi | Benefiis Paid £ 1470
[ ¢ [ecal acsuaral iGai)/Loss oo Obigenian (XE el |
b [Present e of akligatinn 3.3 ihe 2L6.57] 173.71
Enid of tha paried |
"-'I.I.-.ulu et Rs, 2 0L 487 ) - add in PEO & CL Lizsdicy
Bifurcation of Actuaral Sainfias en O8Egation
| a1.03.23] §i-01-3F
al !.l.-manaqﬁ:m:.'u:ss on arsing bBom Change i Derdersphd Aspomplica =]
b| |Actuaral 1Grniiess G0 3fsng Binm Changs in Firancisl dsumpkion -4.33] 7.3k
o) [Eetsaral (Gan)icss on arsng from Evpenente Gdjusiment 1104 -2
Astuarial GaingfLoss on Plan Asset
3-03-2 31-03-22|
a| |Exnsitisd Inferast incimma B.55 [T |
k} |Actoal ircome on Plas Aiset fi A4 7.58]
gl Jhetiisrial giin A logsh for tha o on fstet -0.11 -l:IB-El
Balence $hoet and related analysis
31-0223 21-0k-ZX
ap |Preson Valae o the I:II:IH' Lo At &ng 214.57 t7
Bl REair vabes of plan assets 133.45 L1447
_.EL Urnfunded Liskildg/prenivion in Balance S8aat - £5.24
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KCL LIMITED
Consolidated Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

The armsisnts recagnized in the Income statement

31.63-23] 11-03-22
a1 [Tened Sereice Copt 22.23) 2155
bl | Met inkerest Cos 4.421 5.28]
b fExpreda ||:l:|:|£:'j1|idi|11|IEI|lD:l!'l'b:" Biatomant Ei".u-‘:-l 25 -:E-|

Othier Cosnprehensive income (GEI)

31-03-23 31-03-22
3] |Met cumulative unrecagnined actuarial gain'fices| cgening N
b |&ciuadad gain  {loss) for the vese an PED .73 5
el | v mia] pakh floas] Tor Cheyear an Azt 41.1] kF. F

i'..lnr_ﬂmmd actgarml ganTlossl o '.hﬂ' -BEE3 032
Charge in plan ascots
i1-03-21 HA03-13
Al |Far walue of plan sxsets ol the beginning af the period 1L4.&7 17344
RésgEidd Mol a,00f I
b jartual retirm on pian 33561 9,81 75
| | |Fund managami: chagos -0L.87 -
an Eh'nplqll:er entributign 24.649) 600
e | Beetits paid — recetved from LS FY -19-22 2:00)
f] |Benefks pand E T
M ||:.1|r vales ol plan assets at the end of The pevs) 14L35] 11445
Malor catngorien of plin 355215 o5 pervantage of takal plin SHeK)

31:03-23 11-83-22
a1 Jaoverrrnent of Indis Sacuries -
b| |Stane Gousmman seceritiey E
cl H!E'.._E,I,Iﬂll.l CarporE e Bonds £
d} | Eeasity Shares of Fbed compenes i
eb [Funds Mg by irdser —EI To0ral
Fi JBark Balance £ —

|T|:|ﬁl e | 0]

Bange In Mot Defined Benalil Obligaticn

10323 1143;_1:'
=1 |Met defisad Benaiil lablity an Che srart of owe pedod b5 5132
Baverial amoung 20
b} |Arguestion adjustmant -
£ |Tatsl Serdoe Cost 23.22 i1 ‘SE]
[ o} | et irieres g (inen me) 4.42 13
#} |Re-measuremerts 4. F] -RE2
B Casr®iton said o the Fund -HEE -
b [Recoived Last Eund | 4 00
k) |am-rr gak directly by the enlerpise 4 L4l
i Ir-|=|-;|grngn|;unr=i-:i¢ili:.:-.n. the end af the pericd il B4
Bfmrcathen of FEO ot the end of year b cusrent and non curmeat
31-03-73] 31-03-23|
21 |Currant liahiiby Dhmauit due within ora vear 1977 zua|
b} |Ben-Commnt labiity {hmaunt duse aer one s 194,78 15@]
Tassl PG ot tha and o year JiR5T 17371
Expacted comtmbution far the nest Annual ieporting pedod
31-03-23 51-0%-2%
a} flarvice Cogl 551 2341
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KCL LIMITED
Consolidated Notes on Financlal Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
b} | kst Inbarest Comt 517 4.71
&) [Expsactind Enpeases Tur bhe nest annusl regoriing period 3071 R.13
Semsitivity 2nalysis of the defned heneflt abfgatian
1a] Impact of the change in dzeount rate
[Preent Yalue of Sbligstion wl the prd of the geries AL8.57
;' hmpact due to increase of 000 re
) Impact due to decrease of 050 % o
B Impact al the change in safdey inorease
Jeresent Valee of Onigation st the eed of the paried 21B.57
']
I_l'""F‘“I dhié e increaae ol DE0s 1033
:Jllmpﬁr-:lu: {o degreaye of 0.50% o.g]
Waturigy Profile of Owfined Benefit Ciligrtion
I Yoar .ﬁmcnnll
3l IJI.J_:- L T=ar 1877
b 1t0 2 Yaar 510
fch 2o 3 vear L245)
I 3 1e 4 Year 1L45]
E| 4L1’i~u el
I S b0 & Yiar b 83
le i Fear pawardy [FEEE |
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Cansolidated Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31t March, 2023
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i HKCL LIMITED
Consolidated Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

43, Other statutory infarmation 85 At 31t March 2033 and 315t March 2033

[y The Growup does not have sy Bénaml praparty, where aey proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for
kolding any Benami property,

ii) Thiz Grosap daes not have any transaction with duch entities whose neme has bean struck off under Section 248 of the
Coenganiss Ao 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1356
i) The Group daes not have ary charges of tatEfaction which 5 yat 1o be registened with ROC beyond e stattory period.

i| The Group does not have any immaovabls praperty shoss title deads are not held in the name.of the Group sxiept refer note na. 58,
| The Graug has not ay such transaction which & et recerded in the bosks al &tosunt that has bean susrrandered or disciased
a5 Irgome during the year in the fax assessments unsder the Incorne Tae Act, 1967 |such as, seanch or survey ar ary other

relewant prosdsfons of the Inoome Tax ACL 1961,

vl| The Group has not been decfared witiul defaufter by ang bank or finencial institutian ar fenemianent or any govarnmernit
authority,

vil) The Graup has nat sdvanced or lbaned er invested funds to any other persanis) or entityies), including foreign entities
{intarmedaries) with the understan ding that the Intermediary shall:

1a) dhirecthy ar indirectly lend of imvest in othes parsgns orentities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on bahalf of the
Group |Ukimate Beneficiarias] or
b} provide any guaranies, securiy ar the like tooran behalf of the Ultimate Beaeficiarios

wlll] The Group has nict received amy tund fram any parsands] or entingies), inckioing faregn entities (Fundsng Parmy) with the
understarding twhether recoided In wiitng or ctherwise} that 1he Groug shali:

(&) direcily or indirectly lend or imest i olber persans or entities identified in sy manner whatzoever byof on Bebalf of the
Funding Party [Ultirate Benaficianes) or

i} provide any guarantes, security o the like on behalf of the Ultimats Bansficiaries
in] The Group has nat traded of invested in Crygto currency G Virtsl Cumency during the financis year,

x| The Groug has not revabued any of its Progerty, Plant and Equipment,
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KCL LIMITED

Consolidated Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

[Rupses in Lacs|
55. INVESTIMENT PROFERTIES As at &g at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-12

iGross balance at baginning 2124 20403
additions during the yeas B.08 000
|Disposals [/ Deductions 000 .00
Depreciation for the year G.03 6.66
accumulated Depreciation 94.57 4790

Met balance at the end of reporting pediod 1v0.582 149.52
Fair Walue 370,84 24700
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit & Year ended Year ended
Loss for Imesteent Propertias 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{Rental Income 1.66 7.20

The investment properties are leased to tenants under short term cancellation lease with rental payable on monthly basis.

Mote 1: The investment properties consist of residentfal properties in India and have been categorised a5 investmant
properties based on nature of its uses. There has been no change in the valuation method sdopted.

HWote 2; The fair value of Investment properties has been determined on the basiz af avallable circle rates of the property of
the concerned registration autharity and has been categorised in fevel 3 fair valug

Note 3: The comveyance deed of this Investment properties valued at are yet to be exgcutad in favor of the Group (refer note
ruo4L.1(e),
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_gl:l'.. LIMITED

Consolidated Notes on Financial 5tatemants for the year ended 315t March, 2023
56t AS 116
fa] The Geoug has elected mot to apply the requikements of ind A5 116 Leetas to shert-cerm Bases of &l agsets that have & leasa teme of 13 montds o less aed

EaRihs far alarh Th uiderliing ACeet 6 ol (0w walue. ThE laaie payeenls aeensiatad wirh 1hetd [aa4ed arh scaniiad by dn sipense on 2 stralghidne basis
cver the lease tprmn

b} Ialermation aboot lzases for widch the Group is @ lessee i presented below
Right-of-use ssseis
Right-cf-use assets related (o lease hakd oropert e
Following a0 the thanges in 1he carndng wvalue of rght of use ass=ts for the pear endec Mech 32, 2023 and

March 31, 3033 | Rt I Lakthis)
PartiniEry Land & Budding Laasebaakl Land
March §1, 2003 Wiarch 31, 2023 March 31, X3 | Masch 31, 2027
&1 Dpening Balanoe Il 13108 = :
b} Addiian o a2l 579,94 -
£} Deprecanon charge for the yuer .40 1308 - -
d} Osing Balanoa i B0 T3] .94 -

Theaggregare depreziation espense on MOU aviebs (s ineludid under depreciation and amortisatlon expesss in the saterrend of profit and ks

The following & the oy iment In lease liabikties during the year ended March 31, 2633 and March 31, 2022 in case of Lared & Building

{articulin March 31, 2023 Wtarch 31, 22
{n] Craning Balance 7021 2516
{3 Additiom : .21
-If] Finance Cast accrued durieg the yees .94 1.4
[#) Payment of loase labilites 2E.00 26.40
|a} Ccsing Bzance g, b 721
The fobbwing is the break-up of cusrent and noe-ourent lease Babilities 2y a8 March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2028 in cae of Land & Building
Parilculars Karch 31, 2023 Parch B0, 3022
Ban-curiern bace labilnies 15,149 4,64
Cornant lease Haoiitees 13,35 L5
Tatal 4584 TOIL
Leate lakilihs
Maturiy analysis — eoedr s al discounted cash Hows
Farteculars Contraciual eash Mok
-1 ¥Faar 1-5 Yaars S ¥aars and
Ahoye
Lease Lishiities 21.56 IT0E el e}

fordetails of lease liase s fofar s no. 15 B 24

i case of leased hald prepesty Bl Graatar koida , Urtar Pradesh, the hold ing compirry hay filed a woit petlson with Greater Rokds Industial Autihany
(Rehar s s 418
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KCL LIMITED

Corssfidated Notes an Financial Stabarmerts for the year ended 315t March, 2023

Meote-EE Tito dieeds of v ovabis peopertics not heid 1a o same of oospai

1::' B i | s al kwm of Eroi Title damdy held i | Whather it desd hokder s s |Properiy held easea for nog being
& Balanee sheey FEopEriy canying the mamie of prometern, direcor or relssiel  |iince which dete Id in the marmo of the
walue [R5 in of gromotes® fdreetor or corpmny
Lakha) enployme of pramoter@recior
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KCL LIMITED

Consolidated Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

B0, Hote 1 10 5% are anneaed 10 ardd Tarm an intagral gart of the Corsclidated Balkence Shoet a5 at 31st Mar 2073, Consaliceied
Seatement of Profit end Loss, Consolidated statement of cash flows and Consnlidated statamant of changes n equity for the year
ended % om that daba.

A5 par our repors of even date attached

IAGDSH CHARND & OO, Far and en behat of the Board
Chartened Areceanisnts
FHMN Q001298
Padmian Kusnar Baj=ev Khemkas Ashish Khemka
Parner DN-00 102260 DIN-D0E03321
M.AD.5T105F Drectar Direcinar
Mace : Mew Delhi Place ; Maw Delhi Piace : Hew Delhi
Date, Drart; Dt

Armil Apgarwal

[Company Secretary]

AZETES

Flace © New Delhi

Drate:
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

Regd. Folio/ DP ID & Client ID

Number of shares

Name and Address of the member

| certify that | am a member / proxy / authorized representative for the member of the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the fortieth Annual General Meeting of the Company be held on
Saturday, the 30" day of September, 2023, at 11:00 A.M. at the Registered office of the company
situated at E-292, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi - 110044.

Member’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters Member’s/Proxy’s Signature

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall. Members are
requested to bring their copy of Annual Report to the Annual General Meeting.
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Form No. MGT - 11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

KCL LIMITED

L74899DL1983PLC068008
E-292, SARITA VIHAR, NEW DELHI DL 110044
cs@kcl.co.in

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member(s) holding Equity shares of the above-named
company, hereby appoint

1. Name: ..o s
AdAress: ......ooviiii
E-mail Id: ...,
Signature: ...

Or falling him/her

AdAress: ..o,
E-mail Id: oo

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
40th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Saturday, 30th day of
September 2023 at 11:00 a.m. at E-292, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi - 110044, and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Item 1: To receive, consider and adopt

A The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and
in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

B The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon and in this regard
to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March 2023together with the Report of the Auditors thereon as
circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

Item 2: To appoint a director in place of Mr. Rajeev Khemka (holding DIN No 00103260),
who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this
regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Rajeev Khemka, Whole time Director, who retires
by rotation at this meeting and being eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-
appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

Item 3: To appoint a director in place of Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka (holding DIN No
07484360), who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment

and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka, Whole time Director who
retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-
appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item 4. Appointment of Statutory Auditor to fill casual vacancy

To appoint statutory auditor of the company and to fix their remuneration and if thought fit,
to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Subject to the provisions of Section pursuant to section 139, 142 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit & Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force) and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors
of the Company, M/s Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
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000129N), be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company, to fill the casual
vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s Deepanshu Goel & Associates, Chartered
Accountant.

RESOLVED FURTHER THATM/s Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants, be and are
hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the office from July 14t 2023,
until the conclusion of the 40t Annual General Meeting of the company, at such remuneration
plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be determined and recommended by
the Audit committee in consultation with the Auditors and duly approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company.”

Item 5. Appointment of Statutory Auditor

To appoint statutory auditor of the company and to fix their remuneration and if thought fit,
to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Subject to the provisions of Section pursuant to section 139, 142 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable provisions, if any, M/s Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 000129N), be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company,
to hold the office from the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting, for a single term of 5
(five) years at such remuneration plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses, as may be
determined and recommended by the Audit Committee in consultation with the Auditors and
duly approved by the Board of Directors of the company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Rajeev Khemka, Executive Director cum CFO and Mr.
Ashish Khemka, Executive Director be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts,
deeds and things to give effect to this resolution.”

Item No: 6

To Approve Continuation of directorship of Mrs. Chander Kala Khemka (DIN: 00103355) as
a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director Beyond the Age of 75 Yearsin terms of
Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in this regard, pass the following
Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder (including
any amendments thereto or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Applicable Laws”) approval of the members of the company be
and is hereby accorded to the continuation of directorship of Mrs. Chander Kala Khemka (DIN:
00103260) as Non-executive Non- Independent Director of the Company beyond the age of 75
years.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorized to do all such acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or
expedient to give effect to this resolution."

Item No: 7 To appoint Mr. Amrish Aggarwal (DIN: 07631515) as an Independent Director of

the Company
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following

resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, and other applicable
provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the rules made thereunder read with Schedule IV of the Act
and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as
amended from time to time, and in accordance with the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Mr. Amrish Aggarwal (DIN: 07631515), who was appointed as an
Additional Director of the Company in the category of Independent Director with effect from
04th September,2023, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director, for a term of 5
(five) consecutive years to hold office from the conclusion of this (40th) Annual General
Meeting ("AGM’) till the conclusion of the forty fifth (45th) AGM, not liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to take such
steps and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, proper
and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

Item No: 8 Appointment of Mrs. Vandana Khemka, W/o Mr. Rajeev Khemka (DIN 02479295)
as a Woman Director and Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 160 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Mrs. Vandana Khemka (DIN: 02479295), who
was appointed as an Additional Director (in the category of woman Director and Non-
Executive and Non-Independent) w.e.f. September 04, 2023 and who holds office as such upto
the date of this ensuing Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing her
candidature as a Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Woman Director in the category of
(Non-Executive and Non Independent) Director of the Company to hold office for a period of
five consecutive years up to 034 September, 2028, not liable to retire by rotation.
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RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary,
desirable or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.

Item 9: Increase in the remuneration pavable to Mr. Vardaan Khemka being related party,

holding office or place of Profit in the Company and in this regard to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188(1) (f) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), read with the Companies (Meetings of

Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (including any modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to Mr. Vardaan Khemka, Related party, to
hold an office or place of profit in the Company and increase in his remuneration to the
maximum of X 60 Lacs p.a. over and above last salary drawn in the Company (presently last
salary drawn is Rs. 2 lakhs Per Month) for a period of three year effective from April 01, 2023,
to March 31, 2026, plus Other Perquisites including company’s contribution to provident fund,
bonus and leave travel concession in accordance with the rules of the Company and in
accordance with the provisions of the Act as may be agreed to between the Board of Directors
and Mr. Vardaan Khemka.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and / or any Committee thereof be and is
hereby authorised to settle any question, difficulty or doubts that may arise and to do all such
acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, usual, proper or expedient in this regard.”

Item 10: Increase in the remuneration payable to Mr. Sanjeev Khemka being related party,
holding office or place of Profit in the Company and in this regard to pass the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188(1) (f) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), read with the Companies (Meetings of

Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (including any modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to Mr. Sanjeev Khemka, Related party, to
hold an office or place of profit in the Company and increase in his remuneration to the
maximum of X 84 Lacs p.a. over and above last salary drawn in the Company (presently last
salary drawn is Rs. 3.25 lakhs Per Month) for a period of three year effective from October 01,
2023, to September 30, 2026, plus Other Perquisites including company’s contribution to
provident fund, bonus and leave travel concession in accordance with the rules of the
Company and in accordance with the provisions of the Act as may be agreed to between the
Board of Directors and Mr. Sanjeev Khemka.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and / or any Committee thereof be and is
hereby authorised to settle any question, difficulty or doubts that may arise and to do all such
acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, usual, proper or expedient in this regard.”

Item 11: To Approve the revised payment of Remuneration to Mr. Rajeev Khemka, (DIN:
00103260), Executive Director cum CFO of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 read with Schedule V and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), approval of the
members be and is hereby accorded to payment of such revised remuneration to Mr. Rajeev
Khemka, (DIN: 00103260), WTD cum CFO, for the period from October 1, 2023 for a period of
three years up to 30t September 2026 as set out in the statement annexed to the Notice
convening this Meeting with the liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the
Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board constituted to
exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by this resolution) to alter and vary the said
terms and conditions of appointment and / or remuneration, subject to the same not exceeding
the limits specified under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof;

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to
give effect to this resolution

Item 12: To Approve the revised payment of Remuneration to Mr. Ashish Khemka, (DIN:
00103321), Executive Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 read with Schedule V and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), approval of the
members be and is hereby accorded to payment of such revised remuneration to Mr. Ashish
Khemka, (DIN: 00103321), WTD, for the period from October 1, 2023 for a period of three years
upto 30th September 2026 as set out in the statement annexed to the Notice convening this
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Meeting with the liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which
term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board constituted to exercise its powers,
including the powers conferred by this resolution) to alter and vary the said terms and
conditions of appointment and / or remuneration, subject to the same not exceeding the limits
specified under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof;

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to
give effect to this resolution

Item 13: To Approve the revised payment of Remuneration to Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka,
(DIN: 07484360), Executive Director of the Company
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions

as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 read with Schedule V and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), approval of the members
be and is hereby accorded to payment of such revised remuneration to Mr. Deeptanshu
Khemka, (DIN: 07484360), WTD, for the period from October 1, 2023 for a period of three years
upto 30t September 2026 as set out in the statement annexed to the Notice convening this
Meeting with the liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which
term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board constituted to exercise its powers,
including the powers conferred by this resolution) to alter and vary the said terms and
conditions of appointment and / or remuneration, subject to the same not exceeding the limits
specified under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof;

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to
give effect to this resolution

Signed this .................. dayof .................... 2023

Signature of shareholder Affix
Revenue

Signature of Proxy holder(s) Stamp

Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.
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